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SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

/~ DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

\

The Board of Directors of your Company is pleased to present the 50" Annual Report on
the business and operations of the Company together with the audited Balance Sheet and
statement of Profit and Loss Account and Auditors’ Report there on for financial year
ended 31*March, 2022,

1

PRODUCTION REVIEW

Description 2020-21

Thres Whesler

SALES REVIEW
The Sales performance for the year is shown below:

Description 2020-21
Physical Financial

(Rs. In lakhs)
Three Wheeler 23 125.43
Spares 227.44
Petrol, Diesel, Lubricants elc, Ml
Other Operating Revenue 147.44
Total 500.31
FINANCIAL REVIEW

11

Physical

(Nos.)
2021-22
0

2021-22
Financial

(Rs, In lakhs)

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

The salient features of the Company's financial results for the year under review

areas follows:

Description
a! Profit/Loss before Depreciation, Interest, Taxes,
Prior Year ltems &0ther Income.
b} Profit/Loss before Depreciation, Interest. Taxes, &
Other income
¢} PBIDT
d} Profit/{Loss) for the year

2020-21

(5085.99)
(5085.99)

(4648.00)
(4864.63)

{Rs. In lakhs)
2021-22

(1302.80)
(1302.80)

1316.04
757.99
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/r During the year under report:

1.

11,

IV,

4,

0.

Profit before depreciation, Interest, taxes, prior year items & other income
increased by Rs.3,783.19 lakhs as compared to the previous year.

Profit before depreciation, Interest, taxes, & other income increased by Rs
3,783.19Lakhs as compared to the previous year.

Profit before depreciation, inlerest & taxes, increased by Rs. 5,964.04 lakhs as
compared to the previous year,

Profit for the year increased by Rs.5,622 .62 lakhs as compared to the previous year.

CONTRIBUTION TO EXCHEQUER

The company has contributed a sum of Rs.768.19 lakhs (towards duties & taxes) to
the exchequer during the period under review vis-g-vis Rs. 102.35 lakhs during
previousfinancialyear,

DIVIDEND

In view of accumulated losses, the Directors did not recommend final dividend for
the Financial Year 2021-22,

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

In view of the losses, the Company does nol propose to lransfer lo the general
resarves out of the amount available for apportion.

ISSUE OF SHARES WITH OR WITHOUT DIFFERENTIAL RIGHT , SWEAT EQUITY,
ESOP:

The Company has not issued any share with differential right, sweat equity,
employee stock option during the year, hence, not applicable.

EXPORT
The export during the year was NIL.

EXPENDITURE ON ADVERTISEMENT AND PUBLICITY:
Expenditure on account of advertisement and publicity was NIL in the year.

STATUSOFREPAYMENTOFLOANFROMGOI

The Government of India, Ministry of Industries & Public Enterprises, Department of
Heavy Industry released funds by way of interest free plan loan amounting to Rs.
2000.00 lakhs during the financial year 2013-14 for working capital under an
approved revival package of Scooters India Limited by Cabinet/Misc. Application
approved by BIFR. As per sanction 23.7,2013/BIFR order the loan was repayable
in 5 installments commencing from 23.7.2016 onwards i.e. 3 years from date of
sanctioning i.e. beginning w.ef.23.7.2016. In accordance with the Board's decision
in their meeting held on 8th April 2016 and in the background of letter F.No.
3(15)/2013-PE-V| dated 5th March 2015, the interest on CAPEX funds temporarily
deployed as FDR remitted to Government of India in April 2014 amounting to Rs.
128,11 lakhs was adjusted against the installment of Rs, 400.00 lakhs due on 23rd
July 2016, Accordingly principal of Rs 1600 lacs Is oulstanding. The cabinel
sanclioned a loan of Rs. 65 crores oul of which a loan of Rs 41 crore was
disbursed on 28.03.2021 for VRS/VSS scheme of employees and other vendor
paymeants.
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/’_ 1.  MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL \

POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED FROM 01.04.2021TO

DATE

In terms of the communication vide letter no. F. No. 3({1)/2020-PE-VI dated
28.01.2021 from DHI, the operations of the Company had been stopped and
process for closure of SIL has been initiated. |n terms of the said communication all
regular employees had been released and from 29.04.2021, the regular strength of

the Company is NIL. The Company has ceased to be agoing concern and
necessary steps as per the said communications are being implemented.

12  Management Discussion and Analysis:

The Company has ceased to be a going concern and necessary steps as per the

letter no. F. No. 3{1¥2020-PE-VI dated 28.01.2021 from DHI, are being
implemented. The Company is following the steps as confirmed in the letter and
the process of closure is going on.

MISSION, VISION & OBJECTIVE

VISION SIL Vision is to grow as an organization in the field of automobiles with
greater emphasis on E- Mobility.

MISSION Our Mission is to strengthen SIL presence in E-Mobility by foraying into
Electric Yehicle market and thus to provide cleaner mobility solutions for
future generations.

OBJECTIVE
» Design, Development and Commercialization of two variants of Electnc
3-Wheeler/ one variant of BS-V| 3-Wheeler by 2021-22.
» Design. Development and Commercialization of two more variants of
Electric 3-Wheeler/B3-V| 3-Wheeler by 2022-23.

= Caonsolidation of E-Mobility business and BS-VI 3-Wheslers to make SIL
a force of domination in 3-Whesler Industry.

» Creating Niche markets in Electric Vehicle Market.

However, as the Department of Heavy Industries in the letter No.3 (1) 2020-PE-VI
dated 28" January 2021 has ordered for closure of SIL therefore the afore-mentioned
objectives cannot be achieved anymore.

A. MARKET SCENARIO-SEGMENT /PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company ceased to be a sagment player in this market, during the period
under review there were no proeduction of three wheelers in the Company.

B. Future Outlook:
As the Department of Heavy Industries in the letter No. 3 (1) 2020-PE-VI dated 28"
January 2021 has ordered for closure of SIL therefore the Future Outlook of the
Company is to comply with steps defined under said order.
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/r C. Strategic Road Map:

As the Department of Heavy Industries In the letter No.3 (1) 2020-PE-V| dated 28"
January 2021 has ordered for closure of SIL therefore the Company ceased to be
a segment player in this market. Therefore there is no strategic Road Map.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROL:

Tha Company has proper and adequate syslem of internal controls to ensure that
all activities are monitored and controlled against any unauthorized use of disposal
of assels, and that the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported
correctly.

Tha Company ensures adherence to all intermal controd policies and procedures as
wall as compliance with all regulatory guidelines. The Company has in place
adequate internal financial confrols with reference to financial statements. The
Statutory Auditors of the Company tested such controls and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operation was observed.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW vs FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under report the company operations reported a decrease in
production nos. as well as revenue from operations and as a result of which the net
lossas are increased significantly as compared lo previous financial year. The
operations of company remained under siress as vide letter no. F, Na. 3{1)/2020-
PE-VI dated 28.01.2021 it was communicated that CGD, Hon'ble Minister (HI&PE)
has given in-principle approval for initiating the process of closure of SIL and
further the company received the letter no. F.No, 3(1)y2020-PE-YI dated 28.01.2021
from DHI for closure of the company.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS INHUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL
RELATIONS FRONT AND NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED:

ThemanpowerstrengthoftheCompanyason31°March2021was75 only. In terms of
the communication vide letter no. F. No. 3(1)/2020-PE-V| dated 28.01.2021 from
CHI, the operations of the Company had been stopped and process for closure of
SIL has been iniiated. In terms of the said communication all regular employees
had been released and from 29.04.2021, the regular strength of the Company is
MIL.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN FINANCIAL RATIOS

[Pursuant to Schedule V(B) to the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Key Financlal Ralios for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 along with
detalls of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the
immediately previous financial year) In key financial ratios, and the detailed
explanations, are provided below:




&

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

15.

Financial Ratie Stand alone Change Reason for such change
2020-21 2p21-22

Operation Prafit 0.00 -1016.57 Due to closure of operations and

Margin payment of outstanding dues.

Met Profit Margin 28.944 -972.32 Due lo closure of operations and

sales procead from auction of
Company Assels

Status before BIFR

on 18" February, 2010, BIFR has declared the Company as sick industnal
company In terms of the provislons of section 3(1)}{o) of the Sick Industrial
Companies {Special Provisions) Act, 1985 (SICA) on reference being made afler
full erosion of the Net- worth of the Company, as per annual accounts for the year
ended at31"March, 2009, BIFR approved the miscellaneous application filed by the
Company for seeking necessary permission / appropriate directions for reliefs &
concessions enabling Issue of shares, restructuring of balance sheet and for
release of funds for capital expenditure and working capital in ling with the cabinet
decision for revival of SIL. The Draft Rehabilitation Scheme({DRS) was submitted
by the Operating Agency (SBI) for submission with BIFR. BIFR in its hearing
dated15.09.2015 directed that SIL ceases to be a sick industrial company, with in
the meaning of Section 3{1) {o) of the SICA asits net worth has turned positive and
Itis, therefore, discharged from the purview of SICA/BIFR.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 your Directors to the best of their knowledge confirm that:

a) in preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed and that there are no
matearial departures in adoption of these standards. ;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as fo give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year ended on March 31,2022 and of the losses of the Company for
yaar ended on that date;

¢) they have taken proper and sufficient care, to the best of their knowledge and
ability, for the mainlenance of adequale accourling records In accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safequarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities,

d} they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis,

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively to the best of their knowledge and ability; and

i Directors have devised proper syslems lo ensure complianca wilth the

provisions of all applicable laws and thal such sysiems are adequate and are
operating effectively.
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DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, APPOINTED AND RESIGNED: \

Government of India, Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises,
Department of Heavy Industry has vide ils Order No. F.No.:3(23)/2012-PE-VI-
(Part 11}, Daled 23"April, 2021, appointed Mr. Rupesh Telang, GM, BHEL, FSIP as
Chairman & Managing Director of SIL on additional charge basis w.e.f. April25,
2021 for the period of One year. The Company has received an order for extension
of Managing Direclor term till March 2023 Mr. Renati Sreenivasulu ceases as
Chairman & Managing Director w.a.f. April25, 2021..

Government of India, Minlstry of Heawy Industries & Public Enterprises,
Department of Heavy Industry has vide its Letter No, F, No.3(4)/2018-PE-VI| dated
27.08.2020, appointed during the year Shri Mukesh Kumar as Director Finance
(Additicnal Charge) of Scooters India Limited, Shri Mukesh Kumar has completed
his lenure with effect from August 29, 2022.

Mr. Rama Kant Singh, Director, DHI was appointment as part Time Official on
Board of Scooters India Limited in place of Mrs. Ritu Pande, Ex-Director, DHI as
per Govi of India, Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises, Department of
Heavy Industry, MNew Delni vide letter Mo, F. No2- 03/2/2017-PE-VI,
Dtd.10.11.2020.

Government of India, Ministry of Heavy Indusiries & Public Enterprises,
Department of Heavy Industry has vide its order No. 3{20)/2013-PE-VI dated
28.01.2020, appointed Shri Mahendra Pratap Singh and Smt Rakesh Sharma as
an Independent Directors for the period of three years or till further orders.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Rupesh Telang, Managing Director will retire by
rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offer himself for reappointment. The
Board has recommended his reappointment, The Board commends for his re-
appointment,

The Board of Directors of the Company are appointed by the Government of India
as per guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE),
Government of India from time to time. The remuneration of Managing
DirectorWhole time Director is fixed as per grade and other terms and condifions
issued by the DPE. The Government Directors on the Board of the Company draw
their remuneration from Government of India and not from the Company. The
independent directors if any, are paid the sittingfee only (within the limits
prescribed under the Companies Act)as per Aricles of Association, besides
reimbursement of the expenses to attend the meeting. No other remuneration is
paid to the independent directors.

During the year Company Secretary and Compliance Officer Mr. Samarth Dev,
joined from July 20, 2021 and relieved from the services w.e.f 01.04.2022.

As regards, the appointment and remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees, the appointment of all employees below board level is made as
per Recruitment & Promotion Rules of the Company and remuneration is pald to
them as per DPE guidelines.
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16.

17.

18.

21.

22,

The Mominatien & Remuneration Committee (NRC) has been constituted, As
appointments of Direciors are made by the Government of India, accordingly,
aevaluation of Directors are done by the Govemmeant of India. It may also be noted
that Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 5th June 2015 has
exempted Government Companies from the provisions of seclion 178(2), (3) and{4)
which requires formulation of criteria for determining gqualifications, positive
attributes, independence and annual evaluation of Directors & Policy relating to
remuneration of Directors. Similar exemption is anticipated from SEEI under SEEI
LODR. The other matters relating to remuneration, if any, are placed to Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board met 10 times during the financial year, the details of which are given in
the Corporate Governance Reporl thal forms parl of this Annual Report. The
intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the
Companies Act,2013 and the Listing Agreement Regulations.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A statement giving details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign
exchange earnings and oufgoing accordance with the Section134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule B of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
is provided at ANNEXURE-1,1-Aand1-B 1o this report,

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Information under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule5(2)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 be treated as NIL as none of the employee of the company is getling
salary more than the prescribed limit,

INDUSTRIAL RELATION:

During the period under review, the industrial relations have been by and large
satisfactory, however non-regular employee [ATTs/Cont, (JT)] has been protesting
hard for safe guarding their services in closure activity for while Ministry had
already provided in principle approval.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT:

Due lo Notice issued by Department of Heavy Industries (DHI) through Letter No.:
3(1)/2020-PE-VI on Dated 28/01/2021, all operation of the company has been
permanently shut down and as per the instrucltion stated in the said latter, in
accordance to the said notice all employees/ officers of the company has been
released during the year 2020-21.

REPRESENTATIVE FOR SCHEDULED CASTES &SCHEDULE TRIBE:

The Company operations are closed therefore there are no employees. As on
31.03.2022 the total strength of the company is NIL.

10




&

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

23,

24,

25.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR'S DECLARATION

Directors on the Board of the Company are appointed by the Administrative
Ministry. Ministry appointad the Independent Diractors afler several request of SIL.
The appointment of Indepandent direclors made by the Ministry vide its order no.
3(2002013/PE-YI dated 28.01.2021. During the year two independent director were
appointed on the board of the Company. As per the requirement of section 148(7),
the Company has received a declaration from every Independent Director that he
or she meets the criteria of independence as |aid down under section 149(6) read
with rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rule,
2014 and Reguiation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015. The Independent Directors of your Company
have confirmed that (a) they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under
Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations 2015, (b) they
are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which could impair or impact their
ahility to discharge duties with an objective independent judgment and without any
external influence and (c) they have registered their names in the Independent
Directors' Databank. Further, in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors
fulfill the conditions prescribed under the Listing Regulations 2015 and are
independent of the managemenl of the Company. The Independent Directors
meeting was held on financial year 2021-22. The Meeting was conducted without
the presence of the Chairman, Executive Directors and any other Managerial
Personnel.

DISCLOSURE ON REAPPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

During the year 2021-22 one Independent Directors was appointed on the Board of
SIL and no re-appointment has been made during the year under repert. The
Independent Directors on the Board of the Company are appointed by the
Administrative  Ministry, Hence, disclosure peraining lo  reappointment of
independent directors does not apply.

COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT &REMUNERATION
INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, ATTRIBUTES,
INDEPENDENCEETC.:

The Board of Directors of the Company are appainted by the Government of India
as per guidelines issued by the Department of PFublic Enterprises (DPE),
Government of India from time to time. The remuneration of Managing
Director/Whole time Director s fixed as per grade and other terms and conditions
issued by the DPE. The Government Direclors on the Board of the Company draw
their remuneration from Government of India and not from the Company. The
independent directors, if any, are paid the sitting fee only (with in the limits
prescribed under the Companies Act), as per Arlicles of Associalion, besides
reimbursement of the expenses to attend the meeting, No other remuneration is
paid to the independent directors.

As regards, the appointment and remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees, the appointment of all employess below board level is made as
per Recruitment & Promotion Rules of the Company and remuneration is paid to
the mas per DPE guidelines.

The Momination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) has been conslituled, As
appointments of Directors are made by the Government of India, accordingly,
evaluation of Directors are done by the Government of India. It may also be noted
that Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide nofification dated 5th June 2015 has

exempted Government Companies from the provisions of seclion 178(2), (3} and )

11
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26,

27.

2B,

(4) which requires formulation of criteda for determining gualifications, positive
attributes, independence and annual evaluation of Directors & Policy relating to
remuneration of Directors. Similar exemption is anticipated from SEBI under SEBI
LODR., The other matters relating to remuneration, if any, are placed to Nomination
and Remuneration Commitiee,

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEE
AND DIRECTORS

The Company enters into Moll with the Administrative Ministry in the month of
March every year for the next financial year, Before signing the Mol the targets are
negotiated with the Company in detail by the MoUTask Force constituted by the
DPE. The evaluation of performance of the Company against MoU parameter is
done by DPE every year and Mol score is communicated by it to the Company
through the Administrative Ministry.

ATTRIBUTES, QUALIFICATIONS & INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTORS AND
THEIR APPOINTMENT

Being a Government Company, the MNon-Executive Directors are drawn from
amongst pool of eminent persons with experience in business/financeflaw/public
administration and enterprises. The Board Diversity Policy of your Company
requires the Board lo have balance of skills, experience and diversily of
perspectives appropriate to the Company. The skills, expertise and competencies
of the Directors as identified by the Board, are provided in the 'Report on Corporate
Governance' forming part of the Reporl and Accounts. The Arlicles of Association
of your Company provide that the strength of the Board shall not ba fewer than
three nor more than fifteen. Directors are appointed/re-appointed with the approval
of the Members for a period of three to five years or a shorter duration, in
accordance with retiremenl guidelines and as may be delermined by the Board
from time to time. All Directors, other than Independent Directors and Managing
Director are liable to retire by rotation, unless otherwise approved by the
Members.One-third of the Direciors who are liable to retire by rotation, retire every
year and are eligible for re-election.

BOARD EVALUATION

In keaping with SIL's belief that it is the collective effectivenass of the Board that
impacts Company's performance. the primary evaluation platform is that of
collective perfformance of the Board as a whole, Board performance is assessed
against the role and responsibilities of the Board as provided in the Act and the
Listing Regulations 2015 read with the Company's Governance Policy, The
parameters for Board performance evaluation have been derived from the Board's
core role of frusteeship to protect and enhance shareholder value as well as to fulfill
expeclalions of clher stake holders through stralegic supervision of the Company,
Evaluation of functioning of Board Committees is based on discussions amongst
Committee members and shared by the respective Committee Chairman with the
Board. Individual Directors are evaluated in the context of the role played by sach
Director as a member of the Board at its meelings, in assisting the Board in
realizing its role of strategic supervision of the functioning of the Company in
pursuit of its purpose and goals. The evaluation of individual Directors was carried
out against the laid down parameters, anonymously in order to ensure objectivity.
The separate meeting of Independent Directors was held in financial year 2021-22 to
review the performance of the non-independent Directors and the Board, pursuant
to Schedule IV to the Acl and Regulation 25 of the Lisling Regulations 2015,

\

J/

12
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29.

30.

31.

32,

33

34

GOING CONCERN STATUS

In terms of the communication vide letter no. F. No. 3{1V2020-FPE-VI dated
28.01.2021 from DHI, the operations of the Company had been stopped and
process for closure of SIL has been initiated and the Company has ceased to be a
going concern and necessary steps as per the said communicalions are being
implemented. Further, in compliance of the said notice most of the assets of the
company has been auctioned during the year.

MANAGING DIRECTOR RECEIVING COMMISSION OR REMUNERATION
FROM HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

The Company has no holding or subsidiary company, hence not applicable,

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROL:

The Company has proper and adequate system of internal confrols to ensure thal
all activities are monitored and controlled against any unauthorized use of disposal
of assets, and that the tramsactions are authorized, recorded and reporied
correctly.

The Company ensures adherence lo all internal control policies and procedures as
well as compliance with all regulatory guidelines, The Company has in place
adequate internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements. The
Statutory Auditors of the Company tested such controls and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operation was observed.

(i) Reporting of Fraud

There was no inslance of fraud during the year under review, which require the
Stalulory Auditor to report to the Audil Committee/and or Beoard under seclion
143(12) of the Act and rules made there under,

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has nol accepted any deposits under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

AUDITORS' REPORT

M/s Asija & Associates LLP were appointed as Statutory Auditer of the Company
by Comptroller & Auditor General of India for the financial year 2021-22.

The Statutory Audiiors' Report on the accounts of the Company for the financial
year ended 31%March, 2022 are enclosed at ANNEXURE-2.

The Accounts of the Company were submitied to the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India for their report under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
and their report is appended as ANNEXURE-3.

The management replies to the comments made by Auditors are placed at
Annexure - 3A.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

Comptroller and Auditor General of India has appointed Asija& Associates LLP as
statutory Auditor of the Company for the year 2021-22. For the financial year 2022-
23, CAAG has recommended for appointment of M/s § Srivastava and Company,
Chartered Accountants,

J/

13
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/" 35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Your Company is in compliance with all the applicable provisions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated under Chapter 1YV of the Listing Regulations. A detailed
report on Corporate Governance as reguired under the Listing Regulations is
provided in a separate section and forms part of the Annual Report.

A Certificate from M/s Amit Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under regulation
34(3) of the SEBI Listing regulations, 2015 along with the report on Corporate
Governance is attached as Annexure - 4 & 4A to this report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:

M/s Amit Gupta & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries were appointed as
secretarial auditors of the Company for the year 2021-22 as required under Section
204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under. The secretarial audit
repart in Form MR-3 for FY2021-22 forms part of the Direclors Report and is
placed at ANNEXURE-5. Regarding comments | qualifications in the said repor, it
is submitted that the Company has taken up matter regarding appointment of
Independent Directors/women Director with DHI and with the said appoiniments
the Board hasbeacame duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 & Listing agreement-Regulations and necessary compliances
regarding constitution of various Committees viz. Audit Committee, Nomination &
Remuneration Committee etc. has also be made. Further the Company is in
process of filing of necessary retums with the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur,

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. S5-1 and S3-2,

relating to 'Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and' General Meatings', respectively,
have been duly followed.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

In terms of the communication vide letter no. F. Mo. 3(1)/2020-PE-VI dated
28.01.2021 from DHI, the operations of the Company had been stopped and
process for closure of SIL has been initiated and the Company has ceased to be a
going concern and necessary steps as per the said communications are being
implemented. There are no other significant and material orders passed by the
regulalors or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern stalus and the
Company's operations in future.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGIL MECHANISM

In view of appointmeant of Independent Directors by GOI, the Company is having
Audit Committee pursuant to requirement of section177(1) of Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Mesting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 & erstwhile clause 49 of
Listing Agreement.

The Vigll Mechanism of the Company, which also incorporates a Whistle Blower
Policy interms of the Listing Agreement, may be accessed on the Company's
website al the link: hitp./fwww scootersindia.com. The policy includes appointment
of a Whislle Officer who will look into the matter, conduct detailed invesligation and )
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take appropriate disciplinary action. Protected disclosures can be made by a whistle \
blower through an e-mail, or dedicated telephone line or a letter to the Whistle
Blower Officer. Dunng the year under review, no employee was denied access to
Whistle Blower Officer.

40. WEB-LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The Annual Return of your Company is available an its corporate website at
https:/fwww. scootersindialimited.com/.

41. RATIO OF DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION TO MEDIAN EMPLOYEES'
REMUNERATION AND OTHER DISCLOSURES

During the year, no remuneration to the Chairman & Managing Director median
employeas has been paid by the Company. (ANNEXURE-8).

42. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

As per the requirement of section 186(4) of Companies Act, 2013, particulars of
loans given, investments made, guarantees given or securities provided along with
the purpose Tor which the loan or guarantee or security Is proposed to be ulilized by
the recipient are provided in the financial statements on page number 71. The
Company is in compliance with the limits as prescribed under Section 186 of
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 11 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and ils
Powers) Rules, 2014.

43. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES:
All contracts [ arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the
financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on
an arm's langth basis.
Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in section
188(1)of the Companies Act, 2013 as required wnder section134(3)(h)of the Act
read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014,, are presented in
Annexure-9 to the Directors'Report in Form AOC 2.
The Board has adopted a Policy for deafing with Related Party Transaction. The

Palicy as approved by the Board may be viewed on the Company website at the
weblink:www.scoolersindia.com.

44, RISK MANAGEMENT:

SIL aims to have a formalized and systematic approach for managing risks across
the Company. It encourages knowledge and experience sharing in order o
increase transparency on the key risks to the Company to the extent possible. This
approach increases risk awareness, and ensures proper management of risks as
part of the daily management activities.
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45,

48.

47.

The policy on Risk Management may be accessed on the Company's wabsite at \
the link: hg;gs:ﬂwww.snaatergindial?mited.:nm. The abjective of the Company's

risk management process is to support a struclured and consistent approach to
identify, prioritize, manage, monitor and report on the principal risks and
uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. The
Company has Introduced several initiatives for risk management including the
introduction of audit functions and processes to identify and create awareness of
risks, optimal risk mitigation and efficient management of intemal control and
assurance aclivities.

LISTING:

The Company Is listed at BSE Limited and has connectivity from both National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) & Central Depository Services Limited
(CDSL). Dethi Stock Exchange Limited, Delhi has been de-recognized by SEBI
vide itsorder dated November 18, 2014 . The Company has paid due listing fees with
the stock exchangs.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

SIL strongly believes in conceplt of sustainable development and is committed to
operate and grow its operations In a socially and environmentally responsible way

As per the Companies Act, 2013, all companies with a nel worth of Rs, 500 crore or
mora, or turnover of Rs.1,000 crore or more or a net profit of Rs.5 crore or more
during any financial year are regquired to constitute a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) committee of the Board of Directors comprising of three or
more directors, at least one of whom should be an independent director and such
company shall spend at least 2% of the average net profits of the company's
immediately preceding three financial years on C5R activities. In view of losses the
Company has ceased to fall in the requirement of doing CSR.

VIGILANCE CASES:

In pursuance of Order Mo. FMNo.26(1Y2016PE-VI dated January 24 2018 issued by
Ministry of Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises; Department of Heavy
Industries Commitiee recommends including vigilance cases during the year. The
Report is as follows:

During 2021-22, no complaints related to procurement and corruplions were
investigated by Vigilance Departmant hence no complaints related to procuremeant
and corruptions were investigated by Vigilance Department is MIL as on
31.03.2022.
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48,

49,

RIGHT TO INFORMATION CASES:

In pursuance of Order Mo, F.No,26(12016PE-VI dated January 24, 2018 issued by
Ministry of Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises; Department of Heavy
Industries Committee recommends including RTI matters during the year. The
Report is as follows:

RTI CASES STATUS FOR FY 2021-22

Application| Mo, of |Decisions |Decisions| Cases Cases
Received| cases whera whers | Disposed| Pending
inFY | transferred| request/ | request/ | off in FY
2020-21 | to other | appeals | appeals | 2020-21
Publle | rejected* | accepted

Authorities|
Requesis 1 MIL MIL 1 1 MIL
First Appeal MIL MIL NIL MIL 0 MIL
Second Appeal MIL NIL MIL NIL MIL MIL

DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company's has always had a very strict policy on the sexual harassmenl
issues and has zero tolerance in this matter. Ensuring a safe environment for its
women employees is a major priority for the Company and its management. The
Company has complied with provisions relaling lo the constilution of Internal
Complaints Committee under Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. It has formed an_ Internal
Compliant Commities (ICC) to deal with all the matters or matters incidental
thereot. In your Company's legacy of more than 40 years, no instance of sexual
harassment has ever been reported by any employee. During the year 2021-22
also, the Company has not received any complaints of sexual harassment.

GENERAL

Your Directors state thal no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the
following mallers as there were no lransactions on these ltems during the year
under review:

= Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

= |ssue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

= |ssue of shares {including sweal equily shares) lo employees of the Company
under any scheme including Employees Stock Options Plan.

* The Company does not have any schame of provision of monay for the
purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of
amployeas.

= Meither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company
receive any remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries,

= Mo significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courls or
Tribunals which impact the going concern siatus and Company' operations in
future.

* Mo fraud has been reporied by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.

\

J/
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*  There are no details of application made or any proceeding pending under the \
Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 during the year along with their status
as at the end of the financial vear, as no such proceedings Initiated or
pending.

= Tha details of differenca belween amount of the valuation done al the time of
ona time setflement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks
or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof, are not required, as
there was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial
Institution.

53. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT :

The Board of Directors would like to express their grateful appreciation for the
sincere support and co-operation extended by its Bankers, Financial Institutions,
Dealers and Suppliers. The Directors would also like to express their sincere
thanks for the co- operation and advice received from Govt. of India, particularly,
Department of Heavy Industry and Public Enterprises, BIFR, BRPSE, the State
Govt. and the local authorities for their continued support, co-operation and
guidance.

Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the
devoted services of employees and are deeply graieful toc the shareholders for
reposing the confidence and faith in us.

By the order of Board of Directors
Sd/-

Rupesh Telang

DiN:09218342

Chairman & Managing Director
Scooters India Limited,
Lucknow-226008

Place : Lucknow
Date : 08.12.2022
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-

ANNEXURE-1 \
PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE-

DISCLOSURE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign
exchange earnings and outgo, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companias (Accounts) Rules 2014 is given harein below the required additional
information:

I. CONSERVATION OFENERGY

a) Measures being taken

Compressors

= Judicious usage of all resources including compressed air, water & power stc..

= Periodic servicing of suction filters, moisture traps, unlocader and delivery valves,

Water

= Moniloring of control of waler waslage.

* Recycling of cocling water,

=  Arresting of Waler & Air leakages on continuous basis

Power

= Reduction of Contract Demand from 500xVA to 3000kVA by optimizing the
Maximum Demand by Shift Managements, etc.

»  Owverhauling & Changing of Transformer Qil with fresh Transformer Oil of 02 nos.
SMVA Main Transformer, 05nos. 1500kVA. O1no. S500kVA & 01no. 560kVA
Distribution Transformers.

= Replacemenl of 50nos. old Conventional motors with New |E2 motors.,

= Replacemenl of 22nos. 15HP (overrated) Mono-Block pumps with New7. 5HP,
Energy Efficient EFFI, Mona-Block Pumps for air cooling system.

» Instaliation of 05 nos. new VFDs in the Die Casting Shop & Paint Shop to
optimize the use of motors & conserve energy. (we have already completed all
the above tasks)

Stopping usage of heaters during winter seasons for personal Heating Purpose.
Reduction in operation Time of FOVs by 01 Hour in order to Conserve Energy.
Stopping of water Sprinklers in FDVs during Humid Seasons to Conserve Energy.
Operation of 30HF water pump to fill SILOver Head Tank has been restricted
from 3-Shift to 2-Shifts only.
= Operation Hours of 04 nos. of 120HP Compressors has been reduced by 10Hour
in aweek by proper planning in order to conserve energy.
(b&c) Impact of Energy Consumption Measuras, Total energy consumption and
energy consumption per unit of production as per Form'A' In respect of
industries specified in the scheme herelo
The details are given in attached Annexure 1-A,

II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
Efforts made in technology absorption attached as Annex.1-B.

lll. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Efforts and initiative in relation to exports:
Foreign Exchange eamed by way of export of goods was NIL in 2021-22 as
compared to NIL during previous financial year, )
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ANNEXURE-1A

Form for Disclosure of particulars with respect for conservation of energy-

Description

2020-21

2021-22

A

Power and fuel consumption

Electricity
a) Purchased
Unit*
Total Amount (Rs.)
Rate/Unit (Rs.)
b) Own Generation
i Through Diesel Generator
Unit*
Linits per litre of diesel oil
Cost per Unit (Rs.)
i Through Steam Turbine/Gen
Linit*
Unit per litre of diesel oil
Cost/Unit (Rs.)
il Through Steam Turbina/Gen
Lnit*
Unit per litre of diesel oil
Cost/Unit (Rs.)

1511918

14000371
D26

NIL
MIL
NIL

8776248

947759
9.26

MIL
MIL
NIL

Loal

Quantity (Ton)
Total Cost
Average rate

(a) FurnaceOil
Quantity (Ton)
Total Amount (Hs.)
Average Rate per Kg. (Rs.}
{b) Light Diesel Oil
Quantity (Kilo liters) MIL
Total Amount (Hs.)
Average Rate per Kg. (Rs.}

MIL
MIL
MIL

MIL
MIL
MIL

Others/internal generation
(Please give details)
Quantity

Total Cost

Rate/Unit

B . Consumption per unit of production

Description

Standards (if any)

2020-21

2021-22

Froduction (in Nos.) il

Electricity {Unit)
Furnace Cil (Ton)

Light Diesel Ol (Kilo litres)
Coal (specify quality)
Others {specify)

*Unit denotes KWH

"*Higher KWH/Nehidle because of low number of production

\
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ANNEXURE-1B

Research & Development

(R&D)
01 [Specific areas in which
R&D carried out by the =« Electric vehicles and bst vehicles
campany
02| Benefits derived as a « SIL has been able to retain and maintain its
result of theabove R&D market presence among competitors trough
introduction of Electric Vehicle (VikramVidyut)
Passenger Carrier and Load Carrier varianis
and non-electric wehicles through BS-VI
compliance noms due to cabinet strategic
decision for closure of SIL commercial
production could not monetized
03| Future Plan of Action +« due to cabinet strategic decision for closure of
SIL there is no future plan of action
04| Expanditure on RAD
a) Capital
t) Recurring
c) Total MIL
d) Total R&D MIL
Expenditure
asa
percentage
of Tolal
fumover
Technology absorption, adaption and innovation
01 Efforts in brief, made towards » Officers and Staff of the R&D have
taechnology absorption, been sponsored for  exhibition,
adaption and innovation demonstration of the products,
seminars, courses, interactive
sessions eic, related o the
technology absarption, up-gradation
and innovation.
= Associative R&D has been carried out
with different organizations and
design houses like ARAI ICAT, and
CIPET etc. for improvement,
development and product innovation,
02 Benefits derived as a result of = Through wvalue Engineering several
the above efforts e.g. product components and  system of
improvement, cost reduction, suspension, structural member elc.
product development atc modified to reduce both cost and
weight.
s« Customer delight through
implementation of Self Adjusting
Brakes through product improvement
considering the safety product sale.

\
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03 In case of imported technology \
imporied technology (imported
during the last five years
reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year) following
information may be furnished;
a) Technelogyimported
b) Year ofimpor NIL
o) Has technclogy been fully

absorbed?

d) If not fully absorbed, areas
where this has nol been
taken placea, reasons
thersfora and
futureplanofaction
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/r Annexure — 2 \

(—/\ Asija & Associates LLP iy i
' Chartered Accountants Mhore 03114004543

Fax 05322508072
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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial siatements of Scooters India Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31% March 2022 and the
standalone statemenl of profit and loss (including other comprehensive incoma), the
standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows for the
year then ended 31 March 2022, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (together referred
to as “standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
o us, except for the matters described under Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("Actl”) In the manner so required and give a true and Tair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31* March 2022, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equily and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audiling (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Qur responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
seclion of our reporl. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audil evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

\_ J
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> Aftention has been invited lo Note No. 50 of Motes to Financial Statements, where we have
come across the of Letter of Shutting down the operation (term as “Closure Letter”) of the
company issued on 28" January 2021 through Letter No. 3(1)/ 2020-PE-VI by Ministry of
Heavy Industry & Public Enterprises{Department of Heavy Industry {PE-V] Section).

The above letter includes the proper directions and assistance towards of closure of company.
However, the said letter may be sirictly adhered to guidelines of DPE on time bound closure of
sick/ loss making CPSEs vide OM dated: 14-06-2018.

With effect from the above Closure Letter —
a) Loan of Rs.65.12 crore (with interest) will be disbursed for closure of the company.

Comment; Government of India has disbursed the amount of T 41.00 crore oul of
sanctioned amount T 65.12 crore (with interest) on 29-03- 2021. As per Point 6 of Sanction
Letter No. 3/ (3y2021- PE-VI dated 26th March 2020,

1, The Company has to furnish a certificate of utilization of funds sanctioned via above
mentionad letter to the ministry within one year from the date of release of the funds.

In Pursuance to the same, no communication has been provided whereby we couldn't be
able lo verify whether the Certificale of Ulllizalion has been submitted to Governmeni of
India or not.

b) Monetization of Trademarks & Brands of SIL
Comment: According to Closure Motice of 28-01-2021, the company should monatize the
Trademark & Brand and utilise the proceeds for closure process, but if company fails to
monetize the brand/ trademark it will be vested to GOI.

In pursuance o the same, Board Meeling has been conducted on 14th February 2022 in
which it was discussed that a Company has execuled a MOU for engagement of MSTC as
its auctioning agency for disposal of asseis of the Company as per terms of letter no.
31W2020-PE-VI dated 28th January 2021 issued by DHI read with Guidelines issued on
14/06/2018 by Department of Public Enterprises. Thus, il was decided that no fresh MOU is
proposed to be executed for sale of Intellectual properties.

However, the Company has got the valuation report from two valuers for Trademarks and
placed it before the board of members. Based on the recommendations of the Audit
Committee, the board considered the matler and desired to thoroughly review the terms
and place the same before the next meeting.

c) Return of Land about 147.498 acres to UPSIDA at the mutually agreed rates.

Comment: The company (lessee) has outstanding Lease Liability amounting to
3,18, 478.65, and company shall made reassessment of Lease Liability,

\_ Y,
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d)

e}

f)

As per Para 39 of Ind AS 116 Leases After the commencement date, a lessee shall apply
paragraphs 40-43 to remeasure the lease liability to reflect changes to the lease payments.
A lessea shall recognise lhe amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. However, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, a lessee shall recognise any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or
loss.”

We observed that SIL has taken steps in order to return the land to UPSIDA and initiated
the communication via mail dated 02/03/2021 but no response has been recsived by the
SIL in respect of purchase of land by UPSIDA even afler various mails and letlers. So we
are of the opinion that management of SIL should seek active response from UPSIDA
regarding the same and thereafter re-valuation of lease liability according to lease
agreement with UPSIDA,

Delisting of the company shares from listed BSE Stock Exchange

Comment: We reviewed the relevant minutes of Board Meeting relating lo process of the
delisting of shares of the company in accordance and consolation with Depariment of
Heavy Industries,

During the audit, while reviewing the relevant minutes of Board Meetings and as per
discussion with management we have not got any information relating to initiation of
process of delisting from the stock exchange.

Funds received from the sale proceeds, proceeds of return of land to UPSIDA and sale of
Brands & Trademarks shall be utilized to pay back interest free loan of ¥ 16 crore from GOl
and the loan with inlerest of ¥ 65,12 crores.

Comment: During the audit, along-with the discussion with management, company has not
yet made any communication with UPSIDA relating return of land till the date of our audit.

We have observed that Govemment of India has disbursed the loan of ¥41 crore out
sanctioned loan of ¥65.12 crore {with interest) which is payable from the sale proceeds,
proceeds of return of land to UPSIDA along with Brand & Trademarks. We suggest that the
company should initiate the process in priority to aveid the unnecessary interest burden on
the loan amount |.&., 741 crore. Further, with the availability of the funds company may also
be able to return the said loans to GOI.

Closure in accordance with the Office Memorandum (OM) dated 14.06.2018 and the
timeline as per guidelines of DPE.

Comment: During the audit and as per the discussion with management, the company has
considered the deviation from timelines as mentioned in above letter due to additional
delisting process. In connection to the same, Management of the Company held the
meeting on 11/2/2021 and disclosed the fact of the closure during the curremt Financial
Year, In reference to the above company should specify exactly the proposed date for the
completion of all the necessary activities for closure operation.
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» Reconciliaion and confirmation of balances under trade payables, advances from
customer, security deposits, trade receivables, and other advances have not been carried
out and obtained. In our opinion the conseguential impact on the financial statement is not
ascertainable pending such reconciliation and conformation. Moreover lack of details have
come in the way lo quantify time barred Fabiliies and conseguential impaclt on the
accounts.

# Attention has been invited to Mote Mo. 2.1 in retation to Land/ Building.

« As PerPara No B of IND AS 105 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinue Operations

"For the sale to be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must be
committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group), and an active programme fo
locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated, Furiher, the asset (or
disposal group) must be aclively marketed for sale al a price thal Is reasonable in
relation to its current fair value. In addition, the sale should be expecied to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification and
actions required lo complete the plan should indicate hal it is uniikely that significant
changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

In reference to Para 8 of IND AS 105 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinue Operations, We observed that SIL has taken steps in order to return the
land to UPSIDA and initiated the communication via mail dated 02/03/2021 but no
response has been received by the SIL in respect of purchase of land by UPSIDA even
after various mails and letters. So we are of the opinion thal management of SIL should
seek active response from UPSIDA regarding the same.

In addition to this, Land and Building are slill reflecting on the historical value despite of
being classified as Held for Sale. Hence, it is evident that fair valuation of Land and
Building has not been done during the FY 2021- 22 in accordance with IND AS 105,

Emphasis of Matter

The Emphasis of Matter included in the auditor's report that refers to a matter appropnately
presented or disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor's judgment, is of such
importance that it is fundamental to users' understanding of the financial statements.
Attention is inviled to following notes of the Standalone Financial Statements:

1. Mismatch in Paid-up-Share Capital

Attention has been invited to Note No. 13 of MNoles to Financial Statements where
mismatch has been observed in Paid-up-capital as compared io Bocks of Account and as
per Master Data on Minlstry of Corporate Affair website due to share forfeiture amount of
Rs,15.637.50.
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2.

\.

Attention has been invited to Note No. 12 of Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to
Standalone Financial Statements whare it has been obsarved by us that "Advanca to LICT
in respect of Gratuity and Leave Encashment amounting to ¥ 8,18 42,261.00 is standing as
on 31/03/2022. Further the payment of ¥ 3,39,64,545.00 against the gratuily has been
debited during the current Financial Year based on the management's estimate, however
as reported earlier by us no actuanal valuation has been provided for Gratuily and Leave
Encashment for FY 2020-21.

Attention has been invited to Notes Mo. 4 of Motes to Financial Statements relafing Sundry
Debtors {unsecured) were -

i} that the total debtors cutstanding (including MNorth, East, West & South Zones) as on
31.03.2022 amounting to ¥ 430.93 Lakhs against the provision amounting to ¥ 415.84
lakhs had been running from earier years.

i) No external confirmation regarding any Sundry Debtors outstanding for maore than a
year has been provided.

iii) In respect of one of the Deblor "Maarz Mechatronics Pvt" a vehicle has been given by
the company for Ressarch work, where the sald party has provided a Bank Guarantee
(BG) of $1,00.000 in favour of company. However, it was observed by us that the BG
provided was expired on 18/12/2019 and vehicle has not been returned by the party.

Attention has been Invited to the following mentioned Motes to Financial Statements, we
couldn't venify the existence of following events: -

i) MNotes No. 5 of Notes to Financial Statements, Deposit was made with Landlord
amounting to Rs.2.43 Lakhs.

ii) Notes No. 12 of Motes to Financial Statements relating to Deposit was made with
Others amounting to Rs. 10.74 Lakhs Misc. Advance to Staff recoverable amounting to
Rs.1.58 Lakhs.

iii) Motes No. 1B of Notes lo Financial Statements relating to Advance from Customer
amounting to Rs.1.88 Lakhs.

Attention has been invited lo Notes No. 23 of Notes to Financial Statements relating to-

i) Armears on Wages payable amounting to Rs.39.79 Lakhs are payable in respect of
retired employees which are no more associated with company.

ii} Liability for adhoc payment amounting to Rs.0.43 lakhs are payable in respect of retired
employees which are no more associated with company.

Attention has been invited to Notes No. 21 of Notes to Financial Statements relating
Sundry Creditors were ; -

i} that the total creditors outstanding as on 31.03.2022 amounting to ¥ 619,35 lakhs,

i) Mo external confirmation regarding Sundry Creditors outstanding more than a year has
been provided,

Our apinion is not modified in respect of the matters emphasized above.

J/
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/I:e! Audit Matter \

Key audit matters are those matters that in owur professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statemenls as a whole, and in forming our opinion lhereon, and we do nol provide a
separate opinion on these matters, Attention has been invited to the following points: -

» no such notices! Communication! or letter (in any kind) relating to cases has been issued to
company from the date of filing of such cases by the concerned authorities accordingly, nor
the files relating to cases have been produced before us,

1. Non-Payment of Long-Term Loan from Government of India
Attention has been invited to Note No. 15 of Notes to Financial Statements wherepayment
has overdue ralating 1o oulstanding long-term loan received from Government of India

amounting to Rs.57,00 lakhs (Plan Loan of Rs. Rs.16,00 lakhs and loan for YRS/ VWSS
scheme amounling to Rs. 41,00 lakhs).

Audit Procedures to address the Key Audit Matter

Based on our audit procedure we reviewed that all the system & procedures are in place
except the matter reported in Point (a) of Para 1 of Basis of Qualified Opinion.

* SIL Management has informed us that all the repayments of Loan and for payment of
Salary & Wages and Statutory Dues of Employees and Other Government! Statutory
Payment of Company from Government of India amounting to ¥41.00 crore will be done as
per Point no. viii of the Letter No. 3(1y2020-PE-VI (Closure Order) which states that
payment will be made against the Lang Term Liability of Government of India once the sale
proceeds will be recelved by the company from sale of movable assets, proceeds from
return of land to UPSIDA and from sale of Brands and Trademarks.

s  SIL Management has informed us that all the repayment of Plan Loan from Government of
India will also be done according to Point no. vili of the Letter No. 3{1)/2020-PE-V| (Closure
Order) which states that payment will be made against the Long-Term Liability of
Government of India once the funds will be received by the company from sale of movable
assets, proceeds from return of land to UPSIDA and from sale of Brands and Trademarks.

2. Recoverability from disputed and long pending cases from Consumer Forum
Attention has been invited to Note No. 12 along with Note No. 35 of Notes to Financial
Statements where recoverability of deposit with Consurmer Forum made regarding disputed
cases pending at adjudication were amounting to ¥ 8.94 Lakhs.

There is the risk over the company's estimation about the recoverability of withholding
amount of deposit with authorities as:

» Uncertainties relating appropriate documentation relating to legal precedence for the
disputed cases are pending at adjudication.

* Uncertainties relating to management estimation involves significant judgement to
determine the possible outcome,

\_ Y,
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Based on our audit procedure we reviewed the nature of the amount recoverable and the
sustainability and the likelihood of recoverability upon final resoclution and accordingly we
have been informed that; -

no such natices! Communication/ or letter (in any kind) relating to cases has been issued to
company from the date of fillng of such cases by the concemed authorities accordingly.
Further, neither the letter has been shown to us which has been issued by company for the
release of Security Deposil, nor the files relaling to cases have been produced before us.

Recoverability from disputed and long pending cases from Sales Tax Department

Attention has been invited to Note No. 12 along with Note No. 35 Motes to Financial
Statements that there are some accounts of previous Indirect tax Regime and deposit with
others which are still being reflected on the Assets side of Balance Sheet. While discussing
the matter with appropriate authority, it was told to us that the cases under these accounts
are pending with concerned tax authorities and therefore these accounts are still reflecting
in the books of accounts. For detalls of such accounts, please refer the table mentioned
below:

F Ledger Ledger Nama Date of Amount as Management Reply
Mo Head Daposit péer Regarding the Deposits
L Financials
0510 DEPOSIT WITH SALES TAX

Daposil with Assam Salee Tax | 1067-098 50.000.00 The casa 15 under Tral. Latest

Autharity for Dibrugarh | (17-04- updation is awaited However,

Warehouse Security 1967 this = ot pertaining to the FY
2021-22

Deposil with Rajgsthan as | 200506 2.015,00 The case is under Trial Latest

Securlty (MSC) for Reqg. under updation Is awalted. However,

Entry Tax this s nol paraining to tha FY
2021-32

Deposit with JEK as Security 2010-11 45,000, () The case is under Tral. Lalest
updation Is awalled. Howaver,
this s not peraining to the FY
2021-22

Total 97,015.00
j A0S0 DEPOSIT WITH OTHERS

State Consurmer  Rodressal | 2005-06 25 000.00 The casa is under Trial. Latest

Commission, Haryana updation is awalted. However,
this = not pertaining to tha FY
2021-22

secretary, SCBRC Balasor 200508 25,500.00 The case is under Trial. Latest

updation is awalted. However,
this s ot perdaining to tha FY
2021-22
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8L Ledger Ledger Namae Date of | Amount as | Management Reply
Mo Head Deposit per Regarding the Deposiis
MNa. Financials
Dislrict  Consumer  Forum, | 2005-08 5,000,.00 The case |s under Tral Lales!
Osmanabad updation is. awaited. However,
this ls not perlaining lo the FY
2021-22
Kalyani Sizel Producis 2003-04 & | 8,38,303.00 FD is deposited in court and
201516 case is nol yel seliled.
Consumer Dispute Redrassal | 2005-08 256,000.00 The case is under Trial, Latest
Forum Ahmed abad updation s awaited. However.
this = not pertaining to tha FY
2021-22
ADSL Internet, Alambagh 2005-06 1,700.00 Mo record available since this is
partaining to FY 2005-08.
Woice Stream 2003-04 1,600.00 Mo record available since this is
petaining to FY 2003-04,
Prabhagiya. Vanadhikan  (P- | 2008-10 A8, 000, 00 Deposited a8 securily manay in
7145) Foresl Department in FY 2008-
10
BSNL 200-11, 3.000.00 Depositad in BENL as Seaurity
2011-12, Money.
2017-18
Han'ble High Courl (H-7051) | 2015-18 1.00,000.00 Deposiied In High Court Date
W.P. No, 1835/M.5, of Filing - 27.01.2015. Lask
Listed an - 20.05.2019
Total 10,74;,003.00
3 0525 | DEPOSIT WITH EXCISE 2001-02 6,500.00 This appeal Is peraning to FY
2000-01 & Mo record s
available in this ragard.
4 30538 | DEPOSIT WITH EXCISE AUTHORITIES (APPEAL) i
Deposit with Excize Authorities | 2015-16 11,000,060 Deposited In Jan-2016. Case s
for filing appeal in Tribunal still pending as per lalest
Allshabad : L _| updale. i
Deposit with Excize Authoeities | 2017-18 B.050.00 Deposited  with  Service Tax
far filing appeal in Tribunal Authority  in FY  2017-18
. _Allahabad | _However, case is siill pending.
Total 19,050.00
5 530 | DEPOSIT WITH CONSUMAR FORUM
Deposit with State Consumear 2006 25,000,040 Case decided in favour of SIL
Dispute Redressal Advocata  was  asked  for
Commission Patna, withdrawing the said amounl in
favour of SIL. Howsver, the
amount is stll with the courl.
Deposit with Cansumer Farum Uniraced 12 736,00 Mot Traceable
ShL No | Ledge |Ledger Name Date of | Amount as | Managemant Raply
r Deposit por Rogarding the Deposits
Head Financlais
Mo,
Deposit with District Consumer | 2014 25,0000 Appeal is still pending.
Dispuba Redressal Forum
Bhopal.

=
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Deposit with State Consumear 200 12,500, 00 Revision is stll pending before
Dispute Redressal Mational Consumer Forum
Commission Fatna.

Deposil with Bihar Consumer 2011 26,000,060 Appeai |s shill panding.

Dispute Redressal
Commission Patna
Deposit with State Consumer 2015 503, 000,00 Revision |s still pending

Dispute Redressal
Commission Muzaffarpur

| Total 1,50,236.00

Audit P r d he Key Audit M r

+ Based on our audit procedure all the above-mentioned deposits against disputed and long-
term pending cases are running from last so many years.No notices! Communication/ or
letter {in any kind) relating to deposits issued by Concerned authorities has been presented
before us and neither the letter regarding submission of deposits has been presented before
us which has been issued by the Company for the release of deposits. nor the files relating
to cases have been produced before us.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report and Corporate Governance Report, but does not
include the Standalone Financial Statements and ocur Auditor's Report thereon. Our opinion
on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion therson. In connection with our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, (Changes in Equity) and Cash Flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepled in India, including the Indian Accounling Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assels of the Company and Tor preventing and detecling frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making Judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
\ preparation and presentation of the )
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Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatemeant,
whather due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
gither intends lo liguidate the Company or {o cease operations, or has no realistic allernative
but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Owur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
audilor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are
considered malerial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also :

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audil evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of inlernal control.

s« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial contrals system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
conlinue as a golng concern. If we conclude thal a malerlal uncerlainty exisls, we are
reguired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's reparl. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company fo cease to continue as a going
concern.

+« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

\_ Y,
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 'Ihe\
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal contral that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a slalement thal we have complied
wilh refevan! elhical requirements regarding independence, and lo communicate wilh them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, relaled safeguards.

From the matlers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial slatemenls of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
repart unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matier or when, In
extremely rare circumstances, we determine thal a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.Other Matters

The Other Matter in the auditor's report that refars to a matter other than those presented or
disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor's judgment, is relevant to users’
understanding of the audit, the auditor's responsibilities or the auditor's report. Attention has
been invited to the following points:

1. Mism in the Dir ign i
Attention has been invited to Note No. 40 of Notes to Financial Statements where it has

been abserved by us that there is a mismatch in the details of the Directors/ signatory of the
company as per the MCA website and books of accounts. The detail of the same is given

below:
As per MCA |Begin Date As per Note No. 42 of |Begin Date
Website FY 2021-2022
Mr. Rupesh Telang | 23/04/2021 Mr. Rupesh Telang | 23/04/2021
{CMD) {CMD;
Mr. Mukesh WKumar | 30/08/2020 |Mr, Mukesh Kumar (DF) 30/08/2020
(DF)
Mr. Sumil Kumar | 15/01/2018  |Mr. Sunil Kumar Singh 15/01/2018
Singh
Mr. Mahendra Pratap | 28/01/2020 |Mr, Mahendra Pralap | 28/01/2020
Singh Singh
Mr. Rakesh Sharma 28/01/2020  |Mr. Rakesh Sharma 28/01/2020
Mr. Rama Kant| 10/11/2020 |Mr. Rama Kant Singh 12/11/2020
Singh
Mr. Raj Shekhar | 080272018 |Mr. Raj Kumar 021112021
Tiwari

| Mr. Samarth Dave | 20/07/2021
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/’_ In context to the above, it has been observed by us that: \

a) Rule B: For the purpose of section 152 for the Companies Act, 2013, the company
should have intimated to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs about the changes in the
management (Managing Director, Directors, Manager and Secretary) by filing e-
Form DIR-12 along with the applicable Filing fee with the Registrar of Companies
(ROC) within thirty {30) days from the date when such change takes place.

b) For the above sald non-compliance, Registrar of Companies (ROC) may impose
penalty viz., additional fee for the delay in filing of e-Form DIR-12 (Information about
Removal or Appointment of Director) based on number of days delayed as follows:

Up to 30 days | 2 times of normal fess
Mare Than 30 days & up to 60 days | 4 times of normal feas
Mare Than 60 days & up to 90 days | G times of normal fees
More Than 90 days & up to 180 days | 10 times of normal fees
More Than 180 days | 12 times of normal fees

Thus, we are of the opinion that to avoid further penalty and to comply with the above
relevant faw, company should file e-form DIR-12 for the change of Directors! Signatory as
soon as possible,

2. Attention has been inviled to Note No. 35 of Notes to Financial Statements showing ZERO

penalty imposed on the company under regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements).

Mo information regarding penalty imposed on the company by SEBI were provided to us. As a
result, we could not be able to verify the same.

3. Income Tax/ Tax deducted at Source

a. While checking the records relating to Advance Income Tax, we observed that SIL Office
had deposited the fund of INR 3,11.000.00 in the form of Demand Draft with Income Tax
Department against the matter of re-opening of seized bank account of SIL Office during the
FY 2017-18 on Dated 12/02/2018. However, SIL Office accounted for the value of INR
3,11,000.00 under the head of Advance Income Tax. Further, we observed that the said
deposit with Income Tax Department was nol showing the Form 26AS of SIL Office and
Incame Tax Dept. will only accept the credit once the same should be reflected on the face
of 26AS of SIL. While filing the representation it was mentioned that there was no
requirement of such type of deposil, as a resull, wa fail lo understand why the same fund
has been deposited with Income Tax Department.
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b. While reviewing the Income Tax proceedings, we observed thal Income Tax Department
has raised the huge value of demand in respect of several financial years and SIL Office
Management has shown the said demand as their contingent liabilities in to the foot note of
their financial statement. Details of year wise demand is as under:

SLNo,  |Assessment [O/SDemand | Accrued fection Reference No,
Year Interest Code
1 2009 0.00 3,13.984.00 | 115 WE | 2010200910055251130C
2 2014 §2.99,080.00 37,34, 550.000 154 20182014 10000483604 3
3 2015 1,69,58,220.00 76,31,190.00 154 2018201510000436375C
4 2013 11.87.77,523.00 | 4.88,86,120.00 263 2018201310002330412C
5 Lanv 3,89,991.00 | 0.00 | 270A |2021201740409004853C |

4. The attention has been invited to note no. mentioned below regarding the assessment of
the current position of assets as no actions such as extermnal confirmation, age wise
analysis, reconciliation etc. has been undertaken by the management till date. For details,
please view the list below

(A) CURRENT POSITION OF ASSETS:

By laking into consideralion the currenl position of the company, as the closure of the
company has been approved by the competent authority hence, the attention has been
invited on the position of the assets and liabilities as on 31.03.2022,

It has been brought to ocur notice that, regarding the assessment of the current position of
assels and liabilities no actions such as external confirmation, age wise analysis, physical
verification, reconciliation etc. has been undertaken by the management fill date. As per our
suggestion, appropriate actions shall be taken by the management regarding the same.

Further, for the true and fair presentation of the financial position of the entity, the
management should make assessment of the probable future economic inflows! outflows
from Assets and Liabilities, undertake physical verification, reconciliation, aging analysis and
exlernal confirmalion in respect of the below mentioned assetls and liabilities as per their

nature.
A/C Code |F‘artinulars |Amnunt {in Rs.)
SECURITY DEPOSITS (Refer Note No.5)
30506 | Custom Duty Deposit |Rs. 8,256.00
30507 Port Trust Rs. 12,733.15
_ 30508 |Octroi Deposit |Rs. 21,377.85
30511 Deposit with St Authorities (Fan) Rs. 2,86.608.00
30519 | Deposit with Export Inspection |Rs. 10.398.00
30522 Deposit with Land Lord Rs. 2,42,999.99
Total Rs. 5,82,372.99

35



&

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

' N

Less: Provision for doubtful adv./rec (Rs. 4,07.067.47) |
Net Amount Rs. 1,75,305.52
OTHER LOANS AND ADVANCES (Refer Note No.5)
30350 Recoverable from Workmen (Wage Revision 2002) Rs. 77.89,051.55
30351 Deferred Interesl on Employee Benefil Rs. 2,00,816.36
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Refer Note No.12)

30510 Deposit with Sales Tax Rs. 14 41 363.00
30301 Vehicle Advance (Secured) Rs, 1,835.33
30520 | Deposit with Others |Rs. 10,74,003.00
30525 Deposit with Excise Rs. 6,500.00

| 30538 |Deposit with Excise Authorities (Appeal) Rs. 19,050,00
30530 | Deposit with Consumer Forum | Rs. 56,663.00
30548 ITC on RO Inputs Rs. 5,49,757.50

OTHER ADVAMNCES

30302 Staff Advance Rs. 8,31,427.68
30701 UPIL General Advance Rs. 15,12,000.00
30402 Interest Recoverabla On UPIL Rs. 24.44,849.68
30315 Recoverable Advance Rs. 548 92526
30312 Claims Recoverable Rs. 14.,00,000.00
30533 Input Tax Recoverable Account Rs. 11.53,483.00
30363 |Recoverable from Sales Tax Authorities |Rs. 14,00,108.00
30364 Subsidy Receivable Rs. 24,84,000.00
30362 | Professional Tax Recoverable. |Rs. 17,421.40

(B) CURRENT POSITION OF LIABILITY:

By taking inte consideration the current position of the company, as the closure of the
company has been approved by the competent authority hence, the attention has been
invited on the position of the liabilities as on 31.03.2022.

It has been brought to our nofice that, regarding the assessment of the current position of
liability no actions such as external confirmation, age wise analysis, reconciliation etc. has
been underiaken by the management till date. As per our suggestion, appropriate actions
shall be taken by the management regarding the same.

Further, for the true and fair presentation of the financial pesition of the entity, the
management should make assessment of the probable future economic outflows of
Liabilities, undertake recondiliation, aging analysis and external confirmation in respect of
the below mentioned liability as per their nature:

\_ Y,
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AIC Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
Co
de
ADVANCES RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS (Refer Note No.18) ADVANCES
RECEIVED
FROM
CUSTOMERS
(Refer Note
No.18)
00550 | Advance from |Fs.1,89,850.00
Custom
Brs
(EV) -
DEPOSITS (Refer Note No.18) DEPOSITS
[ Reter Mote
. . : No.18)
| 00510 lDBpusits from Others Rs. 2,60,000.00
| 00522 |From Dealers. |Rs.2,17,78,606.64
00535 | From Stockist Rs. 4,83,606.86
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLE (Refer Note No.21) TRADE AND
OTHER
PAYABLE
(Refer Note
. No.21)
00514 |Trade & Other Payable — Rs. 2,84,495.24
| MSME Creditors
Trade & Other Payable — Other Than MSME Creditors
| 00501 |Sundry Credilors (Civil)  |Rs. 1,00,11,490.81
00514 | Sundry Creditors |Rs. 3,00.69,321.30
(General) 1] K
00518 | Sundry Creditors (ANC.}  |Rs. 85,575.53
00568 | Sundry Creditors (3\Wh.) |Rs. 2,15,00,504.39 '
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Refer Note No.23) DEPOSITS
(Refer Note
| No.18)
00630 | Own Your House Rs. 1,24,700.00
30302 ’Credll Balance  Staff Rs. 7,98,730.63
| Ledger
Credit Balance Swundry |Rs. 10,85,0580.18
! Debtors

\.
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Eamest Money |Rs. 20,81,720.00 | )

00534  |From Olhers Rs. 3,73,9789.50

27624  |Factory Workers Colony  |Rs. 42,32, 320.62

OTHER PAYAELES (Refer Note No.23)

00561 |Arrears on Wages |Rs. 38,79,187.75

Payable

00562 |Recovery for |Rs. 3,36,384.70

Amortized
Die (Cipel)

00644 |T.C.S. On Scrap |Rs. 38 412.54

Sale

00840 |Rec. for Canteen |Rs. 39,427.50

Coop
Sociely

00580 | Liability Teowards [Rs. 43,200.00

adhoc
Paymants

A)

B)

\.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by
theGovernment in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our eéxamination of those books.

c) The standalone balance shiet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the
standalone statement of cash flows deait with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

e) Being a Governmenl Company, pursuant to MNotification Mo. GRE. 4B3(E) dated
05.06.2015 issued by the Government of India, provisions of Section 1684(2) of the
Companies Act, 2013, regarding disqualification of directors is not applicable to the
company,

fi With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the beast
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31% March 2022 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the standalone
financial statements,

ii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company did not have any
long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

iii. According ta the information and explanation given o us, there has been no delay in
transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company,

C) We are enclosing our report in terms of section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the company as we consider appropriate and according
io the information and explanation given to us, inthe 'Annexure C' on the directions and
sub-directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

For & Behalf of:

Asija & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants, Lucknow
FRN: 003155C/C400011

CA Kamal Kumar Ferwani

{Sr. Partner) Date : 30/05/2022
(M. Mo-402982) Place : Lucknow
UDIN:22402982A1 BX\WX1478

39



&

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

/;HNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT \

To The Members of Scooters India Limited, Lucknow on The Accounts Of The Compan
For The Year Ended 317 March 2022

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information
and explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

(i) In respect of company's fixed assets:

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inciuding
guanltitative details and situation of fixed assets in relation lo Right of Use Assels and
Mon-Current Assels held for sale and remaining all the assets including Property, Plant
and Egquipment were sold during the Financial Year 2021-22 based on Letter of Shutting
down the operations (term as "Closure Letter”) of the company issued on 28th January
2021 through Letter No. 3(1)/ 2020-PE-V1 by Ministry of Heavy Industry & Public
Enterprises (Department of Heavy Industry (PE-VI Seclion)

(B)This clause is nol applicable to the company, as company do not own any intangible
assel

b) The company conduct regular physical verification of its fixed assets i.e., on guarterly
basis. However, Physical Verification of fixed assets has not been conducted by the
company during the FY 2021-22.

c) Clause in relation to the title deeds of all the immovable properties {(other than properties
where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee} disclosed in the financial stalements is nol applicable as company has nol
owned any immovable property,

d) The company has revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment, i.e., Electncal Installation/
Solar System during the year based on the valuation report issued by a Registered
Valuer., The amount of change is INR. 4,4881,197.58 againsl the WDV of INR.
4,98,81,187.58, which is lump sum 90% of carrying amount. Thus, the differential value
has been charged lo their Profil & Loss Account during the financial year,

g) Mo proceedings have been iniliated or are pending against the company for holding any
banami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Acl, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

(i} (&) Clause in relation to physical verfication of inventories is not applicable on the Company
as Company has sold all the inventory during the financial year 2021-22 based on Letter of
Shutting down the operations (lerm as "Closure Letter”) of the company issued on 28th
January 2021 through Letter Mo, 3{1)/ 2020-PE-V| by Ministry of Heavy Industry & Public
Enterprises (Department of Heavy Industry (PE-VI Seclion)

\_ Y,
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/’_ (B) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not tak&“
working capital limits from banks or financial institutions based on security of current
assets; accordingly, clause (i) (B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

i} According to the Information and explanation given to us, as the company has not made
investmenis in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans ar advances in
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties, accordingly clause (iii} of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

iv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted
any loan, investments, guarantees, and security covered under section 185 or 186 of the
Companies Adt, accordingly clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

v) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not acceptad
any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be depaosits, as per the directives issued by
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder during the year,
accordingly clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi) Clause in relation to maintenance of Cost Records as specified by the Central
Government under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act is not applicable
as the Company had shut down their operation during the financial year 2021-22 based
on Lefter of Shutting down the operations (term as “Closure Letter") of the company
issued on 28th January 2021 through Letter No, 3(1)/ 2020-PE-VI by Ministry of Heavy
Industry & Public Enterprises (Department of Heavy Industry (PE-V| Section).

vil) As per the information and explanations given to us in respect of stalutory dues, we
abserved the following-

{a) As per the records, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues, to the extent
applicable to it with the appropriate authorilies and as informed no undisputed amount
were outstanding as at 31 March, 2022 for a period of mare than six months the date of
becoming payable. except the following: -

|SI.No, |[Name of the |Nature of the Period Amount
Statue dues l (Rs. in Lakhs)
B Kerala Sales |State Sales Tax | 1992-93, 1993-94 422
Tax ! £1994-95
Total 4.22
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{a)The disputed statutory dues aggregating Rs. 1667.54 Lakhs that have not been depasited
on account of matters pending before appropriale authorities. For detalls of such amounts,
nlease refer the below mentioned table:

Disputed Statutory Dues
Forum where
5. Name of the Nature of the ; Amount
: disputes are Period :
jNo Statute iI‘.Il.res pending {in Lakhs)
1a) Btate Sales Entry Tax & Commissioner hgg7.08 to 113.77
Tax Act Penaty Tax ~ [of Commercial boog g7
laxes
D)  Ptate  Sales Entry Tax & [Tribunal 2003-04, 10.55
Tax Act FPenalty Tax 2004-05
&2005-06
2 a) Central Excise Service Tax Commissioner Dctober 322 & 649
and  Service {Appeals) 2002- March Penalty &
Tax 2017 Indeterminate
Interest
o} Central Excise Bervice Tax Assistant ?014-15 0.74 & 0.74
and  Service Commissioner Penalty &
Tax Indeterminate
Interest
) Central Excise Central Excise Assistant fpril  2010- D74 & 074
and  Service Commissioner September  Penalty &
Tax 2010 Indeterminate
_ _ | | Interest .
1)  Central Excise Central Excise Assistant 200506 to 48 & 248
and  Service Commissioner [2008-09 Penalty &
Taw Indeterminate
interest
=}  Central Excise Central Excise [Tribunal ALigust 1.0 & 110
and  Service Allahabad 2008- March Penalty &
Tax 2013 Indeterminate
Interest
i Central Excise Service Tax Appeal 2015-2016  paY & 088
and  Service Pending Penalty & Interest
Tax
3}  Central Excise Service Tax Appeal 2016-17 148 & 044
and  Service Fending Penalty & Interest
Tax
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Forum where
bo | Netgnothe [oioputosare | paiod | (Mo,
pending
5 ncome  Tax Income Tax Dy. FY 2001-02 to 1508.71
At Commissioner 2008-09,

of Income Tax 2013-14 &
Range VI, 2015-16
Lucknow

1667.54 Penalty &
Total Indeterminate Interest

{vili) Mo such income has been accounted during the financial year which needed to be
disclosed or surrendered during the year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Acl, 1961 (43 of 1961). Thus, this clause is nol applicable on the Company.

{ix) (A) Yes. The Company has defaulted in the repayment of Interest Free Plan loan
amounting to Rs.20.00/- Crores provided by the Government of India through sanction
letter dated 23-07-2013 in which the company has fo repay the loan in five egual
instalments commencing from 23-07-2016 however only first instalment of T4.00f- Crores
has been paid by the company till now.

Further, during the current year, Government of India has disbursed the fresh loan of
741.00 Crore (with Interest) on 29-03-2021 for the closure of company's operations
through Closure MNolice issued on Dated 28-01-2021 which shall be re-payable from the
proceeds of sale as specified in the letter, However, Interest @ 13.50% shall be paid on
annual basis as Company had defaulted lo pay the Interest lo Gavernment fill the date of
audit.

Period and the amount of default has been reported in table given below:

Mature of MName of Amount Whether MNo. of Remarks, if any
Borrowing, Lender* notpaid | principal days
: on due or Interest delay or

Securities In Crores)
Working Capital | Gevemment | 4.00 Principal 1712 Days | 23/07/2017
under the | of India 4,00 Principal | 1347 Days | 23/07/2018
approved revival | 1 —
package | | 4,00 Principal G582 Days | 23/07/2014

1l 1 4.00 | Principal 616 Days | 23/07/2020

\. J
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Loan for Governm 0.0 Inter 3 250
payment  of ent of 45 est Oa 320
Salary & India V5 22
Wages and

Statutory

dues of

employees 5.5 Inter

and other 4 est 36 01/0
Government/ 5 4/20
Statutory Da 2
payments of Vs

the Company

(x)

(B} According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been
declared wilful defaulter by the Government of India. Thus, this clause is not applicable on
the Company,

(C) According to the information and explanations given to us, the loans have been applied for
the purpose for which the loans were obtained. However, Company has not fulfilled the
condition that The Company has to furnish a certificate of utilization of funds sanctioned via
above mentioned letter to the ministry within one year from the date of release of the funds
as per Point 6 of Sanction Letter No. 3/ (3)/2021- PE-VI dated 26" March 2021.

(D) According to the information and explanations given to us, neither funds have been raised
on short term basis nor have been utilised for long term purposes. Accordingly, this clause
is not applicable on the Company.

{E) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to mest
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the period of audit.
Thus, this clause is not applicable on the Company,

(F) The company has neither created any of ils subsidiaries, joint ventures or associaie
companies nor raised any loans during the year. Thus, this clause is not applicable on the
Company.

{A) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Thus, this clause is not applicable on
the Company,

(B} The company has nol made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible} during the year. Thus,
this clause is not applicable on the Company.
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(i)

(i)

(aov)

(xiv)

(b)

(xi] (A) Based upon the audit procedures performed and information given to us, we
report that no fraud by the company has been noticed or reported during the year by
management. However, as reporied earlier by us, during the financial year 2008-02
Board of Directors revealed that a commerclial agreement was executed by the CMD
without the authority of the board and after due consideration the Board decided to refer
the matier to the appropriate authority for the future action, however no action on the
same was reported to us,

(B) Mo report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Acl has been filed
by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. Thus, this clause is not applicable on the
Company.

(C) During the course of audil, we have nol received any whislle-blower complaints
during the year by the company. Thus, this clause is not applicable on the Company.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company is
not a Midhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph (a) to (c) of Paint No.: 3{xii) of the order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion that no
transactions has been entered with the related parties and where applicable it's in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act As a result, disclosure
requirement regarding this transaction in the financial statemenls, elc., as requirad by the
applicable accounting standards is not applicable.

{a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business and company has appointed the 3™ Party to conduct the same.

The report of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were provided to us and we
have prepared cur audit report while considering the Internal Audit Report.

{xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and In our opinion, the
company has not entered any non-cash transactions with directars or person related to
him. Thus, this clause is not applicable on the Company.

45




&

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

(Gevi)

(il

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, Th
Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph (a) to (d) of Point No.: 3(xvi) of the order is not
applicable.

During the Financial Year 2021-22 the Company has posted a profit of 757.99 (In Lakhs)
so there is no Cash Loss incurred during the period under audit. However, in the
immediately preceding financial year company has incurred the Cash Loss of T 4735.41
{In Lakhs).

Profit/ Loss for the period after tax (R4952.04} (Fig- In
Lakhs)

Add: Depreciation and amortisation N

expenses

Total Cash Loss for the FY 2020- 2021 F4735.41

(xx)

(b)

{#viii} According fo the information and explanations given to us there has not been any

{xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial

resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Thus, this clause is not applicable on
the Company.

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we
would like to comment that expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities were not provided to us. As a result, we couldn't be able to comment on
the maternal uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that whether the company
is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet.

{a) As we have already mentioned that Letter of Shutting down the operations (term as
"Closure Letter”) for the company has been issued on 28th January 2021 through Letter
No. 3(1)/ 2020-PE-VI by Ministry of Heavy Industry & Public Enterprises (Depariment of
Heavy Industry (PE-VI Section). As a resull, the company has not transferred any amount
to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companles Act within a period of six manths of
the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of
section 135 of the said Act Thus, this clause is not applicable on the Company.

During the period of audit, no amount remains unspent under sub-section (5) of section
135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to
special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the
said Act. Thus, this clause is not applicable on the Company.

J
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ﬁc_xi} During the period of audit, we would like to comment that Scooters India Limited is naitha\
having Joint Venture, Subsidiary and/or Associates nor preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Thus, this clause is not applicable on the Company.

For & Behalf of;

Asija & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants, Lucknow
FRN: 003155C/C400011

CA Kamal Kr. Ferwani

(Sr. Pariner) Date: 30/05/2022

M. Mo.. - 402882 Place: Lucknow
UDIN: - 22402982ALBXWX1478

NMEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members of Scooters India Limited, Lucknow on The Accounts of The Company
for The Year Ended 31" March 2022

Report on the Intemal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemnal financial controls over financial reporting of Scooters India
Limited ("the Company") as of 31* March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
slatemenls of the Company for the year ended on thal dale.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the Internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intermal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accourdants of India ('ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequale internal
financial conirols thal were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intermal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Stlandards on Audifing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be)

\.
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/’_ prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable t{ﬁ
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included
oblaining an understanding of internal financial contrals over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that whether any material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due lo fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained |s sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinlon on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial contral over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. & company's intermal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

{1} Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and thal receipls and expenditures of lhe company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial staterments.

nherent Limitation l | Financial Controls Over Financial R in

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

\_ Y,
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-

\

Opinion

In our opimon, the Company has, in all material respecls, an adequale internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operaling effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal contral over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated In the Guidance Note on Audil of Internal Financial Caontrals Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For & Behall of:

Asija & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 003155C/C400011

CA Kamal Kr, Ferwani
(Partner) Date: 30/05/2022
M. Mo.: - 402082 Place: Lucknow
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/" ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT \

To The Members Of Scooters India Limited, Lucknow DnﬂThe Accounts Of The
Company For The Year Ended 31 March 2022

Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

1. Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting
transactions through [T system? If yes, the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along
with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Mo accounting transactions has been made outside |T system.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off
of debts floansfinterest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company's
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

Mo such cases have been observed during the FY 2021-22,

However, during the F.Y. 2018-19 an existing loan of Rs.1.89 crores given by the
Government of India has been converted into equity through letter Dated 57 June, 2018.
The financial impact of this conversion was that Equity of the company has been
increased by Rs.1.89 crores and GOl loan has been decreased by Rs.1.89 crores.
Further, interest on the above loan also been freezed through the above-mentioned letter
but there was no financial impact of freezing of interest as the same was not accounted
for in the Financial Statements of Scooters India Limited.

3. Whether funds received/ recelvable for specific schemes from central/ state
agencies were properly accounted for/ utilized as per its term and conditions? List
the cases of deviation.

Mo such cases of deviations observed.
Sub-Direction under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013- Nil

For & Behalf of:

Asija & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 003155C/C400011

CA Kamal Kr. Ferwani

(Sr. Partner)
Date:30/05/2022

M. No.: - 402982 Place: Lucknow

\_ J
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Annexure — 3

COMMENTS OF THE CONTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2022.

The preparation of financial statements of Scooters India Limited for the year ended 31
March 2022 In accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the Company. The
statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section
139(5) of the Act is responsible for exprassing opinion on Lhe linancial statements under
section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescriped under section 143{10) of the Acl. This is stated to have been done by
themvidethair RevisedAuditReportdated 30May2022.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have decided not to conduct
the supplementary audit of the financial statements of Scooters India Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2022 undersection 143{6) (a} of the Act,

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place : NewDelhi
Diate: 19/09/2022 (5. Ahlladini Panda)
Principal Director of Audit
Industry & Corporate Affairs,
New Delhi
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ANNEXURE-4
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The company's philosophy of Corporate Governance is aimed at safeguarding and adding
value to the interest of its various stakeholders including that of shareholders, lenders,
employess and public at large. SIL is committed to good Corporate Governance o ensura
that all functions of the Company are discharged in professionally sound and competent
manner. SIL has also adopted the Guidelines issued by DPE on Corporate Govemance.

A. SIL'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Over the past few years, the transition in the Indian business environment, coupled with
liberalization and changing market conditions, hasled to a fundamental shift in the
Management's approach lo enhancing shareholder value. In this context corporate
governance has attained paramount importance for ensuring fairness, transparency,
accountability & responsibility o all stakeholders. Company believes thal all its operations
and actions must serve the underlying goal of enhancing overall shareholder value over a
sustained period of ime.

B. Code of Business Conduct & Ethics

The Board of Direclors of the company have adopled a Code of Conduct and Ethics for
Directors and Senior Management incorporating best practices in Corporate Governance.
The Code is also available on website of the company www.scootersindia.com. In terms of
Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI Listing regulations, 2015 a coenfirmatien from the CMD/CED
and CFO regarding compliance with the code by all the Directors and Senior Management
is given in Annexure.

C. Whistle Blower Policy

Scooters India Limited has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy to establish procedures for
the submission of complaints or concerns regarding financial statement disclosures,
accounting, intemal accounting controls, auditing matters or unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud or violations of the Company's Code of Conduct.

D. CEO/CFO Certification

In terms of regulation 17(8)of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 the Certification by CMD)
CEOQ and CFO of the financial statement has been oblained and attached as Annexure 44,

E. ComplianceCertificateoftheAuditors

Scooters India Limited has annexed to this report a Certificate obtained from the Statutory
Auditors M/s Amit Guptad Associates, Company Secretares regarding compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI Lisling
Regulations, 2015. (Annexure — 48).

J/
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2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS \
The Board of Directors of the Company as on 31.03.2022 is comprise of six directors, two of
whom are part time official Director, nominated by Govt. of India. Executive directors on the
Board of SIL include Chairman & Managing Direclor and Director Finance
(AdditiocnalCharge). one Independent Director was appointed on Board, nominated by GOl
w.ef 02.11.2021 and one executive/Chairman /MD was appointed with effect from
23.04.2021.

FAMILIARISATION & TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS

SIL believes thal a Board, which is well informed / familiarised with the Company and ils
affairs, can contribule significanily to effectively dizcharge its role of trusteeship in a manner
that fulfills stakeholders' aspirations and sccietal expectations. In pursuit of this, the
Directors of the Company are updated on changes/ developments in the domestic/ global
corporate and industry scenaric including those pertaining to statutes / legislations &
economic environment and on matlers affecting the Company, lo enable the lo lake wall
infformed and timely decisions. Visits to Company facilities are also organised for the
Directors. 5IL, in order to keep ils directors appraised with the developments in the industrial
sector, amanges skill development program for the directors from time to time. The
Company also trains its board of directors regarding its business as well as the risk
parameters of the business during the board meetings. Presentations are also made io
educate the direclors regarding their duties, responsibilities, powers and roles under various
statutes.

SIL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING - 2020

The SIL Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading, approved by the Board of
Directors, inter alia, prohibits trading in securities of the Company by Directors and
employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the
Company.

COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN
REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND REGULATION 46(2)(b)TO (i) OF LISTING REGULATIONS

Sr. | Particulars Regulations | Compliance | Key Compliance observed

No. Yes/No )

1. Board of 17 Yes, excepl | » Composition and Appoiniment of
Directors regarding Directors

composition |« Meetings and quorum
Review of compliance reports

# Plans for orderly succession for
appointments

= Code of Conduct

« Fees/! compensation to non-
executive Direclors

= Minimum information to be
placed before the Board

» Compliance Certificate by CEQ
and CFQ

» Risk assessment and risk
managemeni pian
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Performance evaluation of
Independent Directors
Recommendation of Board for
each item of special business

Maximum 17A Yes « Directorships in listed entities
MNumber of
| Directorships
T Audit Committee | 18 [Yes(wef |« Composition
13.02.2020) | « Meetings and gquorum
» Chairperson present at Annual
General Meeting
= Roie of the Committee
Momination and | 19 Yes (w.e.f Composition
Remuneration 13.02.2020) Chairperson present at Annual
Commillea General Meeting
= Meelings and quorum
= Role of the Committee.
Stakeholders 20 Yes Compaosition
Relationship Chairperson present at Annual
Committea General Meeting
Meetings and quorum
Role of the Committes
Risk 21 N/A » Composition
Managlemanl = Meelings and quorum
Committee * Role of the Committee
Vigil Mechanism | 22 Yes » Vigil Mechanism for Directors
and employees
= Direct access to Chairperson of
| Audit Committee
Related Party 23 Yes = Policy on Matenality of Related
Transaclions Party transactions and dealing

with Relaled Parly Transaclions
Prior approval including omnibus
approval of Audit Committee for
Related Party Transactions.
Periodical review of Related
Party Transactions

Disclosure on Related Party
Transaction
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Subsidiaries of
the Company

24

N/A

Appointment of Company's
Independent Director on the Board
of material subsidiary

Review of financial statements and
investments of subsidiary by the
Audit Committes

Minules of the Board of Directors
of the subsidiaries are placed at
the meeting of the Board of
Directors

Significant transactions and
arrangements of subsidiary are
placed at the mesting of the Board
of Directors

\

10.

Secretarial Audit

247

Yes

Annual Secrelarial Audil Report
No material unlisted subsidiary
incorporated in India.

11.

Obligations with
respect [o
Independent
Directors

25

Yes
(w.e.f.
13.02.20
20)

Maximum directorships and tenure
Meetings of Independent Director
Cessation and appointment of
Independent Directors
Familiarisation of Independent
Direclors

Declaration from Independent
Directors that he / she meels the
criteria of independence
Directors and Officers insurance
for all the Independent Directors

12.

Obligations with
respect to
employees
including Senior
Management,
Key Managerial
Personnel,
Directors and
Promoters

Yes

Memberships / Chalrmanships in
Committees

Affirmation on compliance of Codea
of Conduct by Directors and Senlor
Disclosure of shareholding by non-
executive Directors

Disclosures by Senior
Management about potential
conflicts of interest

Mo agreement with regard to
compensation or profit sharing in
connection with dealings in
securilies of the Company by Key
Managerial Personnel, Director
and Promoter

13,

Other Corporate
Governance
Requirements

27

Yes

Compliance with discretionary
requirements

Filing of quarterly compliance
report on Corporate Governance

J

55



&

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

14. | Website 48(2)(b) Yas = Terms and conditions of \
to i) appointment of Independent
Director

» Composition of various
Committees of the Board of
Directors

e Code of Conduct of Board of
Directors and Senior
Management Personnal

» Details of establishment of Vigil
Meachanism / Whistle-blower

policy

» Policy on dealing with Related
Party Transactions

»  Policy for determining material
subsidiaries

» Details of familiarisation
programmeas imparted to
Independent Directors

A.List of Directors
Name of Director Tenure No of MNo. of other
other | Committee ship
director

ship | pember | Chairman

Whole time Functional Director

ShriRupesh Telang, CMD 06.10.2016 1 " =
Shri Mukesh Kurmnar 30.08.2020 1 1

Part-time Non Executive Director (Official)

SmtRamakant Singh, Directar 10.11.2020 1 1

GO Nominee

Shri Mahendra Pratap Singh, Independent | 28.01.2020 2 2 1
Director

SmtRakesh Sharma, Independent 28.01.2020 1 3 -
Director

Raj Kumar, Indipendent director 02:11.2022

Government of India, Ministry of Heavy Industry & Public Enterprises, Department of
Heavy Industry vide its order no 3(20)/2013-PE-VI dated 2Bth January 2020 has
appointed Smt. Rakesh Sharma and Shri Mahendra Pratap Singh as Mon Official
Independent Directors on the Board of the Company and henceforth the Company is
in compliance.
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/’_ Number of Board Meetings & Attendance record of Directors at Board Meetings \
and Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors met six times during the financial year 2021-22, The details
of the Board Meetings are as under:

" — 272"'J z?a“’J 274" | 2757] 276" |277 BM| 278" | 279" BMI280" BM| 281st | 49" AGM
| DietorgPMdatedBMdated BM | BM | BM | daled | py | dated | dated | BM | dated
™ Irectors| o7 05.21| 28.06.21| dated | dated | dated |12.11 21 dated | 10-01:22{ 13.01.22| dated |29.12.2021]

20.07.21{14.12.2121.10.21 20.42.24 14.02.22

Total
Strength -
1| Mr. Rupsesh P P P P P P P P P P P
Tetang,
Chalrman
2 | Shri Rama MA MN.A. MA. P P P P P P P
Kant Singh
GOI
Momines
Direclar
3| 5hr Mukesh | M.A. M.A, MA. P P P P P P P P
Kumar
Diractar
Finance
(Addtianal
Charge)
4| Smi. Rakesh P P P P B A P WA P P P
Sharma,
Independent
Diractar
51 5hni P P P P P P P M.A P P P
Mahendra
Pratap
Singh,
Independant
Diractar
& | Mr. Raj W& | NA Mi& & NIA P P P P P P
Kumar

B. Presence of Directors in Board Meetings and other commiltee meeting and Annual
General Meeling held during the year
F: Prasent, A: Absent, NA: Not Applicable

C. There has not been a gap of over four months between two Board Meetings and
atleast one Board Meeting was held in each quarter of the financial year.

Board Committees
In view of Independent Directors appointed on the Board of the Company, the Company is

presently having functional Audit Committes & Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The
Committess were reconstituted after their appointmeant of Shri Mahendra Pratap Singh and Smt.
Qakash Sharma by Governmant of India, Ministry of Heavy Induslries & Public Enterprises, )
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Department of Heavy Industry has vide its order No. 3(20)/2013-PE-VI dated 28.01.2020 | for the
period of three years or till further orders,

The company has three committees- the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee & Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company
acts as the Secretary to all the Committees.

The gquorum for the meetings is either two or one-third of the members of the commitiees,
whichever iz higher.

Audit Committee
The Audil Commillee comprises of four direclors oul of which three are Non-Execulive

Independenl Directors and one isMNon Execulive Direclor. Shi Mahendra Pratap Singh acts as
the chairman to the Commiltee. The Company Secrelary acts as lhe Secretary of the commiliee,
The Chief Financial Officer, the Exiernal and Internal Auditors are the regular invitess. The
Composition of the Audit Committee meets the reguirement of the Regulation 18 of SEBI
{LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

The Composition of the Audit Committee:-

Audit Committee
Mame of Committee Date Of
members Categery Appointment

Non-Executive - Independent )
Mahendra Pratap Singh | Director,Chairparson, 13-02-2020

Rakesh Sharma Non-Execulive - Independent Director, Member, 13-02-2020

Rama Kant Sngh Non-Executive - Nominee Director, Member, 22-04-2022

Mon-Executive - Independent Director, Member, 22-04-2022

Raj Kumar

Terms of Reference and Powaers:
All the members of lhe Commillee have sound knowledge of linance and accounts. The terms of

raference and powers of tha audil committea covers areas mentionad under Regulation 18 SEBI
{(LODR) Regulations, 2015and section 177 of the Companies act, 2013 (hereinafter referred as
“the act”). The Committee observes the Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of
its financial information 1o ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and
credible.
- Recommends the appointment and removal of external auditor, fixing audit fees and also
approval for payment for any other services.
Reviews the quarterly, half yearly annual financial stalemenls with the managemenl before
submission to the Board.
- Reviews the external and internal auditors, and adeguacy of intemal control system with the

\_ J
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=~ Reviews the adequacy of internal audit function including the structure of the internal audi
depariment, staffing and seniority of the official heading the depariment, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit.
Reviews the findings of any internal investigation by the Internal Auditors inta matters where
there is suspected fraud.
Discussion with External Auditors before the commencement of Audit about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.,

- Review of company's financial risk management policies also fo look into the reasons for
substantial defaults in payments to depositors, shareholders and creditors.

Meetings and Attendance:-
During the year ended on 31 March, 2022, Five committee meetings were held on 28 June,

2021, 14 august, 2021, 21 october,2021, 12 November, 2021 and 14 February, 2022 here all
members were present,

Sl no. Name of the Member Position Number of | Number of
meetings held Meetings
Attended
1 Mahendra Pratap Singh Chairman 5 | 5
2 Rakesh Sharma Member 5 | 5
3 Rama Kant Sngh Member 5 5
Raj Kumar

Momination and Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of four directors, three directors are non-executive
independent directors and one is Non-Executive Director, Shri Mahendra Pratap Singh acts as
the chairman of the committee. During the year ended on 31* March 2022, three meetings were
held on 28.08.2021, 20.07.2021 and 12.11.2021and all members were present, The details are
as follows:

Sl no. Name of the Member Position Category
1. Shr Mahendra Pratap Chairman Mon-Executive Independent Director
Singh
2, ﬁ :ﬁﬁi%:.ﬁ.ﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁﬂﬂf?ﬂ_ﬂ. Member | Non-Executive Independent Director _
3. Shiri. R K Singh Member MNon-Execulive - Nominegea
Director, Member,
4, Shri Raj Kumar Member Mon-Executive Independent Director

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee compnises of four directors, three directors are non-
executive independent directors and one is Mon Executive Director. Shri Raj Kumar Singh acts
as he chairman of the committee. During the year ended on 31* March 2022, one meaeting was
held on 28.06.2021and all members were present. The details are as follows:

Sl no. Name of the Member Position Category

1. Shri Raj Kumar Chairman Mon-Executive Independent Direclor

2. shri Mahendra Pratap Member Mon-Executive Independent Director

gSingh ] R

3. Smt. Rakesh Sharma Member Mon-Executive - Nominee
Director,Member,

4. Shri. R K Singh Member Mon-Executive Independent Director j
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[D. Information supplied to the Board \

The board is presented with all the relevant information on various vilal matlers affecling
the working of the company, as well as those that require deliberation at the highest
level. Extensive information is provided on various critical items such as:
*  Production, sales and capital expenditure budgets and updates,
sales, investments and financial performance statistics,
review of zone-wise business
guarterly Results of the company,
staff matters, including senior officers appointments and extensions,
legal proceedings by or against the company including show cause, demands,
notices etc.,
Share transfer and demat compliance,
Minutes of Meetings of Audit Committee and other Committee of the Directors,
R&D efforts of the company,
labaur matters and human resources issues,
any material default in financial obligation to and by the company or substantial non-
payment for goods sold by the company,
vigilance and related matters,
write-off and disposal of capital items,
legal compliance reperting system and other such matters
fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrence, any matenal effluent or pollution
problems
= transactions involving payment towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual
property
= Skills fexpartise (Compatancies of tha Board of Directors

The following is the list of core skills [ expertise / competencies identified by the Board of
Directors as required in the context of the Company's business and at the said skills are
available with the Board Members:

il Knowledge on Company's businesses (Manufacturing), policies and culture
{including the Mission, Vision and Values) major risks [ threats and potential
opportunities and knowledge of the industry in which the Company operales.

ii} Behavioral skills-altributes and compelencies to use their knowledge and skills lo
contribute effectively to the growth of the Company,

i) Business Strategy, Sales &Marketing, Corporate Governance, Forex
Management, Administration, Decision Making,

iv.) Technical / Professional skills and specialized knowledge In relation to Company's
business.
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3. GENERAL BODYMEETINGS:
The last three Annual General Meetings of the company were held as under:-
| S.No| Year Location Date Time
1 |2020-| Registered office of the company al
21 | Lucknow-Kanpur Road (16th Mile Stone), | December 29, 10.30 a.m.
Saraojini Nagar, Lucknow-22600 2021
2 ; ;
5019- Registered office of the compan . September 28] 10:30 a.m
2020 |¥ at Lucknow-Kanpur Road (16th Mile 2020
Stone), Sarojini Magar. Lucknow-22600
Registerad office of the company at 12:20p.m
20181\ |icknow-Kanpur Road (16th Mile Stone), | September 27
3o|2018 Sargjini Magar, Lucknow-226008 2019
Special Resolution {if any} & Postal Ballot:
AGM Dale Special Whether put Details of Person who
Resolution through Voting Pattern | conduct Postal
Postal Ballot
Baillot
27.9.2018 ONE NO MLA N.A
27.9.2019 OME NO LA MN.A
28.9.2020 ONE NO MLA, N.A

4. REMUNERATION POLICY:
The following are the details of the remuneration paid to Directors for the year 2:

(Amount in Rs.)

MName Designation & | Sitting Salary Benefil & Total
Pericd Fee {Rs.) Contribution
to PF/Pension
Others
Mr. Rupesh | CMD/23.04.208 - Mil Mil Mil
Telang 1
till date-

Apart from the Sitting Fees which is paid in accordance with the Aricles of
Association of the company, all other remuneration pald to Direclors are in
compliance with Govl, orders issued from lime Lo time.

J/
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GEMERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

Annual General Meeting

_Date and Time
Financial Calendar

December 30, 2022 :12:30 p.m.

1* April 2021 to 31* March 2022

Venue through VC/OAVM

Book Closure date Not availed by the company

Other details

Listing of Equity | BSE, DSE (de-recognized w.ef 19.11.2014)

BSE, Stock code

505141

Registrar & Transfer Agent

SkyLine Financial Services Private Limited
0-153/A,1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-
1, NewDelhi-110020

Email: compliances@@skylinerta.com

Dematerialization of
Shares (as on 31.03.2021)

NDSL 1| 1728 (418804490
CDsSL || 1793 (459651)
Physical 5966 (49932155)
Outstanding GDR/ADRs/ NIL

Warrants or any

Convertible Instruments

Conversion date & likely MN/A

impact

Flant Location

Lucknow-Kanpur Road,16th Kms. Mile Stone,

Post Bag No.23(G.P.O)P.0O. Sarojini Nagar,
Lucknow 226008
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/’_ 5 SUMMARY OF SHARE PRICES OF SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED (MONTHLY)
Scrip Code :505141

\

Company : SCOOTERS INDIA For the Peried: April 2021 to March 2022

; ] i,
Mt ngn High LFI'W I:‘-Il:fee Mo.of P:HD Tu;ﬂ [=liverable ;}Lt:l:l::: s:i]?:_d il:llur::ﬂ
Price | Prica| Price Price | Shares Trad Chuantity Traded
st {Ra.) ary Low Cpen
21-Ape 36,4 36,4 1225 [|pa 58035 Ras  fRo00s31 LEnEs 1000 B.15 24
£1-May  FH8 38,9 REEd . @940 &2h62 1023 [IsEGEIT (22062 1080 720 465
21-dun D45 Mo4A5s psa a7 A5 10E001 1208 M128624 10600 100 4,85 =3
21=Jdul 374 A 35 08 6 150683 1613 |BO2G30A 150633 100 f.8 1.4
21-Aug  |BEE M005 BP26B5 [PE05 57126 B0 2074775 57126 100 74 -2 75
£1-30p 3635 PE4 33.7 35.3 Bahd OAT  |308s857 REG64 100 a7 =105
21-Chct 3626 PE8s pPaz2s PaEs 71628 1060 2518304 71628 100 ar -3
21=Now 3.9 35,4 32 2.38 45015 a7 |1584054 5615 100 21 1,55
21-Dec |33 1545 P15 4.2 GE5ZT 1003 1880853 56521 100 3.95 1.2
22-Jan .5 EEET 34.25 137982 1780 |R055353 137962 100 BTS 025
22-Feb [23.7 [35.85 a2 [31.55 ABDAE BES |1542180 DR 1060 675 -2.15
22-Mar 3155 pB47sS poz (1 45 &1410 g2 J200E3 7 51419 100 4 55 41
6. DISCLOSURES:

1. Details of non-compliances, penalties and strictures by Stock Exchanges / SEBI/
Statutory Authorities on any matter related to capital markets during the last

_ three years:
sr Action : Details of action taken
Né taken Details of violations e.g. fines, warning letter, | Remarks
" by debarment, etc.
Penalty of Rs. 977040/- | BSE wide email
levied vide letter no. | dated September
" BSE Non  Appointment  of | LISTICOMPIREGZ2T(2) & | 24, 2020
* | Limited | Independent Directors REG 17 to 21 / Sep-18 | approved the
505141/960/2018-19 daled | waiver of penalty
October 31, 2018.
Penalty of Rs. 875560/~ | BSE vide email
levied vide letter no. dated September
i BSE MNon  Appaintment  of | LIST/ICOMP/REGZT (2) & | 24, 2020
* | Limited | Independent Directors REG 17 to 21 / Dec-18 | approved the
505141/1083/2019-20 walver of panalty
_dated January 31,2019. |
Penalty of Rs. 955800/ | BSE vide email
levied vide letter no. dated September
i B3E Nen  Appointment  of | LIST/ICOMPIREG27 (2) & | 24, 2020
© | Limited | Independent Directors REG 17 1o 21 [/ March- | approved the
189/505141/37/2019-20 waiver of penalty
| dated May 02, 2019.

J/
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B3E

Nen Appointment of

lavied vide letter no.
LIST/ICOMP/REG27 (2) &

‘Penalty of Rs. 966420/-

September 24, 2020
approved the walver

We | Limited | (opandent REG 17 to 21 / June- | of penalty
19/505141/15772019-20
dated August 19, 2019.
Penalty of Rs. 977040/- | BSE vide email dated
; levied vide letler no, September 24, 2020
.. |BSE | ]on p‘:rfggm"“e”‘ of | LISTICOMP/REG27 (2) & | approved the waiver
* | Limited Directors REG 17 to 21 [/ Sepl- | of penalty
19/505141/219/2019-20
dated October 31, 2019,
Penalty of Rs. 977040/~ | BSE vide email dated
. levied vide letter no, September 24, 2020
i | BSE m‘; ‘;ﬁg’gﬁt‘“&”t of | LISTICOMP/IREG27 (2) & | approved the waiver
* | Limited Dlrestors REG 17 to 21 [/ Dec- | of penalty
19/505141/219/2019-20
dated February 03, 2020,
Penally of Rs. B853140/- | BSE vide email dated
. levied vide letter no. September 24, 2020
vii. | BSE mz_r; ':Eg::ltmam o | LIST/ICOMP/IREG27 (2) & | approved the waiver
© | Limited Dir‘&gtﬂm REG 17 to 21 |/ March- | of penally
20/5051417219/2019-20
dated July03,2020. |
; Penalty of Rs. 536900/- | BSE vide email dated
viii. | BSE m‘;pgﬁgg:ﬂ"“e”t of | \gvied for quarter ended at | September 24, 2020
| Limited Birsctors June 2020 approved the waiver
of penalty
; . | Penalty of Rs. 214760/- | BSE vide email dated
b | BSE :‘g“'fgggful?:nwﬁ levied for quarter ended at | September 24, 2020
Limited st Eamrniiag June 2020 approved the waiver
of penalty
Penalty of Rs, 542800 The Company has
levied for quarter ended at | made request for
BSE MNon Appointment of | September 2020 waivgr as
X | Limited Independent appointment of
Directors Independent Direclor
is o be made by
| N | Government of India
. Penalty of Rs. 127440/- | The Company has
. | BSE Non-mmpl[anpa ! levied for quarter ended at | made requast for
X | Vimitey | e, coonsBtulion: o September 2020 waiver
audit committee
Penalty of Rs. 542800/- The Company has
levied for quarler ended al | made request for
. lm@sE Non Appointment of | December 2020 walue;r as
Aii. Limited Independent appointment of
Directors Independent Director

s 1o be made by

Government of India )
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Penalty of Rs. 542800/- | The Company has
levied for guarter ended at | made request for
BSE Non Appointment of | March 2021 waiver as
xlil. Limited Independent appointment of
Directors Independent Director
Is to be made by
Govarnmenl of India
Regulation 6(1) Penalty of Rs. 36580/ | The Penally has nol
levied up to guarter ended | been paid and the
MNon-compliance with | December 31 2020 Company has made
xlv BSE requirement to request for waiver.
" | Limited | appoint a qualified
company secretary
as the compliance
officer
Comments of the
S Action Details of action taken g;anﬁﬂt;:g
N- taken | Details of vollations e.g. fines, warning letter, pany
s by debarment, atc. Seerctary on the
: actions taken by
the listed entity
A ; Penalty of Rs. 1,08,200/- | The Company has
BSE Non sampliant with Reg, levied made reqguest for
i. Limited 6(1) for the quarter ST
ended March 2021
; ; Penalty of Rs. 1,07,380/- | The Company has
" BSE Nok compliart with Reg, levied made request for
il Limited 6(1) for the quarter S
ended June 2021
=5 Non compliant with Reg. r'e?a[;ty of Rs. 22420/- | The Company has
i | B5E 1§(1) for the quarter | '®V1© made raguest for
Lirmnited walver
ended September 2021
Quarterly MNon | Penalty of Rs. 5,36,900/- | The Company has
v BSE Compliance for  Jue | lavied made requeast for
’ Limited | 2021, Reg. 17(1) as on waiver
20.08.2021 _
Non-Compliance under | Penalty of Rs. 11,800/- | The Company has
W BSE Reg, 29(2)/29(3) for the | levied made request for
3 Limited | month ended August walver
2021
MNon-Compliance Penafty of Rs. 542800/- | The Company has
vi BSE Submission status for | levied made request for
: Limited | September 2021, Ren. waljver
17(1) as on 22.11,2021
Non-Compliance under | Penalty of Rs. 11,800/~ | The Company has
vii BSE Reg. 29(2)/29(3) for lhe | lavied made request Tor
* | Limited | month ended November waiver
2021

>/
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Mon-Compliance Penalty of Rs. 542,800/~ | The Company has made
BSE Submission siatus | levied request for walver
vill. | for December 2021,
Reg. 17{1) as on
21.02.2022
Penalty of Rs. 542800 | The Company has made
; levied for gquarter ended | request for waiver as
o BSE mndg;ai%ﬂ:tlmentm at SBP'EHTIEEF 2020 appointment of
= Limited Direciors Independent Director is
to be made by
Government of India
Penalty of Rs. 127440/- | The Company has made
BSE Non-compliance | | vieq for quarter ended | request for walver
X. Limited with the constitution at September 2020
of audit committee
Penalty of Rs. 542800/- | The Company has made
] levied for guarter ended | request for waiver as
i E_SE mn;r;#ﬁ;::mmenl oF al December 2020 appointmeant of
2 Limited Giraciors Independent Director s
to be made by
| Govemmentofindia _
Penalty of Rs, 542800/~ | The Company has made
levied for quarter ended | request for waiver as
xii BSE mﬂggﬂﬂ:imentnf at March 2021 appointment of
" | Limited Directors indepandent Director is
lo be made by
Government of India
Regulation 6(1) Penalty of Rs. 36580/ | The Penalty has not
levied up to quarter | been paid.
Mon-compliance ended December 31
il BSE with requirement to | 2020
* | Limited appoint a qualified

company secretary
as the compliance

| officer
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2 Inter-se relaticnships between Directors and Key Managerial Persennel of the \
Company:None

3. Materally significant related party transactions which may have potential conflict
with the interests of the Company at large:None

Material financial and commercial transactions of senior management, where
they may have had personal interest, and which had potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large:None

5 Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified
institutions placement:Not Applicable

6. Credit rating(s) obtained by the Company for any debt instrument, fixed deposit
program or any other scheme involving mobilization of funds:None

7. None of the Directors of the Company has been debarred or disgualified from
being appointed or continuing as a Director by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate
Affairs/ Statutory Authorities, which has also been confirmed by Mis Amit Gupta
& Associates, Practising Company Secreiaries,

8 Confirmation by the Board with respecti to the Independent Directors is not
provided as there are no Independent directors appointed on the Board.

9. Information with respect to "Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and
Hedging Activilies' is provided in the 'Reporl of the Board of Direclors &
Managemen! Discussion and Analysis' and in the 'Notes to the Financial
Statements’, forming part of the Report and Accounts,

10. The total fees paid by the Company and its subsidiaries to Messrs. Asijak
Associates LLP, Statutory Auditars of the Company, and all other entities forming
parl of the same nel work, aggregateRs.3Lakhs,

H. Compliance Cfficer under the Lisling Regulations 2015: Mr. Rupesh
Telang, CMD {Additional Charge).

8. MEANS OFCOMMUNICATION:

a) Quarterly Results (Approved in the]l The Company has published the
meeting held on13.08.2021,| Quarterly Resulls in Financial Express &
12.11.2021,14.02.2022&30.05.20 | Jansatia.

22

b} Management Discussion & Analysis | This forms part of Direciors' Report
which is posted to the shareholders of
the company.

c) Webslle www.scootersindia.com
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10.

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

The Company has signed agreement with both NSDL and CDSL on18th Jan_ 2002
and 25th Feb.2002 respectively. The company has been allotted I1SIN Code No. INE
959E01011 and since then the trading of company's shares is being done in
dematerialized form. The company has appointed M/s Skyline Financial Services
Pyt. Ltd. D-153/A, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - 1 New Delhi -110020, as

its Registrar and Transfer Agent(RTA).

DISTRIBUTION OF 87272255 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL AS ON:31/03/2022
Nominal Value of Each Share: Rs. 10

Share or Mumber of | % to Total|Share or % to Total
Debenture holding |Shareholders| Numbers | Debentura Amount
Nominal Value holding Amount
(Rs.) 1%5-1
T Z 3 4 5
__}Jp To 5,000 _ 9307 04 62 9161510.00 1.05
5007 To 10,000 532 3.19 25112500.00 2.88
10001 To 20,000 119 1.24 1758910.00 0.20
20001 To 30,000 43 0.31 761550.00 0.09
30001 To 40,000 36 0.15 498930.00 0.06
40001 To 50,000 17 0.12 505080.00 0.06
50001 To 1,000,000 :_25 D.E{E 1322480.00 0.15
1,00,000 and 21 017 856195840.00 95.11
Above
Total 10100 100.00 872722550.00 100.00
5. Category % age
Mo N _
1 Central Government 93.87
2 Mationalized Banks & Financial 0.03
Institutions
3 Corporate Bodies 0.04
4 Indian Public and Others 6.08
Total 100.00

\

6&



&

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

-

Other Disclosures \
All transactions entered into by the Company with related parties as defined under the Act
and the Ligting Regulations, during the financial year 2020-21 were in the ordinary course
of business and on arm's length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of
Sectiont88 of the Act. There were no materially significant transactions with the related
parties during the financial year which were in conflict with the interest of Company.
MNecessary disclosures as required under the Accounting Standards have been made in
the Financial Statements. The Board has approved a policy on materiality of related party
transactions and on dealing with related party transactions and the same is disclosed on
the website of the Company at the link
hitps:/fwww.scootersindialimited . com/investors/Related Party Transaction Policy.pdf

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established necessary Vigil
Mechanism as required under Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations for Directors and
employees lo reporl concemns about any unethical behavior. The said policy has also
been disclosed on the website of the Company the link

https:flwww. scootersindialimited/investors/Whistie Blower Policy.pdi

11. ANY QUERY ON ANNUAL REPORT

Secretarial Department, Scooters India Limited, Lucknow- Kanpur Road (16th Mile
Stone), Post Bag 23(G.P.0) P.O. Sargjini Nagar, Lucknow-226008.
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ANNEXURE-4A

CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 17(&) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATION, 2015

I, We have reviewed financial statements and Cash flow Statements for the year
2021- 22and to the best of my knowledge and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material factor contain statements that might be misleading.

2 These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affair
and are in compliance with exisling accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations

Il.  There are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transaction entered into by the
company during lhe years which are fraudulent, illegal or viclalive of the company's
code of conduct,

. We accept respansibility for establishing and maintaining controls and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of the intemal control systems of the Company and we
have disclose lo the auditors deficiencies in the design operation of internal cenlrol,
if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to rectify
these deficiencies.

V. We have indicated to the Auditors:
1. Significant changes in internal control during the year.

2  Significanl changed in accouniing policies during the year and that the same
have be end is closed in the notes to the financial statements; and

3 Instances of significant Traud of which we have become aware and the
invalvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a
significant role in the company’s internal control system.

Sd/- Sd/-

Rupesh Telang R.S Tiwari

Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
DiM: 09218342 Seooters India Limited

Scoaters India Limited

Place:June 22, 2022

Dale: Lucknow
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To,

ANNEXURE4B
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

The Members
Scooters India Limited

We, Amit Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries, have examined the compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance by the company, for the yvear ended on 31st March,
2021, as stipulated in Regulations 17 o 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and
para G, D and E of Schedule YV to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the "Listing Regulations").

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY:

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

OUR RESPONSIBILITY:

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of
the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents
maintained by company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the
compliance with Corporate Governance raquirements,

We have carried oul an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Corporate Governance Cerlificate issued by the Institute of The
Institute Of Company Secretaries Of India (the "ICSI"), in so far as applicable In the case and
as per the Guidance Notes on ICS| Accounting Standards which requires that we comply
with the ethical requirements and other rules issued by the ICS].

OPINION:

Bazed on our examination of the relevant records and according to the informalion and
explanations provided to us and the representations made by the Management, we certify
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of
Schedule V to the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31st March, 2021 excapt:

The Company has complied with requirements of Regulation 17(1){b) of SEEI {LODR)
Regulations, 2015 with regard to composition of the Board of Direclors comprising of at |east
50% Independent directors during the Financial Year 2021-22,

The company has not complied with clause (i) of sub-regulation 2 of Regulation 46 with
respect lo details required lo be placed on lhe website of the Company,
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3. SEBI Circular CIR/MRED/DP/10/2015 dated June 05, 2015 is yet not complied. The company
& RTA are in process of reconciliation of data for submission with NSDL/CDSL.

4. Delay In filling of vacancy caused by resignation of Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer.

We state that such certificate Is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Amit Gupta& Associates
Company Secrelaries

Sd/-

CS Amit Gupta

(Praoprietor)

FCS — 5478, C.P. 4682
UDIN:FOO5478D002653453
Dated:08.12.2022
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/" Annexure — 5\

FORM NO. MR.3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31%' MARCH, 2020

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Acl, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED,

(CIN - L25111UP1972G0I1003599)

Lucknow — Kanpur Road, (16th Mile Store), Sarojini Nagar, Lucknow — 226 008, Uttar
Pracesh, India

We have conduclted the secretarial audil of the compliance of applicable stalutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED
(hereinafter called “the Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evalualing the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
exprassing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute bocks, forms and retumns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, Its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit,

We hereby report thal in our opinion

The company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 317 March,
2022complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also

i, That the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subjsct lo the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2022
according to the provisions of :

i, The Companies Act, 2013 ({the Act) and the rules made lhere under;
i. The Securties Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 {'SCRA’) and the rules made there
under ;
iil. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv., Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borowings - Mot applicable as the Company has not made any such
transaction during the financial year under review;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1892 ("SEBI Act'):-

a.The Securites and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

\_ Y,
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b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, \
2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable as the Company has not issued
any Securities during the year under review;

d. The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosura
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

e, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefils)
Regulations, 2014 and the Securties and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employes Benefits} Regulations, Regulations 2021 [w.e.f.13.08.2021] - (Not applicable
to the Company during the review period);

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debl Securlies)
Requlations, 2008 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of MNon-Converlible and Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulalions,
2021 [w.e.f 09.08.2021] - (Not applicable to the Company during the review period);

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars lo an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents} Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies and dealing with client - Not
Applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to Issue and Share
Transfer Agent during the financial year under review;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021 [w.e.f. 10.06.2021] - Not applicable as the Company has not made
any delisting during the year under report;

I, The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 -
(Mot applicable to the Company during the review period);

vi. The following other laws as may be applicable specifically to the company :

{a) Motor Vehicles Act 1988 and the Central Motor Vehicles Rules, 1989 to the exlent of
product certification before production and from time to time primarily in respect of
three wheelers manufactured by the Company.

(b} The Environment Protection Act, 1986

{c) The Water (Prevention and Control Pollution) Act, 1974

(d} The Air {Prevention and Control Poliution) Act, 1881

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following :

(i' Secretarial Standards issued by The Inslitute of Company Secretaries of India; and

(i} Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited,
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, subject to the
following observations:
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Complian Deviation Observations/iremarks

r ce s Practising Company Secretary

. requirem
ent

N (Regulati

o ons/circul
arsiguidel
ines
including
specific
clause)

1 Reqgulatio At least Government of India, Ministry
n 17(1)b) half of the of Heavy Industry & Public Enterprises,
of SEBI board  of Department of Heavy Industry vide its
{L‘ODH}I dll’ECIDIFS of arder no 3{23]‘!’2013'F’E'V| dated 28th
Regulatio the listed January 2020 has appointed Sml.
ns, 2015 entity does Rakesh Sharma and Shri Mahendra

not consist Pratap Singh as Non  Official

of Independent Directors on the Board of

independe the Company and Mr. Raj Kumar as

nt directors Non Official Independent Directors on
the Board of the Company w.ef
Movember 02, 2021, however
considering total strength of six, the
reguirement of at least haif of Directors
as Independent is not met unti
cessation of Mr. S K Singh as a Non
Executive official director nominated by
Govermnment of India w.ef March 24,
2022,

2 Regulatio Advance Delay in advance intimation 1o Stock
n 289 read Intimation Exchange for  consideration  of
with to stock Unaudited financial results for the
Requlatio exchange gquarter and half year ended at
n 33 of short by September 30, 2021
SEEI three days
(LODR) for
Regulatio considerati
ns, 2015 on of

Unaudited
financial
results for
the quarter
and  half
year
ended at
September
30, 2021
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\

L3

Regulation 31(2) .'

of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015

Hundred percent of
shareholding of
promoters is not in

| dematerialized farm

3,37.90,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
issued lo Government of India are still in
physical form

Requlation 38 of |

SEBI

& Rule 19(2) and
Rule 194 of the
Securities
Conlracts
{Regulation)
Rules, 1857

(LODR) |
Reqgulations, 2015 |

| specified  in

MNon compliance of
the minimum public
shareholding
requirements

Rule
19{2) and Rule 194
of the Securties
Contracts
(Regulation) Rules,

1957

The Government of India holding is 93.87%
and public shareholding is only 6.13% as
against the requirement of minimum 10%
public shareholding

Schedule XX

Listing o |
| for 18.90 lacs equity

Securities On
Stock Exchanges

[Read
regulation 7(1)a),
62(1)(a),

104{1}(a) and
183(3)(a)] of SEBI
(ICDR)

In principte approval
& Listing Application

' shares alloted to

with |

Regulations, 2018 |

Government of India
not obtained/made

Entire 8,19.24.029 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each held by Government of India and
23,671,461 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each
held by Special National Investment Fund
{transferred from GOl to meet miniumm
public shareholding requirement) are not
listed on stock exchange

Raegulation 6(1) of
SEBI
Requlations,
2015 A listed
entity shall
appoint a qualified
company
secretary as the
compliance officer

| The
(LODR) |

vacancy
caused by
resignation of

| Company Secretary
| weef. June 01, 2020

has been filled by

the Company with

| 2021,

effect from July 20,
Further the
position of Company

| Secretary &
| Compliance  officer

has became vacant
with effect from April

| 01, 2022.

The Company Secretary is not Compliance

Officer.
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Regulation 48 of
SEBI {LODR)
regulations, 2015:

The website of the
Company has
found not updated
and functional

The website of the Company has found nm\
updated and functional

Regulation
17(1)ib) of SEBI
{(LODR)
Regulations, 2015

At least half of the
board of directors
of the listed entity
does not consist of
indepandeant
directors

Government of India, Ministry

of Heawy Industry & Public Enterprises,
Department of Heavy Indusiry vide its
order no 3(20)/2013-FE-VI dated 28th
January 2020 has appointed Smt. Rakesh
Sharma and Shri Mahendra Pratap Singh
as Non Official Independent Directars on
the Board of the Company and Mr. Raj
Kumar as Mon Official Independent
Directors on the Board of the Company
w.el. November 02, 2021, however
considering total strength of six, the
requirement of at least half of Directors as
Independent is not met until cessation of
Mr. 5 K Singh as a Non Executive official
direclor nominated by Government of India
w.e.f. March 24, 2022

The following are the detalls of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/
materal subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard
Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through vanous circulars) under the aforesaid Actsf
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder.

Comments of the
Sr. Action : S Details of al:ti?n taken e.q. | Practicing Company
No. | taken by Details of voilations | fines, warning letter, | Secretary on the
debarment, etc. actions taken by the
MNen compliant with | Penalty of Rs. 1,068,200/~ | The Company hax made
Reg. &1} for levied request for waiver
. L quarter ended March
2021
Mon  comphant Penalty of Rs. 1,07.380- | The Company hos made
i BSE Limitag | FE8  6{1) for levied request for wajver
quarter  ended
2021
Mon  compliant Penalty of Rs, 22420/~ | The Company has mode
i BSE Livaitad Reg. 61} for lavied request for waiver
quarter
September 2071 .
Cluarterly Penalty of Rs 536900~ | The Company has made
. Compliance  for levied request for waiver
W | BSELmited. | oy heg. T7(1) ason
20.08.2021

/
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~

Mon-Compliance under | Penalty of Rs. 11,800~ | The Compony has made
. HEE Limitad Reg, 29(2)/25(3) for the | levied request far waiver
month ended August
2021
Non-Compliance Penalty of Rs. 542800/~ | The Compony has mode
: Submission status for | levied reguest for waiver
vi. Sk September 2021, Reg
17(1) as on 24.11.2021 - - L
Mon-Compliance under | Penalty of Rs. 11,800/ | The Eompany has  mode
Vil BSE Limited ;el:‘gl;tiﬂ'[z}ﬁ?fi} fz:a.:::l sk s
MNavember 2021
Non-Compliance Penalty of Rs, 542800/~ | The Company has made
. Submission status for | l2vied request for waiver
i BSE Limited December 2021, Reg.
17(1) as on 21.02. 2022
Penalty of Rs. 542800 levied | The Compony has mode
for quarter ended &t | request for waiver as
. MNan intment  of | Seplember 2020 appointment ,
Lo BSELined Jndepem:!t Chrectors = Irfj"epeﬂdcm Director is n{
be made by Government of
India
Non-comaiisnce | with Penalty of Rs 127440/ | The Company has made
. b levied for quarter ended at | reguest for waiver
X. BSE Limited | the constitution of September 2020
audit committes
Penalty of Rs. 542800/~ | The Compaony has mode
levied for guarter ended at | request  for  waiver os
Moen  Appointment of | December 2020 appaintment 1)
xl. R3E Limited Independent Cirectors Iri’;ependenr Director is tr‘:-
be made by Govermment af
. Indic
Penalty of Rs 542800/- | The Company haey made
levied for quarter ended al | reguest for  waiver s
N , Man ointment of | March 2021 appointment o
iond BSELinied Indep;rl;znt Directors Irﬁ:’pendent Director is ".;
be made by Government of
India
Regulation 6{1} Penalty of Rs. 36580/- levied | The Penalty has not been
up o quarer ended | paid
Non-campliance  with | December 31 2020
wiii. B5E Limited | reguirement to appoint

a qgualified company
secretary as the
compliance officer
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/’_WE further report that;

» The Board of Direclors of the Company isduly constituled with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors. Where as in terms of the provisions of
Section 149(4), 149(5) & 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment And Qualification OF Directors} Rules, 2014 and the SEBI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) regulations, 2015, the Company is
required to have Independent Directors on the Board of the Company and theGovernment
of India, Ministry of Heavy Industry & Public Enterprises, Department of Heawy Industry
vide its order no 3(20)/2013-PE-VI dated 28th January 2020 has appointed Smt. Rakesh
Sharma and Shri Mahendra Pratap Singh as Non Official Independent Directors on the
Board of the Company, the company has appeinted Shri Raj Kumar as independent
director with effect from 02.11.20211 the Company is in compliance as per the said
requirement, The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the perod under review were carried out In compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

» Adeguate notice is given lo all directors to schedule the Board Meelings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance, however
we have noted delay in sending agenda papers in few cases, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningiul participation at the mesting.

# Majority decisien is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are
capiured and recorded as part of the minutes,

We further report thatthesystems and processes in the company require further
strengthening and improvements, considering the size and operations of the company to
enable effective monitoring and ensuring of compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the following maledal evenls having
bearing on the affairs of the Company were noted:

i. In terms of the communication vide letter no. F. Mo, 3(1)2020-PE-V| dated 28.01.2021
from DHI, the operations of the Company had been stopped and process for closure of
SIL has been initiated and the Company has ceased to be a going concemn and
necessary steps as per the said communications are being implemented.

For Amit Gupta & Associates
Company Secretaries
Sd/-
Amit Gupta
Proprietor
Membership Mo. : F5478
C.P. No. 4682
UDIN -FO05478D002653343
Date: 08.12.2022
Place: Lucknow
\Nme: This report should be read with the letter of even date by the Secretarial Auditors.

J/
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Tao,
The Members,
SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED,

Lucknow — Kanpur Road, (16th Mile Store), Sargjini Nagar, Lucknow — 226 008, Uttar
Pradesh, India

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record |s the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinien on these secretarial records based
on our audit,

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance aboul the correctness of the contents of lhe secretarial records.
The verification was done on fest basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books
of accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events eic.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as fo the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company,

For Amit Gupta & Associates
Company Secretaries

Amit Gupta

Proprietor

Membership No. ; F5478
C.P. No. 4682

UDIN - FOD5478D002653343
Date: D8.12.2022

Place: Lucknow
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Declaration regarding disqualification of Directors

All the Directors of the Company have submitted a declaration stating that they are not
debarred or disqualified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of Companies. Mr. Amit Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary has submitted a
certificate to this effect. (ANNEXURE-6).

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT.

IntermsofthelistingReguiations, IherebyconfirmthatalitheBoardmembersandSenior
Management Parsonnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the respective
CodesofConduct, asapplicabletothemfortheyearended at 31 March, 2022,

Sd/-
Rupesh Telang
Chairman &ManagingDirector

Place: Lucknow
Date; 08.12.2022

81




&

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

ANNEXURE-6

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[As per Clausa 10{i) of Para C of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 read with regulation
34(3) of the said Listing Regulations].

Ta,

The Members,
Scooters India Limited,
Lucknow

We have examined the status of directors for the year ended on March 31, 2022,
pursuant to the provisions of Clause 10(i) of Para C of Schedule V of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("the Regulations").

It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion regarding the legality of debaring or
disqualification by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) or any such statutory authority.

Our examination was limited to a review of the relevant records of the Company and
website of MCA, stock exchange(s), SEB| and other relevant statutory authority (ies)
(specify) as specified in Annexure to this certificate and it is solemnly the responsibility of
Directors to submit relevant declarations and disclosures with complete and accurate
information in compliance wilh the relevanl provisions.

In our apinion and to the best of our infermation and according to our examination of the
relevant records and the explanations given to us and the declarations and disclosures
made by the Directors and the representation given by the Management, we cerify that
none of the directors on the board of Scooters India Limited, have been debarred or
disgualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the
SEEBIMinistry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority during the year ended
at March 31, 2022,

For Amit Gupta & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sdi/-

Amit Gupta

Proprietor

Membership Mo. : F5478
C.P. No. 4682

UDIN - FO0O5478D002653420
Date: 08.12.2022

Place: Lucknow

\
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Particulars of Employees

ANNEXURE-8 \

Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules 2014
(Amt. in Lakhs)
Mamae(s) of | Designatiorj Remuneration|Remuneration| % Increase Ratioof | Ratio of the
Whole time in Year in year in Remuneration remunerati
Directors 2021-22 2020-21 Remuneration] to median on to Net
fin Rs.) {in Rs.) remunarationy  Profit
of employees; (2021-22)
Shri Rupeshl CMD - - - - -
Tatang
Shri Mukesh| Director - - - -
Kumar | (Finance)
(Amt. in Lakhs)
Name of Remuneration in Year] Remuneration in Year] % increase in
Independent Directars 2021-22 2020-21 remuneration
Shri M.F Singh MIL MIL -
tAmt. in Lakhs)
Mame of Remuneration inYear] Remuneration in Year] % increase in
Independent Directors 2021-22 2020-21 remuneration
Smt Rakesh MIL MNIL -
[Sharma
(Amt. in Lakhs)
Mame of KMP Remuneration in | Remuneration in Year Ratio of the
Year 2021-22 2020-21 remuneration to
MNet Profit{2021-22)
Shri Raj ShekharTiwari 540 8.50 -

i  The median remuneration of employees in the year 2021-22 and 2020-21 is Rs.
Miland Rs.NIL respactively. The percentage increase in the median remuneration is
0 %.

The company had Nil numbers of permanent employeeson the rolls of the
Company as on the year ended at March31,2022.

=

J/
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The Company's Net Profit stood at Rs.7.58 crores at the year ended as on March
31, 2022 as compared o Met Loss of Rs. 48,64 crores (or the year ended on March
31, 2021.The percentage of reduction in the Met loss of the Company is (-)
115.58%.The growth in the remuneration of WTD and KMP was Nil% and Nil%
respectively in year 2022 as compared to 2021.The Increase in remuneration was
as per DPE Guidalines,

Variation in the Market Capitalization and Price Earmings ratios as al the closing of
current year 2022 and previous year 2021

2021-22 2020-21
Markel Cap 27398.15 Lakhs 31767.10 Lakhs
Price Earnings Ratiog  0.86 -6.42

During the year under report, no employees received remuneration in
excess of highest paid directors.
There were no employees during the year under repert whose disclosure id required

under rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014

\
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thereto.

ANNEXURE-9 \

FORM NO.ADC.2
Particulars of Contracts/arrangements entered with related parties

Pursuant te clause (h) of sub-regulation {3) of section 134 of the Act and Rules 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

This form discloses the parficulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-secticn (1) of sectioni88 of the
Companies Act.2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso

1 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: There
are no contracts or arrangements entered during the year under report, which were
not at arm's length basis,

2 Delails of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:
The contracts or arrangements entered during the year under report at arm's length
basis are as follows:

Name of the MNature of Mature of Duration of Salient | Amount
Relaled Party Relationship Contract / the Contract/ lerms
arrangement/ | Arrangement/
Transaclion Transaclion
NIL MIL MNIL NIL Mil MIL

Place : Lucknow

Date :08.12.2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/-

Rupesh Telang

DIN: 09218342

Chairman & Managing Director
Scooters India Limited

&9
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/’ Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022

\

AS AT AS AT
Particulars Note No. 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.in Lakhs Rs.in Lakhs
A. ASSETS
{Iy Non-current assets
ta) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 1,553,67
(b) Right of Use Assets N | 4.94 4.94
(b) Capital work-in progress 2 - 191.37
(c) FinancialAssets
(1} Non-Currentinvestments 3 - -
(i} Trade receivables 4 15.09 B0.79
(lii) Loans - -
{iv) Others -Security Deposits 5 103.64 140.71
{d) Deferred tax assets (Met) 6 - -
{e) Othemon-current assels T - mmmmeme
Total non-current assets (1) 123.67 1951.17
{ll) Current assets
{a) Inveniories 8 - 638.74
(b) Financial Assets
(i} Current Investments - -
{ii) Trade receivables g - B.6d
(i) Cash and cash equivalent 10 4.678.43 412412
(iv) Bank balance other than (iii} above 10 1,654.74 1569.18
{v) Loans - -
{vi) Others (Loan & Advances) 11 - 152
{c) Current lax assels (Net) - -
(d) Other current assels 12 1,715.36 1881.04
Sub-total current assets 8,048.53 8,223.25
Mon-current assets held for sale -
Total current assets (ll) 8,151.38 8,223.25
Total assets (1+I1) B,275.05 10,174.42
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{I) Equity
{a) Equityshare capital 13 8.727.39 8,727.39
(b) Other Equity - -
(i) Equity component of other financial instruments - -
(ii)Retained Earnings 14 (7,924.06) (8,682.05)
(li)Resarves 14 4.90 4.90
{iv) Money received against share warrants - -
(v} Other - -
Total equity (1) 808.2350.24
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a (Il) Liabilities \

(1) Non-current liabilities
{a) Financialliabilities
() Borrowings 15 5,700.00 5,300.00
(i) Lease Liabilities 16 3.19 294
(iii) Trade payables - -
(iv)O0ther financial liakilities - -
() Nen-Current Provisions 17 18.01 30347

{c) Deferred tax liabilities(Met) - -
(d) Other non-currentiiabilities 18 227.32 288.852
Total Non-current liabilities (1) 5.948.52 5,895.23

(2) Currentliabilities
(a) Financialliabilities
(i) Short Term Borrowings 14 - -
(i) Lease Liabilities 20 - 0.25
(i) Trade & Other payables 2 -
(A)Total outstanding
dues of micro
enterprises and small
enterprises 21 2.84 2.54
(B) Total outstanding
dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises

and small enterprises 21 616.51 1370.88
(iv) Other financial liabilities 22 - 400.00
(b) Other current hiabilities 23 893.95 2403.44
{c) Current Provisions 24 - 51.54
(d) Current taxhiabilities (MNet) - -
Total currentliabilites (2) 1,518.30 4.228.95
Total liabilities (I1)=[{1)+{2)] 7,466.82 10,124.18
Total equities andliabilities (1+11) 8.275.05 10.174.42
Accompanying Motes 1 to 52 are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Scooters India Limited
For Asija & Assoclates LLP
CharteredAccountants e Sdi-
Firm Registration No.-003155C! C400011 {(Mukesh Kumar) (Rupesh Telang)
Director Finance Chairman & Managing Director
Sdl- (Additional Charge) (Additional Charge)
fF_F‘:t Kamal Kr. Ferwani) DIM : 08778135 DIN: 08218342
J'I."IE.. N”DEI'T 407987 Place; Lucknow Fiaca: Lucknow
E-Li.l'-
Flace: Lucknow
Date: 30" May, 2022 E‘.:RFst;:ull.-ri ::::Lultant (Finance)

UDIN: 22402082ALBXW1478

\_ Y,
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/" Statement of Profit And Loss For The Year Ended 31st March, 2022
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars NoteNo 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.in Lakhs Rs.in Lakhs

. Revenuefrom Operations 25 - 500.31
Il. Otherincome 26 2618 84 437.99
. Total income(l +II) 2618.84 938.30
IV. Expenses:
Cost ofmaterials consumed 27 493 23.59
Cost of sales atpetrol pump 27 - -
Changes in inventories offinished goods, 28 506.75

Work-in-progress and disposalstore
Excise duty on saleof goods - -
Employee benefil expense 29 B05.24 2,796.98

Finance cost 30 558.05 -
Otherexpenses 31 B892.63 2,258.98
Depreciation andamortisation expenses 32 216.63
Total 1860.85  5802.93
Less: Expenditure Included inabove capitalized - -
Total Expenses (IV) 1860.85 5,802.93
V. Profitf{loss) before exceptionaland items (4,864.63) (4,864.63)
(4,864.63) (4,864.63) (4,864.63) (4,864.63) and tax (llI-IV)
V. Exceptionalltems 757.99 =
Vil. Profi{loss) beforetax{V-V1) 757.99 (4,864.63)
Wil Tax expense:
(1) Currenttax 33 - B
(2) Deferredtax - -
IX. Profit {Loss) from the perid from continuing (757.99) (4864.63)
operations (VI-VIII)

X. Profit/{Loss) fromdiscontinuing operations - -
X1, Tax expense ofdisconfinuing operations - -
XII. Profit/{Loss) from Discontinuing operations - -
XlL{after tax){X-XI)
XIV.Profit/(Loss) for the period (IX+XII) {757.99) (4864.63)
X\, Other Comprehensive income
M. (1} ltems that will nol be reclassified to profil orloss
-Gain/{Loss) of definedbenafit Obligation - (87.41)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
B. (i} Items that will be reclassified to profit orloss
{ii) Income tax refating to items that will be reclassified
to profit orloss

XVI. Total comprehensive income for theperiod (XII+XIV) (757.98) {4.952.04)

\.

\

J
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As per our report of even date attached
For Asija & Assoclates LLP

CharteredAccountants
Firm Reglstration No.-003155C/ C400011

Sdl-

{CA Kamal Kr. Ferwani)
Partner

M. No.- 402082

Place; Lucknow
Date: 30™ May, 2022
UDIN: 22402982ZALBXW 1478

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation); 34

(1) Basic 0.87 (5.67)
(2) Diluted 0.87 (5.67)
X*WII. Earnings per equity share {for discontinuedoperation ):
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted
XVIl.  Eamings per equity share (for discontinued & conlinuingoperation):
(1) Basic 0.87 (5.67)
(2) Diluted 0.87 (5.67)

Accompanying Notes 1 to 52 are an integral part of the Financial Stalements

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Scooters India Limited

Sd/-

(Mukesh Kumar)
Director Finance
(Additional Charge)
[3IM - DBTTE135
Place: Lucknow

Sdl-
(Rupesh Telang)
Chairman & Managing Director
{Additional Charge)
BN 09218342
Place: Lucknow

/-
(R.S Tiwari)
C.F.0O/ Consultant (Finance)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T-MARCH-2022
PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 32 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

\.

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities ;
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax
Adjustmenl for:
-Depreciation
i} For CurrentYear
ii} For Prior Period
-Prior Yearitems
-Loss Writtenolf
-Provision for Loss in Value of Investment
-Provision / Written offl for Doubtful Debis
-Pravision for Inventory obsolescence
-Excess Pravision Written Back
-Interest Income
-Interest Pald
-[Profit)/Loss in exchange rate change
= Prnlitiﬂ_crss on safe of fixed assets
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for ;
-Trade receivables
-inventories
-Othear current assets
-Financial Assets - Others
-Other Mon-Current Assets
-Other Non-Current Liabilities
-Trade payables
-Other Current Liabilities
-Finanoial Assels - Loans & Advancoes
-Capital Reserve
-Provisions

Cash generated/{loss) from operations :
Less Taxes Paid ;
Provision for Income Tax
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flow from Investing activities :

-Increase in fixed assets/capilal expenditure
-Sale/ Adjustments of fixed assels
-Interest Incomea
-Other Fixed deposit with banks realised/{mads)
-(Loss)/Gain in exchange rate
Net cash used in investingactivities
Cash flow from financing activities :
-Interest paid
-Increase in share capital
- Repayment of term loan to G.O.1
-Recaipt of long term loan from-G.O.L
-Settlement of GOl Loan
-Viabllity Gap Funding frem MNRE
-{Decreasa) Increasea in cash credil limits
MNet cash used in financing activities
Mel increase / (decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents (Opening balance)
Cash and cash equivalents (Closing balance)

Year Ended 31,03.2022 Year Ended 31.03.2021

Rs.in Lakhs
757.99

(83.55)
558,05

47450

1232.49

54.34
638.74
165.68
37.07
102.85
(61.25)
(754.37)
(1504.74)
1.52

ESET.GEH (1B62.86)

(630.037)

(630.37)

1744.73

83.55
(85.55)

(568.05)

{558.05])
554.31

412412
4678.43

1853.98

(437.99)

(907.37)

(1708.04)

Rs.inLakhs
(4864.63)

216.63

8.31

164193
(3222.70)

(10.65)
497.79

18.82

(1.70)
74513

{ﬁ.QZEi (2043.24)

(1179.46

(1179.46)

4100.00
4025.62)
98.50

4124.12 j
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Notes to the Cash Flow Statement \
1. CashFlowStatementhasbeenpreparedonindirectMethodasperindianAccounting

Standard 7 on Cash Flow Staterment issued by Instilute of Chartered Accountants of
India

2  CashandCashEquivalent:

Cash and cash equivalents 2021-22 2020-21
Cash in hand 0.06 070
Cheqgues in hand -

Balance with Banks
Current accounts 4677.07 412215
Deposit with Bank with original maturity 1.30 1.27
of less than 3 months

4678.43 412412

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(R.S.Tiwari) (Mukesh Kumar) {Rupesh Telang)
Chief Finance Officer Director Finance ChairmanandManagingDirector
{Additional Charga) {AdditicnalCharga)
DIN-08778135 DIN -089218342

Intermscfourreportofevendate
For Asija & Associates LLP
CharteredAccountants

FR Mo. - 003155C) C400011

Sd/-
(CA Kamal Kr. Ferwani)
M. No.- 402982

Place : Lucknow
Date:30thMay 2022
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Name of the Company: SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

Statement of Changes in equity for the period ended 31st March, 2022

A. Equity Share Capital

(1) Current reporting period (Rs. In Lakhs)
Balance at the Changesin Restated Changesin | Balance at the end of
beginning of the Equity Share balance at equity the current reporting
current reporting Capital due the share period
period to prior beginning of capital
period errors | the current during the
reporting current
period year
8,727.39 a 0 8] 8,727.39
_(2) Previous reporting period S — _— S
Balance at the Changes in Restated Changes in | Balance at the end of
beginning of the Equity Share balance at equity the current reporting
current reporting Capital due the share period
period 1o prior beginning of capital
period errors | the current during the
reporting current
period year
B,727.39 0 0 a B, 727.39

92



SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

CTEIT : i vzt i pesed Bijisedal
W o
L
BB L5L | B 5L | 0o &g ) fung
(FEm o 180
[£ T

oo
i A ! _| e R
ETIE B
oo | N
U 4 R
Somgi g WA

Gupnéai weuna
#g Jo Susgfiag
000 18 FREEL PRIEIE

00 Jnue posd g |
m e Bununoom

A 6] s

gy | ] 5o zas'sl [ 06F ponad
Buppansiai juarma
i e Bupuudag

o LB i

fEnTEn hizin) TR
fpoadz | 10 SR USRS =] ERE) e
SR CiT T e mipay | eEuRRung Al feanzmu punadens Bupais
g | PSRl g fupesen woy e | s vy | aspeEgEeeg fiisedgl | R P Kz
puwie 1] W wnEERy | agding 0w IETTE R =0 ubrong Hi FRMESEH | unME | Aumsy | usiduns ey
panjazad |8 BURN AT shmgny | wowenpey | easE Agnitg WEIRIRN IR0 | pumE A0 | wmguneg | KR Ayrha ars
17aL LEELT B [dang pus FRUTER

T piuRd Hupand juane] 1

Aunb3Jsayio g

. /

93




SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

( 286207 <ON W L LODOFD /OGS LEDD - ON M4 N\

liAE L SIUELNOIDY PasapEY D MoLanT - saeld
( 4 uﬂ% X v2) J771 seetzossy @ elisy Jod ZZ0Z Aep WioE - 2eqg
SjEpUanBIopode L InooSLLIELL |
ZrealZ60- MId Selelie0-NId
{afuzys reUCIPPY) {afiimyn EuoTIppY)
Jomaag BuiBeuey pue uBLLITBLD SOUBUIS JOjTRUI0 lEajoEauBUIA IR
(Bueja) ysadny) (4ewny ysaynpy) (1emi] ‘s H)
-Ps =Ps -ps
lsrisael [ . _ lsozavel | “ [0 [ pojiad
_ Bugpodas Juaams oy
| { | | | | ! i0 pus 3l 1@ aueeg
Ivarpar's] [varsog'sl | (] s, B
| | | | Bupng issTilaiieid 19
+{ shl|Lms
._ | ooa ! PRUIRMRI T BaLIRL
.. E | 000 | b
[vegl | | | | (el | o [ ek
PR DU 0 BT
AASUFLBITLDT] (B3],
0o [ " poysed Suppiodas
unr ayj ja bunufeq
| EITR ﬂ...__m_.mn n_mqm_.m.nm.
1 oo [ 113 pousd Joyd
52 Azyjed fiununnaoe
—— ! . e . 5 U] ssbumgy
lovsze'el loooesel | ey poyar
Bunodas Jueunz
aig) o Bupuuien
a1y 18 sauejEg
SRR
by jo
EBLIEERE
(e FERHELY EJuSUI}sL)
Apzedg) w salipzy AT L) [Eeveuy | Joswgoge
EMELEM 3oy fuejsuen wofy | smmeEgadwe) | ssusgELng JumEy urodurg | Gapuad
alEys | EusdEgEIdeo] g wEeye | sapgybnoen | g uiicun fposcg) | anmesy i Fetiow
yeupede ol @UAAp | smding iejad | jusumaayg HTE LT sbuprey | smusesy | wnuesy | sdessy | Jusedies | ujExidde
padsases | JoSwe sl | eREyDG | uogEnEved | AM0HE fpnb3 130 peuEled | =y) | sequnoeg | o (EpcE) Aqnirg HiEYS
| piog | deweny | " SMiding e saniassy |
{syxm] pojsad Bupuodas
oy snojaald (z)

. 7,

94




&

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

-

1%

Annexed to and forming part of the Accounts Note

No.- 1

\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has consistently applled accounting
palicies to all periods. On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
through a nolification, amended Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 and lhe
amendments are applicable for financial perods commencing from April 1, 2021. The
Company has evaluated the effect of the amendments on its financial statements and
complied with the same,

SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTING:

(i)

(i)

(i)

Basic assumptions:
The accounts have bean prepared under historical cost convention on accrual
basis and as per applicable Mandatory Accounting Standards.

All agsets and liabililies have been classified as current or non-current according
to the Company's operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il of
Companies Act 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation In cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months
for the purpose of current non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Going concern:

As per lhe Stralegic Cabinel decision closure of the company is in process.
Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises, Department of Heavy
Industry, New Delhi (Gavt. of India), through letter No. F. No. 3(1)/2020-PE-VI,
dated 28/01/2021 communicating their decision regarding closure of the
Company along with shutting down all the operations as per DPE Guidealine vide
OM dated 14/06/2018, the Board of Directors in compliance of the same in their
meeting held on 11/02/2021 has decided to proceed with closure of the
Company. Accordingly, the Company has ceased to be a going concemn entity
and financial statements of the company for the current financial years has been
prepared on the Non-Going Concern basis. The company in compliance of the
above letter auctioned most of the Assets and Inventory items during the year
by following specified guideline and also in the process to complete the
remaining closure proceeding at the eariest,

Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements In conformity wilh Ind AS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions, that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities
and disclosures of confingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial

J/
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(iv)

(v)

statementis and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the yeam\
presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised and future periods affected.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As already stated above that through lelter of Ministry of Heavy Indusiries &
Public Enterprises, Department of Heavy Industry, New Delhi (Govt, of India)
closure of the Company is in process. Most of the Fixed Assets of the company
has been auctioned during the year through MSTC by following specified
guidelines. After said auction only Land, Building and Solar Plant is appearing in
the Books. Accounting Treatment of the remaining assets has been done by
following relevanl provisions of IND AS as below: -

1. Freehold land is measured at cost and is nol depreciated,

2. As per the provisions of the IND AS 105, remaining assels has been shifted
in a separate disposable group and classified as "Assets Held for Sale”
under Mon-Current Assets. Furter, depreciation on fixed assets has not
been charged during the year.

3. An Independent Registered Valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies
(Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 has been appointed by the
Company for the valuation Solar Power System, as per report of the
Registered Valuer value of the Solar Power Sysiem has been adjusted
appropriately,

The tools manufactured departmentally/ purchased valuing individually below
Rs.1,00,000 and having estimated useful life less than one period being of
consumable nature are accounted for as revenue expenditure under relevant
nalural heads.

Caonstruction period expenses exciusively attributable to projects are capitalized.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD- IND AS 116
The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as
lease as defined under ind AS 116.

The Company as a lessee

The Company enters into an arrangement for lease of land and buildings. Such
arrangements are generally for a fixed period bul may have extension or
termination optlions. The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease, at its inception. A contract Is, or contains, a leaze If the
contract conveys the right to -

a) control the use of an identifiad asset,
b} obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset,

and

c} direct the use of the identified asset

g6
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The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period ufh
lease adjusted with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such
oplion is reasonably certain, The Company makes an assessment on the
expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether it
Is reasonably ceriain that any optiohs to extend or terminate the contract will be
exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as
any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term costs
relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying
asset to the Company's operations taking into account the location of the
underlying asset and the availability of suitable altermmatives. The lease term in
future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current
economic circumstances, The Company assesses whether it has the right to
direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Company recegnises a right-of-use assel
("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability on the balance shest. The right-of-
use asset is measured at cost, which comprises of the initial measurement of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease,
and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date
(net of any incenlives received).

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets using the written down value
method | and straighi-line methad in respect of certain subsidiaries) from the
lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-
of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the
right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the
present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company's
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liabllity are made up of fixed payments {including in substance fixed),
variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expecied to ba payable
under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably
certain to be exercised.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and
equipmenl leases across the Company. These are used lo maximize
operational flexibility In terms of managing the assets used in the Company’s
operations. The majorty of extension and termination options held are
exercisable only by the Company and not by the respeclive lessor.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments
made and increased for inlerest. It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment
or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When
the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in
the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already
reduced lo zero.

a7



&

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

The accounting policies applicable to the Company as a lessor in lha\
comparative period were not different from Ind AS 118

fwi} BORROWING COST:
Borrowing cost directly attnbutable in relation to acquisition, construction of
assets that takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are
capitalised as part of the cost of such assets upto the date when such assets
are ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged as expenses in
Profit & Loss Account in the year in which lhey are incurred,

{wii) INVESTMENTS:
a) Current Investments are valued at cost or markel value whichever is lower,

b) Mon-Current Invesiments are valued at cost. However, in case of permanent
diminution in the value of invesiments, suilable provision is made in the
books of accounts.

€) Income from dividend is recognized in books of accounts when the right to
receive such dividend is established.

d) Investments in subsidiaries, joint controlled entities and associates in

separate financial statements,
In accordance with Ind-AS transitional provisions, the company opted to
consider previous GAAP carmying value of investments as deemed cost on
transition date for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
in separate financial staterment,

{viii) PROVISIONS:

a) PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS: As a measure of conservatism
generally provision is being made for Dabtors where there is no transaction
for three years or where the company has intiated legal case against
defaulting deblors,

(ix) INPUT CREDIT:
Input credit on eligible Revenue | Capital purchase s taken on receipt of such
materials.

{x) REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue Recognition criteria as per Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contract with
Customers”, Since, the sales recorded should have been recorded as per above
mentioned Ind AS. Thus, entity should incorporate the below mentioned para as
a part of notes forming the parts of accounts. The Company recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue and ts related cost can be reliably measured and it
is probable that future economic benefits will low to the entity and degree of
managerial involvement associated with ownership or effective control have
been met for each of the Company's activities as described below. The
Company baseas its estimates on historical resulls; taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transactions and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Sales of Other Items:

The Company recognises revenues from the sales of Cther ltems (Sale of
Scrap Items/ Fixed Assets/ Inventory/ Other Iltems) on Cash Basis subsecquent
Receipt of requisite details from MSTC. )
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SALES: \

Sales are set up as per the Sale of Goods Act, They represent value of goods
sold from the Corporate Office.

(xi)  Employees Benefit;

Post-Employment Obligations

Defined benefit plans
Contribution to Provident Fund is made to the company's provident fund trust.

The fund is compared to aggregate liability and shortfall if any is additionally
conlributed by the company and recognized as expenses,

Graluily and Leave Encashmenl liabilily is ascerained on actuarial valuation.
However, any excess/deficlt in funds managed by LIC in case of Gratuity as
compared o the acluarial liabilily is recognized as asselliability immedialaly and
the conseguent gainfloss arising from such valuation Is charged to revenue in
the year in which they arise.

{xii) TAXES ON INCOME:

Current Tax: Provision for current tax is made in accordance with the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable profits. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable lemporary differences. Deferred (ax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and incurred tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than ina business combinafion) of
assels and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. The carmying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extenl that it is no longer
probable thal sufficient laxable profils will be avallable to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered,

Deferred lax liabilities and assels are measured al the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the assst
realised, based on tax rates {(and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabiliies and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or setfle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

(xiii) ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME AND EXPENDITURE:
Income and expenditure are accounted for in the current year on accrual basis
under natural heads of account. )
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/r {xiv)

Recent pronouncements

Minisiry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to
the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
as issued from time lo lime. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1,
2022, as below:

g) Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to gualify for recognition as part of applying the
acquisition method, the idantifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must
meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting wunder Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual
Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the
acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of
Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

b} Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of
property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced
whila the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity
will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The
Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition
of its properly, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

c) Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Caosts of fulfilling a contract

The amendments specify thal that the 'cost of fulflilling' a confract comprises the
'costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract
can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples weuld be
direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarficaion and the
Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its
financial statements.

Ind AS 109 - Annual improvemen Ind AS {2021
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the "10
percent' test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant
impacl in its financial statements.

3. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS:

.8

Show Cause Notices issued by various Government Authorities are not
considered as Obligation.

When the demand notices are raised against such show cause notices and
are disputed by the Company, these are classified as disputed obligations.

The treatment In respect of disputed obligations, in each case,are as under:

a) a provision is recoghized in respect of present obligations where the
outflow of resources is probable; )
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b} all other cases are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the pussibiliD
of outflow of resources is remote.

D. Capital Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts
are considered for disclosure.
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1. Amount of Borrowing Cost Capitalised during the year is NIL (Previous Year - NIL)

2. .Plant, Machinery, Egquipment, and Jigs & Fixtures costing individually Rs. 100000 and
below are depreciated fully in the year of purchase. In case of tools where average
estimated useful life is greater than five years but less than ten years, depreciation is
charged @ 20% as was being dene prior to introduction of Schedule |1

3. During the financial year 2015-16, the componentization on Fixed Assels has been carried
out in accordance with provision of The Companies Act 2013, the impact of which is nil.

4, ** The Fixed Assels amounting to Rs. 54.18 lakhs in which are not in active use has been
recorded at its book value which is lower of its net relizable value in the financial year 2015-
16.

5. Regarding leasing of the company owned petrol pump (HPCL) has been temporarily leased
for operations to HPCL w.e.f. 8th November 2016.

6. As company in its notes to accounts has already stated that pursuant to letter No. F. Mo.
3(1)/2020-PE-V1, dated 28/01/2021 issued by the Gowvt. of India, Ministry of Heavy Industries
& Public Enterprises, Department of Heavy Industry, New Delhi, communicating the decision
regarding closure of the Company along with shutting down all the operations as per DPE
Guideline vide OM dated 14/06/2018, the Board of Directors in compliance of the same in
their meeting held on 11/02/2021 has decided to proceed with closure of the Company.
Accordingly, currently has Company has ceased to be a going concern,

In compliance of the above letter, the management had actioned the Assets of the Company
(excluding Building & Solar Power System) through MSTC and realisation of the same has
been accounted for in the Books. Further, Management of the Company is also in the
process o sale the remaining Assets of the Company as per the guidelines at the earliest; in
accordance with the same remaining assets have been shifted in a separate dispcsable
group and classified as "Assels Held for Sale." An Independent Registered Valuer as
defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 has
been appointed by the Company for the valuation Solar Power System, as per report of the
Registered Valuer value of the Solar Power System has been adjustaed appropriately.

Further, as per the relevant provisions of Ind AS 105, depreciation on fixed assets has not
been charged during the year,
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Note No. 2.1 :-

Right-of use assets {Amountin Rs,)  Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Land

E:;:a ssified on adoption of Ind AS 116, as on April 1, 494196.46 4.94
Additions during the year 0,00 0.00
Additions through business combination 0.00 0.00
Deletions during the year 0.00 0.00
Depreciation during the year 0.00 0.00
Translation adjustments 0.00 0.00
Balance as on March 31, 2022 494196.46 4,94

MNote No. 2.2 :-

Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP)

{a) For Capital-work-in progress, following ageing

schedule shall be given: CWIP aging

schedule
- Amount in Rs
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less 1-2 2-3 More than
than1 | years years 3 years
year
Projects in progress 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Projects temporarily suspanded 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance as on March 31, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2022
(o) CWIP completion schedule
Amount in Rs
v To be completed in
Less than 1 12 | 23 More than 3
yoar years years years
Project 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
_ Project 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
‘Closing Balance as on March
31, 2022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

\.
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/’I_'tinte No. 2.3 :-

Intangible assets under development:

{a) Intangible assets under development aging sched

ule
Amount in Rs
Intangible assets under Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
development
Less 1-2 2-3 | More than 3
than 1 years | years years
year | |
Projects in prograss 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.00
Projects temporarily suspended | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
g.:o;:;ngz Balance as on March 0.00 0.00 0.00 i 0.00 0.00 |
{b) Intangible assets under development completion schedule
—_— B Amount in Rs
Intangible assets under To be completed in |
development Lessthan1 | 1-2 | 2-3years | Morethan3 |
_year | years | years
Praoject 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Project 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
g:u;::lnzgz Balance as on March 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 |
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MOTE NO. 3 :
Financial Assets - Non Currant Investments

ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021R
Rs.inLakhs| s.inLakhs

Investment at cost ( Unquoted fully paid )
UP Instruments Limited

1,55,030 Equity Shares (Previous Year 1,55.030 15.50 15.50
Equity Shares) of Rs. 10 each
UP Tyres & Tubes Limited
5,22 800 Equity Shares (Pravious Year 5,22 800 5228 52.28
Equity Shares) of Rs, 10 each

Co-operative Electric Supply Society Limited
5,700 Equity Shares (Previous Year 5,700 0.57 0.57
Equity Shares) of Rs. 10 each

68.35 68.35 |
Less ; Provision for estimated loss in value 68.35 68.35

a.  The Government of India approved participation in the equity share capital of M/s
U.P, Instruments Lid. (A Slale Governmenl Undertaking) to the extenl of R5.15.68
Lakhs, i.e., 49% of equity share capital and the Company/Nominees have so far
investedRs.15.50 lakhs lowards equity share capital (Previous years i.e. FY 2018-
19Rs5.15.50 lakhs). The Company has been intimated that all assets including land,
building and plant & machinery of UPIL has been sold through Committes
constituted by U.P State Government. Accordingly, the possible loss for the
investment of Rs.12.71 lakhs durlng 1996-1987 & Rs.2.79 lakhs during 2004-2005
has been provided for in the Accounts.

b,  The Government of India approved paricipation In the equily shares of M/s
UPTyres & Tubes Lid. (UPTT) (A State Government Undertaking) 1o the extent of
Rs.52 28 lakhs, i.e., 49% of their equity share capital and the Company/Mominees
have so farinvested Rs.52.28 lakhs towards equity share capital (Previous year i.e.
FY 2018-19 Rs.52.28 lakhs). As the net worth of UPTT has become negative, the
estimated realisable value of the shares is considered as Nil. Accordingly, possible
loss in the investment (Rs.52.28lakhs) has been provided for in the Accounts
during 1986-1947.

¢  The company invested Rs.0.57 lakh in the shares of the Co-operative Electric
Supply Society Limited in the year 1984, In absence of any information regarding
the net worth of the company, a provision for the same has been made in the year
2006- 2007,
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/r NOTE NO. 4 \

Trade Receivables

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs | Bs.inLakhs

Unsecured
(i) Debts outstanding for a period exceeding 12months
from the date it becomes due

a) Considered good 15.09 60.79
b) Considered doubtful 415.84 415.84
430.93 476.63
{ii)y Other debts consideredgood - -
430.93 476.63
Less : Provision for doubtful debts 415.84 415,84
15.09 60.79
Trade receivables ageing schedule
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of Total
payment

Unbillad | Not Less B 1-2 23 More

dues Due than& | months | years | years | than3

maonths | -1 year years

(i} Undisputed Trade
receivables = considered good | . ’ = - . : 15.09 15.09
(i) Undisputed Trade |
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit
risk - - - - - - - -
(iil) Undisputed Trade
Receivables — credit impaired = B= i d = d i =
{iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables—considered good . - - N . N - -
T:I Disputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase incredit

risk z |:= B ¥ - = S

(wi) Disputed Trade |

Receivables — credit impaired N = = * = * A15.84 | 415.84
Less:- Prowision for doubtful

debts - | - - - - - 415.84 | 415.84
AsatMarch3t 2022 |- |- |- : - |- 1509 1509

{1 Legal proceedings are in progress for recovery of outstanding in case of 35 parties, the
amount involved, as on 31-3-2022 is Rs, 406.69 Lakhs (Previous year l.e. FY 2020-21
35 parties amounting to Rs. 406.69 lakhs) against which provision has been made.
The company has also initiated legal proceeding against FWL for recovery of royalty

\ dues and protection of SIL rights in Lambretta Trademark.
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NOTE NO. 5
NON-Current Financial Assets - Others
ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022 |[31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs | Rs.inLakhs|
'Security Deposils 27.81 66.40
Less: Provision for doubtful advirecy. 4.07 407 |
23.74 62.33
Other Loans & Advances 79.90 78.38
103.64 140.71
NOTE NO. 6
Deferred Tax Assets
AS AT AS AT
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
As.inLakhs HAs.inLakhs

(A} Deterred tax liability
On account of timing difference with regard to
depreciation.
Total A
(B) Deferred tax Assets
On account of timing difference with regard to
disallowance of provision in Income Tax.
On account of timing difference with regard
to unabsorbed depreciation, scientific
research expenditure and carry forwardlosses
Total B

Deferred Tax Assets (B-A)

In considerallon of prudence, the deferred tax assels have nol been recognized by the Company
in the financial statements in the current year, since It is not virlually certain whether the
Company will have sufficient taxable income in near future against which such deferred tax

assets can be realized because due to Ministty Order Company's Closure process has been
initiated
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'/'_ NOTE NO.7 \

Other Non-Current Assets

ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs| Rs.inLakhs
Capital Advances - .
Advance other than capital advances
1 Unsecured considered good:
a) Security Deposits - .
b) Others - -
2 Unsecured Considereddoubtful - -

Less ; Provision for doubtful advances = =

NOTENO. 8
Inventories
AS AT AS AT
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs | Rs.inLakhs
Raw Materials and Components® - 1,137.30
Stores and Spares - 241.24
Loose Tools and Consumables® - 45047
Wark-in-progress @ - 415625
Finished goods @ - 384.03
Material-in-transit - -
Material under Inspeclion - =
Disposal Stores - 049
Other Slocks # - 7.02
- 2,654.80
Less : Provision for Inventory Obsalescence - 1,888.93
¢ Provision for materal lying with sub-contractor
doubtiul of recovery - 27.13
- 638.74

* *Raw - materials, loose tools and consumables lying with sub - contractors amount to
“28.45 |akhs (Previous year e, FY 2020-21 is Rs. 28.45 lakhs), The Company held no
security in respect of material lying with third parties/contractors to the tune of Rs. 2845
lakhs (Previous vear |.e., FY 2020-21 is Rs.28.45 lakhs).

# Other Stocks includes Petrol Pump of "0.14 [akhs (Previous Year i.e., FY 2020-21is 0,14
lakhs). Thisis 100% provided for

a. In compliance of the Ministry Closure order, all the Inventory Items of the
company have auclioned during the Year through MSTC.
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Trade Receivables

ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022| 31.03.2021
Rs.in Rs.in
Lakhs Lakhs
Unsecured
(I} Debls outstanding for a period less than 12months
from the date it becemes due
a) Considered good - B.G4
b} Considered doubtiul = -
- 8.64
(i} Other debts consideredgood : -
- 8.64
Less : Pravision for doubtful debts 2 -
- 8.64
Trade receivables ageing schedule
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of Total
paymeant
Unbilled | Not Less B 1-2 2-3 Mara
dues Due | than® | months | years | years | than3
manths | -1 year

{1l Undlisputed Trads
recelvables — considered good

years

{ii} Undisputed Trade
Receivablas - which have
significant increase in credit risk

(1} Undisputed Trade
Receivables — credit impaired

{iv} Disputed Trade
Receivables—considered good

" |v} Disputed Trade Receivables
—which have significant
increasa in cradit risk

(vi] Disputed Trade Receivables
- credit impaired

Less:- Provision for doubtful
debts

As at March 31, 2022

110




SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

&

NOTE NO. 10
Cash and Bank Balances
AS AT AS AT
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.in Rs.in Lakhs
Lakhs
Cash and Cash Equivalents :
Cash in hand # 0.08 0.70
Cheqgues in hand - -
Balance with Banks
Current accounts 4 677.07 4,122.15
Deposit with Bank with original maturity of less than 1.30 1.27
3 months* for other commitments
4,678.43
4,124.12
Other Bank Balances
Fixed deposits with banks 137.62 128.06
Deposit with Bank with original maturity of more than 1,517.12 1,440.13
3 months but less than 12 months held
Deposit with Bank with original maturity of more than
12 months held for other commitments**
1,654.74 1,569.19
6333.17 5,693.31

* includes Rs. 1639.78 lakhs (previous year ie. FY 2020-21 is Rs.

sarmarked for Capital Expenditure.

1493 .88 lakhs)

**** includes Rs. 13.59 lakhs (previous year i.e. FY 2020-21 is Rs. 13.59 lakhs) has been
frozen by Indian Overseas Bank in connection with order of court in one legal case,

NOTE NO. 11
Current Financial Assets - Others
AS AT AS AT
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Rs.ln Rs.in
Lakhs Lakhs
Other Loans & Advances = :ig

111




SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

&

/" NOTE NO. 12

Other Current Assets
AS AT AS AT
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Hs.In Rs.in
Lakhs Lakhs
A.  Advances other than capitaladvances
1 Secured consideredgood 0.02 0.01
2  Unsecured considered good:
a)Deposits 27.80 13.82
b) Others advances 1,586.06 1,742.47
{comprising of Advance to LIC, Staffl Advance
and other advances to parties/vendors)
3 Unsecured Considereddoubtful 114.63 121.66
1728.51 1,877.96
Less : Provision for doubtful advances 114.63 121.66
1,613.88 1,756.30
B. Others- Interest accrued on TermDeposits 101.48 124.74
1,715.36 1,881.04
NOTE NO. 13
ShareCapital
AS AT AS AT
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Rs.in Lakhs| Rs.n
Lakhs
Authorised Capital
25,00,00,000 Equity Shares (Previous Year 25,00,00,000) 25,000.00 25,000.00
of Rs.10 each,
Issued Capital
8,72,75,600 Equity Shares B,727.55 B,727.55
(Previous year 8,53,85,500) of Rs.10 each
Subscribed and Fully Paid up Capital
Balance as al lhe beginning of the period 8.,727.23 8,727.23
(B,72,72,255 Equity Shares™ of R5.10 each)
Changes in equily share capital during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the period 8,727.23 B,727.23
Forfeited Shares 0.186 0.186
Advance against Share Capital ' =
B,727.39 B,727.39

*Of the subscribed and paid up capital 8,05,000 shares (Previous year 8,05,000 shares) of

Rs.10 each allotted to the Government of India during 1972-73 &1975-76 as fully paid

pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash.

a. There conciliation of the number of share sout standing at the beginning and at the end
of the reporting period areas follows:
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Particulars As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Number Rs. MNumber RS,

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the BY275500 | 872755 87275500 &,727.55

year
Shares lssued during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

Shares outstanding at the end of the ar27sh00 | 872755 87275500 8,727.55
year

31900000 shares at Rs.10/- each has been issued during financial year 2013-14 under
reference against receipt of Rs.3190.00 lakhs for CAPEX in terms of Revival package
sanctioned by Cabinet Committee of Government of India.

1890000 shares at Rs.10/- each has been issued during F.Y. 2018-19 under reference of
account freezing of interest on the MNon-Plan loan of Rs.1.89 crore released to SIL
during FY 2013-14 from the date of its release to company.

b. Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares
specifying the number of shares held are as follows:

As at Az at
Name of Shareholder 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Mo.ofSharas %of | No.ofShares Heof
held Htl-1dir‘lg held H'Dldlng_
Government of India 81.924.029 83.87 81,924 029 03.87

& Terms/Righls attached to Equily Shares

The company has only ane class of gguity shares havin%a par value of Rs.10 per share,
Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
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/" NOTE NO. 14 \
Other Equity
AS AT AS AT
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs| Rs.inLakhs
Capital Reserve®
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 490 4,90
Changes in the accounting palicy or prior period error - -
Less: Adjustment as per IND AS : =
480 450
Add; Net Profit/{Loss) During The Year - -
Add; Other Comprehensive income - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period 4.90 4.90
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the reporting pencd (8,662.05) (3, 720.99))
Changes in the accounting palicy or prior period error - -
Less: Prior Year Expensa®™ - -
Less: Adjustment as per IND AS X -
(8,682.05) (3,729.99)
Add; Net Profit/{Loss) During The Year 757.89 {4,864.65)
Add; Other Comprehensive income - (87.41)
Balance at the end of the reporting period | (7.924.06) | (8,682.05)
*Share forefeiture adjustment during 1980-81 was Rs.4.90 lakhs
NOTE NO. 15
Non-Current BDHOWl!‘IﬂE
ASAT ASAT

31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs| Rs.inLakhs

Unsecured Loan from Related Party
Loans from Government of India® EL?EJE].DD 5,300,00
5,700.00 5,300.00

* Refer Note Mo, 48

NOTE NO, 16
Non-Current Lease Liabilities

ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021

Rs.inLakh Rs.inLakhs
5

Lease Obligation 3.19 2.94

3.19 2.94
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/r NOTE NO. 17

Non-Current Provisions

ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
As.inLakh Rs.inLakhs
5
Provision for Retirement Benefits
Gratuity - -
Leave Encashments 18.01 30347
18.01 303.47

a. Liability for Leave Encashment has been determined by the management, in

conformity with the principles set out in Ind AS-18.

NOTE NO. 18
Other Non-Current Liabilities
ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakh Rs.inLakhs
s
Advances from Customers 1.90 1.80
Security Deposits 22542 286.92
227.32 288.82
Related Party
Refund of TDS on Interest payable to Government of Indial = =
227.32 288.82

In absence of information from all the vendors with regard to their registration (filing of
memorandum ) under The Micro, Small Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the

information is NIL.

NOTE NO. 19
Current Borrowings

ASAT
31.03.2022

Rs.inLakh
5

ASAT
31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs

Secured

Loans and advances from Banks
State Bank of India
Indian Overseas Bank
Allahabad Bank
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NOTE NO. 20
Current Lease Liabilities

ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakh Rs.inLakhs
s
Lease Obligation | 0.25
: 0.25
NOTE NO. 21
Trade & Other Payables
ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs | Rs.inLakhs
Acceplances - -
Other Trade Payable
MSME 2.84 2.84
Other Payables* B616.51 1.370.88
{comprising of Sundry Creditors (General,
Ancilliary and Others) J
619.35 1,373.72
619.35 1,373.12

information is NIL.

Trade Payables ageing schedule

*In absence of information from other vendors with regard to their registration (filing of
memaorandum) under The Micro, Small Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008, the

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of | Total |
payment
Unbilled | Not Less 1-2 23 More
Due | than1 years years than 3
yaar yoars
I} MSME |
= = - - 2584 2.84
(i) Others
- - - - - G16.51 | 616.51
(i) Disputed duss — '
MEME - - _ N - -
(v} Disputed dues - i
Cithers - - e B - - -
~ As at March 31, 2022 = = ]
= = = z s | §19.35 | 619.35

\.
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NOTE NO. 22
Dther Financial Liabilities
ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs Rs.inLakhs
Related Party
Current Maturities of Long-Term Loan from GOI* ) 400.00
- 400.00
* Refer Note No. 45
NOTE NO. 23
Other Current Liabilities
ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs | Rs.inLakhs
Advances and Deposits@ 44.64 97 .45
Interest accrued but not due - -
Interest Accrued & Due on GOl Loans 558.05 -
Unspenl Balance againsl Workmen Housing Colony® 4232 4232
Other Liabilities and Payables™ 253.94 2,263 67
(comprising of Salary & Wages, Liabilily for
Expenses and Grants)
898.95 2.403.44

@IncludeRs.1.25lakhs{PrevicusysarRs.1.25lakhsjonaccountofadvancedepositedby
warkmenforallotmentofHouseinWorkmen'sColony (Rs, In Lakhs)

* Refer Note No. 33 (v). The details are as follows: 202122 2020-21
Amount recovered so far from workmen 148.36 14836

Less : Expenditure on Workmen's Housing Colony 106.04 106.04

42.32 4232

** Includes Payable to Workmen Housing Colony Rs.3.99 lakhs (Previous Year Rs.3.99

lakhs).
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Current Provision

ASAT ASAT
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs | Rs.inLakhs
Provision for Retirement Benefits :
Graluity - -
Leave Encashments - 45.11
- 45.11
Provision for Others :
Warranty - 643
Income Tax = =
- 51.54

a  Liability for Gratuity & Leave Encashmenl has been determined by the
Management, in conformity with the principles set out in Ind AS-19.

b, Thedstailsofprovisionforwarrantyaregivenbelow: {Rs.In Lakhs)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Opening Balance 6,43 9.95
Add: Provision for the year (net) including additional/ - -
less provision for earlier years

Tatal 6.43 0.95
Less: Payment/Debits 643 3.52
Closing Balance - 6.43
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/r NOTE NO. 25
Revenue from Operation

YearEnded | YearEnded
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs | Rs.inLakhs
Sale of Product
Three-Wheeler - 12543
Spare-parts - 227 44
Petrol, Diesel, Lubricants efc.” - -
- 352.87
Other Operating Revenue
Miscellansous ltems & Scrap - 147 .44
- 147.44
- 500.31
NOTE NO. 26
Other Income
YearEnded | YearEnded
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs Rs.inLakh
S
Miscellaneous Receipts
Sale of !
b) Empties - -
c) Fixed assests and 2363.69
inventory items®
Interest on :
a ) Vehicle advance to employeeas
a) Advance fo Suppliers/Dealers -
a) Term depaosits B3.25 145.66
b) Others 0.03
9.66
Rayally - -
Profit on sale of fixed assets - .
Gain In exchange rate - -
109,44
Excess Provision written back - -
Other receipts B62.16 28267
{comprising of rent recefved, petrol pump recovery, etc. )
TOTAL 2618.84 437.99

auctioned during the Year through MSTC.

\.

*In compliance of the Ministry Closure order, all the Inventory Items of the company have

J
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/" NOTENO. 27
Consumption of Materials

c) Cost of sales at Petrol Pump (a-b)

YearEnded | YearEnded
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
HAs.inLakhs As.inLakhs
(Il Consumption of Materials :

a) Raw Materials and Components
Opening Stock - 1,138.25
Add : Purchases 4.93 22.64
4.93 1,160.89

b) Less :
i) Closing Stock 1,137.30
i) Shortages in inventory written off - .
- 1,137.30
¢) Consumption of Materials (a-b} 4.93 23.59
() Petrol Pump

a) Opening Stock - 0.14
Add : Purchases - -
- 0.14
b) Less : i) Closing Stock - 0.14

ii} Shortages written off
- 0.14

8. The consumption of material is derived as a balancing figure by adding ocpening

inventorywithpurchasesdurningtheyearanddeductingclosinginventory.

NOTE NO. 28
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress, Disposal Stores
YearEnded | YearEnded
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Hs.inLakh Rs.inLakhs
s
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 701.56
Work-in-progress 512.46
Disposal Stores 111.50
A - 1,325.52
Closing Stock .
Finished Goods 394,03
Work-in-progress - 415.25
Disposal Stores - 5.48
B - 818.77
(Accretion) / Decretion (A-B) - 506.75
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/’_ NOTE NO. 29

Employees® Benefit Expenses

YearEnded | YearEnded

31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021

Rs.inLakhs | Rs.inLakhs

Salaries . Wages and Bonus® T 87.71 1 984 78
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 380.05 1,558 40
Staff Welfare Expenses 137 48 253.80
Total 605.24 2,796.98

*Includes stipend paid to the trainees/apprenticesfor the FY 2021-22 is Rs.Nil (FY 2020-21

is Rs. 16.96/- lakhs),

MNote: Refer Note No. 43 regarding interim relief & revision of pay.

NOTE NO. 30
Finance Cost
YearEnded | YearEnded
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs| Rs.inLakhs
Interest on Loans and advances from :
Government of India 558.05 -
Banks - -
Others % =
558.05 -
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/’_ NOTE NO. 31

Other expenses of Manufacturing, Administration and Selling & Distribution

YearEnded | YearEnded
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakh | Rs.inLakhs
s
Consumption of stores, Spares and Tools (0.01) 0.59
Power & fusl 8r. 77 140.00
Rant 0.09 21.74
Repairs:a) Building - 15.73
b) Plant & Machinery - 0.62
c) Others 4.37 518
Fabrication Charges -
Insurance 5.84 7.22
Rates and Taxes - 18.72
Miscellaneous Expenses 486,77 14.41
Research and Developmeant 3.03 95.48
Excise Duty with Cess -
Fostage, Telegram and Telephone 0.25 4.05
Directors’ Silting Fees -
Travelling Expenses 6.65 4.95
Printing and Stationery 0.47 0.87
Board Meeling Expenses - -
Legal Expenses 12.01 2.60
Consultancy Charges 48.65 14.32
Vehicle Running and Maintenance - 0.55
Bank Charges 0.08 0.10
Demands and Interest on Taxes 10.61 .27
Advertisement & Sales Promotion Expenses 0.45 11.52
Freight & Packing Expenses 2510 22.57
Service Expenses (Free Coupon/After Sales Service) - 5.22
Cash Discount & Incentives -
Entry Tax -
Loss in Exchange Rate due to Fluctuation -
Bad and Doubtful Debts, Advances and others written off -
Deferred Revenue Expenditure Written Off -
Provision for doubtful debts/advances - 8.31
Provision Tor Inventory obsolescence - 1,853.98
Loss in Value of Invesiment -
Total 692.63 2,258.98

\
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/’_ NOTE NO. 32 \

Depreciation

YearEnded | YearEnded

31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021

Rs.inLakhs | Rs.inLakhs

Depraciation - 216,52

Depreciation on Right of Use Assets - 0.11
- 216.63 |

* Pursuant to letter No. F. No. 3(1y2020-PE-VI, dated 28/01/2021 issued by the Govt of India,
Miristry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises, Department of Heavy Industry, New Delhi.
communicating the decision regarding closure of the Company along with shutting down all the
operations as per DPE Guideline vide OM dated 14/06/2018, the Board of Directors in
compliance of the same in their meeting held on 11/02/2021 has decided to proceed with closure
of the Company. Accordingly, cumently has Company has ceased to be a going concern.

In compliance of the above letter, as per the relevant provisions of Ind AS 105, depreciation on

fixed assets has not been charged during the year.

NOTE NO. 33
Tax Expenses
YearEnded | YearEnded
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakhs | Rs.inLakhs
Income Tax current Year -
Income Tax partaining to Earier Years - -
NOTE NO. 34
Earning Per Share (EPS)
YearEnded | YearEnded
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs.inLakh | Rs.inLakhs
s
Profit as per Profit & Loss Account (Rs.in lakhs) T57.99 (4,952.04)
Average number of Equity Shares (Face value Rs.10 B7T272255 87272255
each)
Basic & Diluted Earning per share (in Rs.) 0.87 {5.67)
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[Nate No.- 35
Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

\

previous years [or which appeals are pending before
the competent authorities, However based upon
appeals filed by the company seeking relief, the Hon'
ble High Court of Judicature, Allahabad (Lucknow
Bench) has decided appeals for Assessment year
2002-03 to 2009-10 wherein substantial reliefs have
been given. Conseguently the demands are likely to
nullify after appellale order.

As at31.3,2022 | As at 31.3.2021
Az.In Lakhs Fs.ln Lakhs
Company is conlingently liable for
(i} Claims against the Company not acknowledged as
debts.
(a) Consumer Forum Cases Intermediate Indeterminate
{Refer Point No. A)
(b) Cases of Private Parties. 85.00 excluding | 95.00 excluding
Interast Interest
Wherever Whereve
Applicable Applicable
(€} In connection with guarantee/Indemnity given by SIL to 30.00 + | 30.00 + Interest
Interest
OBC (Refer Point No B.) Thereon Thereon
id) SlLvsESIC{Refer PointNo.C). 5734 27 34
(8) PunjabMationalBankvsSIL (ReferPointMNo. D). 215.00 213-&0
ify SIL Vs The Micro and Small EnterpriseFacilitation 11.07 Excluding| 11 g7 Excluding
Council & Others Compound Compound
Interestthereon | Interesithereon
tg) AM. Kapoor vs SIL 1.50 + Interest | 1.50 + Interest
therean theraon
(h) Demand Notic es raised by Central Excise and ‘HE‘BQP*“"’ Pl 34.53
Service Tax Authorities. niarest usintarest
Indeterminate Indeterminate
{i} Demand MNotices ralsed by Income Tax Autharitles of
1470.83 1470.83

(i

Unfavarable Arbitration award in the matier between

23 85+ Interest

23 85+Interast

OrdnanceFactoryBoard and theCompany{Refer Painfo B thereon thereon

(i} Counter claim of Mis UPSICL 8.27 a.27
(Reler Point Ma. F) Plus Interest Plusinterest
Indeterminate ndeterminate

(iv) Employees' Cases pending belore various Court 51 Mos.&Amount 51
ta) In LabourCourt Indeterminate29 Mos.&

Mos. & Amount Amount
Indeterminats Indeterminate

(b} InOthers 29 Nos. &
Amount Ind

(v} The Workmen Housing Colony (Refer Paint No.H) 2412.00 2412.00

/
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in A

Tha amount invelvad in 1 consumer case pending before Suprame Court of India and 1 consumer case
pending before Mational Consumer Dispules Redressal Commission, MNew Delhl is indeterminate
(previous years e, FY 2018-19 amount involved In 9 cases of consumers |5 estimated at Rs, 10 lakhs) &
remaining 63 cases of Consumer pending before different Consumer Forums in India is Indeterminate
(pravious years e, FY 2018-19 amount of 64 cases was indeterminate). An amount of Rs. 1.37 lakns
(previous year ie, FY 2018-19 is Rs. 1.37 lakhs) has been deposited against 5 cases with refevant
autharities under protest.

Point No. B

Scoolers India Limited filed 2 writ petiion in case of SIL Vs Oriental Bank of Commerce (OBC) before the
High Court, Lucknow Bench in 2011 against the order passed by the Debt Recovery Appallate fribunal as
the Commitiee of Disputes was dissolved by the Hon'ble Supreme Court order resulted In pending of the
approval for approaching Court.

Point No.

Employes State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) demanded ESI contribution of the employess from SIL in
contravention of the judgment and order dated 22.08.2005 passed in SIL vs BIFR & Others and Appeal
Mo. 304 of 2002 by tribunal AAIFR. The case iz pending before High Cour, Lucknow Bench. The
company has not recognized liability of Rs.27 .34 lakhs (previous year i.e. FY 2020-21 15 R5.27.34 lakhs)
in the books of accounts and it Is shown as contingent liability.

Point No. D

Punjab MNational Bank filed a case against SIL for the recovery against indemnity provided by SIL for loan
availed by UP Tyres and Tubes. The case is pending before DRT Lucknow. The company has not
recognized liability of Rs 213 |akhs (previous year le FY 2020-21 is Rs.213 lakhs) in the books of
accounts and it is shown as contingent liability,

Point No. E

In the matter of arbitration case betwesn Ordnance Factory Board and the Company, a representation
was made in 2011 to the Ministry for reviewing the order passed by the Law Secretary being arbitrary, The
representation &5 still pending. Since the Law Secretary has nol considered the Issue on the merit as
pointed oul by the Commitlze on Dispules and, therefore, pending further action, the company has nol
recognized liability of R5.23.85 lakhs plus interest thereon (previous year i.e. FY 2020-21 is Rs.21.85
lakhs plus interest thereon) in the books of accounts and it is shown as contingent liakility.

t No.
UPSICL and Scooters India Limited jointly sponsored a scheme for the development of Ancillary Estate in
the Amausi Industrial Area, Lucknow. SIL had claimed an amount of R5.43.05 lakhs spent on behalf of
UPSICL fowards such Ancillary Estate, whereas UPSICL has made a counter claim of Rs.9.27 lakhs plus
interest. Panding resolution of the issue the matter went into arbitration in the year 1985, the outcome of
which is still awalted and pending clarity on the matter, the company has not recognized counter claim as
liability,

Point No. G

The Company (s in physical possession of the land measuring 41 bigha, 3 biswa and 18 biswansi
acquired for Workmen's Housing colony under “Own Your House Scheme”. The compensation
determined by the Land Acquisttion Officer of ULP Government amounting to Rs.2.29 lakhs was paid by
the Company. However. subseguently, some land owners entered into litigation for higher compensation
before Nagar Mahapalika Tribunal against the State Government. The U.P State Government has filed an
appeal before the Hon'ble High Court challenging the order of the Tribunal and final decision is still
awaited, The Company has also been impleaded as a party to the said appeal, The additional liability on

\lhe part of the Company, if any, is not ascertainable. j
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As regards ceiling land measuring 24 bigha, 13 biswa and 16 biswansi, which is in physical possession of
the Company, the Govt. of U.P, issued an order dated 3™ August, 2000 giving abave land to the Company
for the purpose of Workmen Housing colony under “Own Your House Scheme” on lease for 90 years In
consideration @ Rs.4000 per bigha, amounting to Rs.4.55 lakhs including premium. Payment was made
bul returned subseguently by LLP Government, Thereafler, U.P Government revised their sarlier order
vide their letter No.919 (1) 1-12/2003-9151/87-92 dated 8.5.2003 demanding market price of Rs.2412
takhs, which was contested by the Company. A recovery notice for Rs. 2412 lakhs in addition to collection
charges was Issued by Tehsildar, Lucknow.

Aggrieved by the recovery notice, Company filed wril petition in Hon'ble High Court. The Court slayed
recovery notice and ordered the Company to pay a sum of Rs.4.55 lakhs 1o District Magistrate, Lucknow.
Honorabie High Court has given the decision in favour of company.

As regards ancther Forest land for Workmen Housing colony under *Own Your House Scheme®
measuring 4 bighas and 13 biswa, which s in physical possession for 90 vears lease, (he exaculion of
conveyance deed with the State Government is pending due to delay in completion of procedural
formalities through on line.

The land held for Workmen Housing colony under "Own Your House Scheme” shall be transferred to
workmen after complying with legal and other procedural formalities. Accordingly, the same has not bean
included in our Fixed Assats Schedule.

NoteMo.-36

Sales-tax assessment both under UPVAT and CST has been completed upto the Financial year
2014-15. The Income-tax assessment has been completed up lo assessment year 2017-
18{financialyearendedonMarch31,2017).

MNote No.- 37

The balances in the debtors/creditors accounts, claims recoverable, loans and advances, assets/matenals
with third parties are subject to adjustments and confirmation, if any, on reconciiiation for most of the
above balances. Detailz/confirmation of various deposits relating to Electricity, Customs-duty, Port Trust,
Octrol, Sales-tax, Landlord and certain parbies are not available/obtained,

Mote No.- 38

The Company which was in physical possession of property at 64-65, Najafgarh Road, New Delhi whera
Reglonal Office, North Region was located has been handed over to HV.0.C. Ltd. On 31* August 2017
as per directive issued by Ministry of Department of Heavy Industry vide thelr letter No. 3(15Y2008 - PE
Vi dated 11.05.2017.

MNote No.-39

The Company is principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of molor vehicles and
spare-parts (Aulomobile). Accordingly, there are no olther reportable segments as per Ind AS-108 on
COperating Segments,
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/’_Hota No.- 40 \

Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS-24
(&) List of related parties during the financial year 2021-22 (Till 31.03.2022)

. Government of India

Il. Whole-Time Directors
Shri Rupesh Telang, Chairman & Managing Director (Additional Ehar%a} -(From 23 April 2021)
Shri Mukesh Kumar, Director Finance (Additional Charge) — (From 307 August 2020)

Part-Time Directors
Shri 5.K. Singh, Director {From 15" January 2018)
Smt Rama Kant, Director (From 10™ Mavember 2020)
Shri Mahendra Pratap Singh, Mon-Official Independent Director (From ag™ Jdanuary, 2020)
Smit Rakesh Sharma, Non Offlaal Independent Director {From 2g" January 2020)
Shri Raj Kumar, Non-Official independent Director (From 02™ November 2021)

(b) Transaction with relatedparties
{Rs.In Lakhs)
S5l.No | Nature of Transaction Persons having control | Remuneration
over the Company
T Remuneration to Directors - MA
2 Total . NA

fund for Company's operations. Accordingly, the company meets the retirement benefits of
Leave Encashment from own resources.

Note No.- 41

The Company was declared sick under section 3(1){c) of the SICA, by BIFR in its meeting
held on February 18, 2010, consequent to the reference made by the Company, due to
ercsion of its net worth as on March 31, 2009. The Cabinet committee, GOI approved the
revival package of Rs.20,196 lakhs, which inter-alia includes the infusion of fresh funds,
conversion of plan & nonplan loans into equity & waiver of inlerest. The Draft Rehabilitation
Scheme (DRS) was under preparation by Operating Agency (SBl) and was to be submiited In
due course before BIFR for sanction. However Pending finalization of DRS & sanction by the
Hon'ble BIFR, the Miscellaneous application filed by the Company for early implementation of
revival package was approved by BIFR in its hearing dated Junet, 2013, in terms of section
18 and 32A of SICA, which inter-alia envisaged Increase in Aulhorised Share Capital from
Rs.7500 lakhs to Rs.25000 lakhs, Conversion of Plan & Non Plan Loans of R5.8521.12 lakhs
in to Equity, Issue & allotment of Equity shares against share application money pending
allotment of Rs.1049 |akhs, Reduction of Equity Share Capital against Accumulated losses by
Rs.B521.12 lakhs, write off of Interest accrued & due and Interest accrued but not due on
Flan & Non Plan Loan of Rs.2637.60 lakhs against accumutated losses & as also for Income
Tax, if any required under section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1861 regarding Minimum
Altermate Tax for the book profit, The matter of repayment of principal & interest on non-plan
loan sanctioned during financial year 2012-13 of Rs.189 Lakhs, which has been followed up
with Department of Heavy Industry since the year 2013-14, has been approved and Ministr{g
of Heavy Industry and Public Enterprises vide its letter No. F3-33/2009PE-VI(Vol-IV) dated 5
June 2018 communicated the freezing of the interesl an the Non Plan Loan of Rs.1.89 crore )
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and conversion into Equity of the Outstanding Principal amaountofRs. 1.89Crore.

On 15" September 2015, Hon'ble bench of BIFR, New Delhi has discharged the Company
from BIFR on submission made by Operating Agency (State Bank of india) to the effect that
Net-worth of the Company as on 31% March, 2014 has turned positive. The BIFR discharged
the company from purview of SICA with inter-alia the following directions:

a  The Company M/s Scooters India Limited ceases to be a sick industrial company, within
the meaning of section 3{1)(o) of tha SICA as [ts net worth has lumed positive. It is there
fore, discharged from the purview of SICA/BIFF.

b The Board discharges SBl from the responsibility of OA to the board.

& All secured creditors, statutory authorities are at a liberty to recover thelr dues, ifany,
accardingtolaw.

As per legal opinion obtained by the company, not withstanding the order of BIFR discharging

the company from its purview, the relief and concessions as sanctioned in the miscellaneous

application no.316/2013 would coptinue to be valid and operative;

MNote No.- 42

The Board In its 224th meeting held on May 28, 2013 approved the implementation of
negolialed pay scale (2002) of workmen. Accordingly the Company provided in financial year
2013-14 for total recoverable amount which was estimated around Rs.125.83 lakhs and total
payable amount which was estimated around Rs. 42.25 lakhs. Against the said amount,
around Rs.1.87 lakhs, Rs.16.28 lakhs, R5.12.82 |lakhs, Rs5.8.26 lakhs,Rs.5.53 |lakhs and
Rs.1.22 lakhs have been recovered in financial year 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18,
2018-19 and 2019-20 respectively and Rs.1.11 lakhs &Rs.0.97 lakhs has been paid during the
financial year 2013-14 to 2018-19 and 2019-20 respectively.

Regarding revision of Officers w.e.f. 01.01.2007, the proposal of implementation of revision
with cutoff date 01.04.2013 for all officers on the rolls of the Company on 01.04,2013. has
been forwarded to the Ministry for consideration, Regarding revision of workmen w.e.f.
01.01.2007 for all workmen on the rolls of the Company on 01.04.2013, the consenl for
implementation of wage revision with a cuteff date 01.04.2013 had been sought from workmen
of the Company. The revision (2007) of Officers is still awaiting approval of Government of
India,

Pending finalization of wage revision of workmen and resolution of cases filed by unions
inciuding Staff & Officers Associations before the Central Government Industrial Tribunal,
Lucknow vide Case No, 36/2012, the revision for workmen, staff & officers could not be
concluded.

Interim relief is being paid to all employees w.ef. January 2015.
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The above Interim Relief is being paid against the final adjustment, if any, from increase in thg
salary/wages/arrear on accounts of pay/wage revision 2007. During the financial year 2019-20
Rs.72.49 lakhs (previous vears i.e, FY 2018-19is Rs, 104,73 lakhs, FY 2017-18 is Rs.162 62
lakhs, FY 2016-17 is Rs.254.29 lakhs, FY 2015-16 is R5.333.68 lakhs, FY 2014-15 is
Rs.99.70 lakhs, ) has been paid on account of Interim Relief.

The intarim relief being paid w.e.f. 01.01.2015 is recognized as expenditure in the Profit &
Loss Account. Pending approval of revision proposal for officers, staff & workmen from
Government of India, the arrears, if any, had not been considered.

Note No.- 43
During the financial year 2013-14, the GOl released Rs.3190.00 lakhs as equity for capilal expendilure
undar the approval of revival package of SIL by Cabinet/BIFR.

The interest of Rs.128.11 lakhs earmed by way of Fixed Deposits on these funds was remitted to GOl in
line with the then direction issued vide GO| Letter No.F.No., 3{15)/2013-PE-V| dated 31st March 2014,

The company however representad againsl the above & GOl have intimated vide letter F.No
(15 2013-PE-V| dated 05™ March 2015 that the amount has been released as equity investrment in SIL,
the question of payment of interest eamed to Govt, of India does not anse, Interest already credited to
GOl cannot be refundad now.

In view of this, SIL have adjusted the interest already credited to GOI against the installment payment of
working capital plan lean of Rs.2000 lakhs due on 23.07.2016 and remitted Rs.271.89 lakhs (Rs.400
lakhs minus Rs. 128 11 lakhs)

The Company is in the process of flling necessary retums of allotment in respect of issue of share capital
of 3180 lakhs to Government of India, The company is also in the process of filing necessary Return for
increasing authorised Share capital from Rs.75 Crores o Rs.250 Crores. Pending the resolution of issue
of increasing the authorized share capital, wherain exemption from filling fees has bean sought in line
with reliets provided by BIFR. no liabllity in this regard has been recognized in the annual accounts.

Note No.- 44

Based on BIFR order dated 22 06.2013, the Board of SIL in their 225™ meeting held on 12.07.2013
effected Reduction of Equity Share Capital of the company haeld by the Government of India by
Rs.B521.12 lakhs as on 31st March 2013 against Accumulated Losses, in line with business plan far
ravival of SIL, which was further ratified by the share holders of the Company in their 41 Annual genaral
meseting held on 30" Seplember, 2013,
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/’_Nu!a No. 45 \
Loans From Government of India
Rs.inLakhs
Rate of | Month of Default up to 311.03.2021 Dutstanding as on 31.03.20H Outstanding as on 31.03.2020
Particulars | Loan | gy | Last prncigal]| Nomal | Pl (o TNomal [ Penal | g ol | Pera
Amaunt | oma |Instalime Interest | Interest Interest | interest Interest | Interest
Dg
Penal
PlanLloan §200000 |  Inteeese) July2020 | 1,600.00 -1 1 £00.00 - -| A0 -
Fres|
VRSySE | 410000 1350 410000 | 558.05 4100.00
Scheme
Loan
Total {E,100.00 1,600.00] - - 5700000 55605 - E00.00 -
Lagg: Inchiged mn Currant Malures (Kot Mo, 29) - - 400008 -
Less: Inéerest Ancrued & Dug on Govermend of india Lian {Nobe Mo, 23) ; :
Amount Included In Note No. 15 570006 55608 - 530000 -

* Based on BIFR approval through miscellaneous application the Company has not made any provision
for interest on Mon - Plan loan of ¥ 188 lakhs. However, this MNon-Plan loan of 2 189 lakhs has been
converted into eqguity during FY 2018-19 vide letter dt. 13.02.2019 & Board resolution passed in its 255th

mesting held on 03rd Aug-2018.

In accordance with the Board's decision in their meeting held on 8th April 2016, and |n the background of
letter F.Mo, 3(15)/2013-PE-\| dated 5th March 2015, the interest on CAPEX funds tempararly deployed
as FDOR remitted to Governmant of India in April 2014 amounting fo ¥ 128.11 lakhs shall be adjusted
against the installment of ¥, 400,00 lakhs due on 23rd July 2016 of repayment of principal. Accordingly
necessary adjustments have been carried out in the books of accounts.
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MNote No. 46

Financial Ratios

~

Ratiof Measure Methodology For the year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31,
2021
(a) Current Ratio Current assets over current 5.30 1.94
liabilities
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Debt over total shareholders’ 7.05 113.46
eguity
(c) Debt Service Coverage | EBIT over current debt .10 -0.87
Ratio
{d) Return on Equity Ratio | PAT over total average equity 0.09 -0.57
(e} Inventory turnover Cost of goods seld aver 0.00 0.00
ratio Average Inventory
(f) Trade Receivables Revenue from operations 0.00 1.12
turnover ratio over average trade
receivables
[g) Trade payables Adjusted expenses over 123.53 T62.09
turnowver ratio average trade payables
(h) Net capital turnover Revenue from operations 0.12 0.06
ratio over average working capital
(i) Net profit ratio Net profit over revenue 0.29 -5.28
(i) Return on Capital PBIT over average capital 0.15 -0.57
employed employed
(k) Return on investment. | Interest income, net gain on 0.01 0.02
sale of investments and net
fair value gain over weighted
average investments.
i} EBITDA % EBITDA over revenue 50% -505%
i) EBIT % EBIT over revenue 50% 528%
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Note Na. 47

Additional information pursuant to Schedule lll part Il of the Companies Act, 2013

1. Stock and Turnover for the year ended Mar31,2022

Stocks

At Commencement At Close Turnover
Mos Rs. In Mos Rs. in Mos Rs.in
Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs)
Vikram Three Wheeler 312 394.03 - - - -
Spares and - 241.24 - - -
|Componenis
Petrol Pump stock” 74 | (0.14) - - - -
{ CuantityLtrs.) (774) (0.14) - = (=)

Explanatory Notes :

* Includes value of empty drums, centainer set clying in Petrol Pump stock,

(1) Practical / Achievable capacity has reduced lo 12500 MNos. against installed
capacity of 16500 MNos. during the year 2015-16 as per the report of charered

Engineer.

(2) Petrol Pump turnover represents the sale of Diesel, Petrol & Other Oil &
Lubricants. The Company purchased NIL Itrs. of Diesel { Petral (Previous financial
Year NIL lirs). There has been no evaporation loss (Previous Year NIL ltrs.).

(3) The company owned petrol pump (HPCL) has been lemporarily leased for
operations to HPCL w.e.l. 8" November 2016. However formal agreement has not
been registered and is subject to approval and finalisaion. Further since the rental
or other income is in determinable for want of formal agreement, the same |is not
recognised in profit & loss accounts.

2. Auditor's Remuneration

2021-22 2020-21
Rs.inLakhs Rs.inLakhs
(a) Statutory Auditor's Audit fees 1.60 1.60
(b} Fees for Cerification & Consullation 0.70 2.33
{c) Cost Audit Fees 0.00 0.00
(d} Tax Audit Fees 0.28 0.30
(e) Internal Audit Fees 0.50 5.49
3.08 9.7

The above figures includes Goods and Service tax.

\
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Note No. 48 \

The financial statement for the year ended March31, 2022 are prepared as per
Schedulel Il of the Companies Act 2013. Previous year's figures have been regrouped,
rearranged and recast, wherever necessary, to make them comparable with those of
the current year

Note No. 49

As per order no.3(1) 2020-PE-VI dated 28" January, 2021 Issued by the Ministry of
Heavy Industries & Public Enterprisas (Govl of India) :-

a) Shutting down process of operation of the plant /unit and closure process has been
initiated.

b) The total land about 147.489 acras is to be returned to UPSIDA at the mutually
agreed rates,

¢) Before closure of the Company, shares to be delisted from Bombay Stock Exchange
(BSE)

d) Monetizalion of Trademark and Brand of SIL before closure of Company.

&) Disposal of plant/machinery and movable assets will be done through e-auction by
MSTC Ltd.

Note No. 50

Pursuant to letter Mo, F. No, 3{1)/2020-PE-V|, dated 28/01/2021 issued by the Govt. of
India, Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises, Department of Heavy Industry,
Mew Delhi, communicating the decision regarding closure of the Company along with
shutting down all the operations as per DPE Guideline on closure vide OM dated
14/06/2018, the Board of Direclors in compliance of the same in their meeling held on
11/02/2021 has decided lo procead with closure of the Company, Accordingly, the
Company has ceased to be a going concemn and in compliance of the same most of the
Assets and Inventory items of the company have been Auctioned during the Year.
Further, management of the company is also in the process of estimation of realisable
value of remainig assels to make necessary disclosures in accordance with applicabla
Indian Accounting Slandards,

Note No.51

In context to the Note No. 49, it was required from all the Employees 1o opt for the
Voluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS) over a period of three months. All the employees
taken VRS within the speficified time frame. With respect to the settlement of said
liability company has recieved Financial Assistance amounting to Rs. 41 crore from
Govl of India on 28/03/2021.
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MNote No.52

SILOWA (Scoofers India Limited Officers Welfare Association) had filed a petition in the
manth of March, 2021 to shift the existing employees of the Company in another PSU
and said petition is pending at Lucknow Bench of Allahabad High Court.

Sd/- Sdl- Sdf-
{R.5.Tiwari) (Mukesh Kumar) (Rupesh Telang)
ChiefFinanceOfficer DirectorFinance ChairmanandManagingDirector
(AdditionalCharge) {AdditionalCharge)
DIM-08778135 DIN -08218342

Intermsofourreportofevendate
For Asija & Associates LLP
CharleredAccountants

FR No. - 0031550/ C400011

Sd/-
(CA Kamal Kr. Ferwani)
M. No.- 402982

\
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SCOOTERS INDIALIMITED

(A Government of India Enterprise)
Corporate identity No. L25111UP1972G 01003599

\

Registared Office: Lucknow Kanpur Road, {16th Mile Store), Post Bag No.23 (G.P.0.),

P.0O. Sarcjini Nagar, Lucknow - 226008
Phone:0522-2476244E-mail: cmdscootersindia@gmail.com
Website www.scootersindialimited.com

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 50" Annual General Meeting of the members of the
Scooters India Limited will be held at 12:30 p.m. on Friday, the 30"day of December
2022, through Video Canferencing to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statement of the company for
the year ended 31.03.2022 and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the company including the
balance sheet as at March31, 2022, profit and loss account, the cash flow
statement for the year ended on that date, report of Board of Directors and auditors
thereon be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

To appoint & director In place of Mr. Rupesh Telang, who retires by rotation & being
eligible has offered him-self for re-appointment and, if thought fit, to pass, the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Rupesh Telang who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers whao has himself for re-appointment. be and is hereby reappointed as director
of the company liable to retire by rotation.”

To consider and, il thought fil, to pass, the followingresolulion as a Special
Resolution;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 142 of the Companies Act 2013, and
otherapplicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of
theStatutory Auditors appointed by Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C &
AG)under section 139(5) of the said act, be and is hereby approved io be fixed
atRs. 1.60,000/- for the year 2021-22."

Date: 08.12.2022

Place: Lucknow By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Rupesh Telang

DIN: 09218342

Chairman & Managing Director
Scooters Indla Limited,
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-

MNotes:

1.

As you ara aware, in view of he situation ansing due to COVID-19 global pandemic,
the general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated
April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, Circular No. 20,2020 dated
May 05, 2020 and general Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.. The
forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio
visual means (OAVM), Hence, Members can attend and parlicipate in the ensuing
AGM through VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
20 of {he Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 {as amended)
and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13,
2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company Is providing facility of remote e-voting to its
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose,
the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services
{India) Limited {CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized e-Voling's agency. The facilily of casling voles by a member using
remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be
provided by CDSL.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after
the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeating by following the procedure
mentioned in the MNotice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through
VC/IOAVM will be made avallable to atleast 1000 members on first come first served
basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Sharehoiders holding 2% or more
shareholding), Promaoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairparsons of the Audit Commitiee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors ete. who are allowed
to attend the EGM/AGM without restiction on account of first come first served
basis,

The atiendance of the Members attending the AGM through YC/OAVM will be
counted for the purpose of ascertaining the guorum under Seclion 103 of tha
Companies Act. 2013.

Pursuant to MCA Circular Mo. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint
prody to attend and cast vote for the members i not available for this AGM.
However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Secticn 113 of the Companies Act, 2013,
representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a
State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAWVM and casl their votes
through e-voting.

8. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated
April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM/EGM has been uploaded on the website
of the Company at www. scootersindia.com. The MNotice can also be accessed from
the websites of the Stock Exchanges ie. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com
respectively. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency
for praviding the Remote e-\oting facility and e-voting system during the AGM/EGM)
i.e. www.evolingindia.com.

\
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1.

The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated
April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular Mo. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular
Mo. 2002020 dated May 05, 2020.

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL
MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global
pandemic, the general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the
guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No.
14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular
No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. The forthcoming AGM/EGM will thus be held
through through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (QAVM).
Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM/EGM through
WVCIOAVM.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI| (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April
08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of
remote e-voling to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the
AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through
electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes
by @ member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of
the EGM/AGM will be provided by CDSL.

The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before
and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the
procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of paricipation at the EGM/AGM
through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come
first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding
2% or maoare shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc.
who are allowed to attend the EGMIAGM without restriction on account of first
come first served basis.
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/’:4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM wm
be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, , the facility to appoint
proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM/EGM.
However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act,
2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the
Govermnor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM/EGM through
VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No, 17/2020 dated
April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM/EGM has been uploaded on the website
of the Company at www.scootersindialimited.com, The Motice can also be
accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited at www bseindia.com and www. nseindia.com
respectively. The AGM/EGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL
(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voling system during the
AGM/EGM) i.e. www.evolingindia.com.

7. The AGM/EGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No.
14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020
and MCA, Circular No, 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020,

8. In continuation of this Ministry's General Circular No. 20/2020, dated 05th May,
2020 and after due examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose
AGMs were due lo be held in the year 2020, or become due in the year 2021, to
conduct their AGMs on or before 31,12.2021, in accordance with the requirements
provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General Circular No. 20/2020 as per MCA
circular no. 02/2021 dated January,13,2021.

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING
VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

Step1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of
individual shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding
shares in physical mode and non-individual sharehaolders in demat mode.

\_ Y,
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/r (i) The voting pericd begins on December 27, 2022at 10:00 AM and ends un\
December 29, 2022 at 5:00 P.M. During this period shareholders' of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form,
as on the cul-off date (record date) of December 23, 2022, may cast their
vote electronically. The e-voling module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter.

(iiy  Shareholders who have already voted prior fo the meeting date would not be
entitied to vote at the meeting venue.

(i)  Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated
09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed
entities are required to provide remote e-voling facility to its shareholders, in
respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that
the paricipation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail
shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-
voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on
various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user |Ds and passwords by the
shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the volting process, pursuant to a public
consultation, it has been decided lo enable e-voting to all the demat
account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their
demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants.
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to
register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in
e-voting process.

Step1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/INSDL e-Voting system in case of
individual shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated
December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual sharehelders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

\_ J
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Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voling and joining
virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat
mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

\

Type of Login Method
shareho
Iders

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can
Individu login through their existing user id and password.
al Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
Er;?smm without any further authentication. The URL for users to
holding legin to Easi { Easiest are
securitie hitps://web cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login ~ or  visit
s in www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select
Demat New System Myeasi.
mode
with 2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to
CDSL

see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be
able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & wvoting during the meeting.
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
CDSLU/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can
visit the e-Voling service providers' website directly.

3)If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to
reqister is available at
hitps//web.cdslindia,.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiReqistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voling page by
providing Demal Account Number and PAN No. from a e-
Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page or
click on https:/fevoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin
The systermn will authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able
to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress
and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers.

140



&

SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, pleaa&\
Individual visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by

Sharehold typing the following URL; htips://eservices.nsdl.com either on
AR a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page
holding - . ; § L Y
smourties of e-Services is launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner
in demat icon under “Login” which is available under 'IDeAS’ section.
mode with A new screan will open. You will have to enter your User ID
NSDL and Password. After successful authentication, you will be

able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting”
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available al htlps:/feservices.nsdl.com. Select
"Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https:/ieservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReq.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: hitps://www.evoling.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login" which Is available under ‘Shareholder/Member
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demal account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verfication Code as
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting
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'/ Individual You can also login using the login credentials of }FGLII‘\
Shareholders demat account through your Depository Participant
(holding _ registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
securities n After Successful login, you will be able to see e-
demat  mode) Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you
login  through will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
their Depository successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Participants Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting

service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
‘oting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to refrieve User ID/ Password are advised
to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned
website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details ]
Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in '
holding securities in Demat login can contact CDSL helpdesk by

mode with CDSL sending a request at

helpdesk.eveling@cdslindia.com or
contact at 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in

holding securities in Demat login can contact NSDL helpdesk by

mode with NSDL sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or
call al toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and
1800 22 44 30

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding
shares in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(vi Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical
shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

1)} The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evolingindia.com.

\_ Y,
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/r 2) Click on "Shareholders” module. \

3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folic Number
registered with the Company.

o

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to
www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then
your existing password is to be used.

&) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than
individual shareholders holding shares in
Demat.

PAMN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by
Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

+ Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with
the Company/Depaository Participant are requested
to use the sequence number sent by
Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in
Bank dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat
Details account or in the company records in order to
OR Date login,

of Birth » [f both the details are not recorded with the
(DOB) depository or company, please enter the member

id { folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

(vi)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab.

\_ Y,
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g N

(vii) Shareheiders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the
Company selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in dematl form
will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to
mandatorily enter their login passward in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company
opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential.

Iviii)y  For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for
e-voling on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to
vote,

(x)  On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the
same the option "“YES/NQ" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired.
The option YES implies that you assent 1o the Resolution and option NO implies
that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi)  Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

(xii)  After selecting the resolution, you have decided fo vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK”,
else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

(xili) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote,

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print”
option on the Voting page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User
ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the
\ details as prompted by the system. )
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|xvi)  Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians -For
Remote Voting only.

+« MNon-Individual shareholders {i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and

Custodians are required to log on to www.evolingindia.com and register

themselves in the "Corporates” module.

« A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

= After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

« The list of accounis linked in the Ilogin should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be
able to cast their vote.

« A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format
in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same,

« Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, o the Scrutinizer and to the
Company at the email address viz; cmdscootersindia@gmail.com (designated
email address by company), if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded
same in the CDSL e-vating system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGMJ'EGI\?\
THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is
same as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of
Company will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions
mentioned above for e-voling.

. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend
the meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for
better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a
good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or

through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss
due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use
Stable WI-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask guestions during the
meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in
advance atleastthree days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat
account numberfolio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The
shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may
send their queries in advance three days prior to meeting mentioning their
name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company
email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email,

. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will anly be
allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through YC/OAVM
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting
and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
Voting system available during the EGM/AGM,
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/rlﬂ. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during tha
EGMWAGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting
through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be
considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to
the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mabile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & maobile no. with
your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining
virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Vating from the CDSL
e-Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact
at 1800 22 55 33.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be
addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services
(India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M
Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East)) Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk.evoling@cdslindia.com or call on 1800 22 55 33.
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NOTES )
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SCOOTERS INDIA LIMITED
(A Government of India Enterprise)
Registered Office : Lucknow - Kanpur Road,
th (16 Mile Stone), Post Bag No. 23 (G.P.O.),
P.0O. Sargjini Magar, Lucknow - 226 008.
www.scootersindia.com
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